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Report from
the Chair of
Council

It is an honour for me to present you
with the Cape Peninsula University of
Technology’s Annual Report for 2016.
The present Council, which has been accorded
the fiduciary responsibility of University oversight for
the period from September 2014 to August 2018,
operates in a term that has been very challenging
for the Higher Education sector in general and the
University in particular.
We are proud that despite the turbulence, the
dedication and commitment by members serving on
the CPUT Council remains steadfast, as witnessed
by their attendance at Council and subcommittee
meetings. No meeting has been cancelled due to
the lack of a quorum. The theme of moving the
University “from good to great” resonates strongly
with Council as it oversees the implementation of the
University’s Vision 2020 Strategic Plan. In executing
its responsibility, Council has always worked hard
to ensure the sustainability and continuity of CPUT.
Its members act with due diligence in all decisions
processed to ensure that the integrity of the Council
as the highest decision-making body of the University
remains intact.

The academic year 2016 presented a difficult set of
circumstances for CPUT that tested the character of
our leadership. A process was convened by Council
to place the Vice-Chancellor, Dr Prins Nevhutalu on
special leave pending a disciplinary process. He had
served three of the five years of his contract at the
time. The disciplinary process is still inprogress.
In the same breath, we are grateful for the service
rendered by Professor John Volmink who was
immediately available when Council approached him
to take up the role of Acting Vice-Chancellor. Prof
Volmink had been serving on Council in the capacity
of Chairperson of the Finance Committee (FINCOM), a
role he was excused from when he took over as Acting
Vice-Chancellor from 31 October.
Council was met early in 2017 by the untimely
resignation of the chairperson of Council Mr Mbulelo
Bikwani, who had presided over the council since
September 2010. His role and stewardship over the
years does not go unnoticed. From the governance
point of view, continuity prevails as members remain
committed to good corporate governance. The former
deputy chairperson, Ms Ruth Benjamin-Swales has
been appointed chairperson of the Audit and Risk
Oversight Committee (AROC) and I was appointed
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deputy chairperson in her place. In this capacity,
I currently act as chairperson of Council until the
position of chairperson is filled.
For two successive years (2015 and 2016) the
sector has been hit by student protests organized
under the banner of #FeesMustFall. On both
occasions the disruptions led to the postponement
of year-end examinations and the suspension of
university operations, creating a logistical nightmare for
management. The violent protests resulted in damages
of approximately R10 million in 2015 and R35 million
in 2016.
The presidential Fees Commission is ongoing and
the sector anxiously awaits the final report that is due
in June 2017, as it will chart the way forward in terms
of the funding of higher education. We hope this will
bring about stability.
Other external factors, such as the Rand’s weak
performance and dwindling investor confidence in
South Africa during 2016, have had a negative impact
on the financial performance of the University, along
with increased costs and reduced donor funding.
An increase in the number of special council
meetings in 2016, which were equal to the number
of standing Council meetings, prompts the question:
How do we measure our efficiency and effectiveness
in relation to what we have set ourselves to achieve?
This will be
answered in a process Council will have to undertake
in 2017 to evaluate and monitor our performance and
impact. The process will be initiated in our June 2017
strategic review.
This Annual Report is intended to provide a window
into our operations. The following key strategic areas
are covered in the report:
1.
2.
3.

Teaching and Learning (refer to the Senate Report)
Research Excellence (refer to the Senate Report)
Fiscal Discipline (refer to the Annual Financial
Review)

The financial report points in a sustainable direction
under a difficult set of socio-economic circumstances
and a hostile political environment. As noted last
year in the chairperson’s report, “there has been a
continuous urgent need to invest in and upgrade the
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capital infrastructure of the University as part of the
consolidation process, as well as an increased need
for residences, which places additional cash flow
demands on the institution”.
With regard to continuity, Council inherited and
adopted the decision of the previous Council
(2010 – 2014) that it needed “to generate a surplus
on recurrent operations of at least R30 million to
R50 million to be able to generate sufficient funds
to maintain the day to day operational needs of the
institution, as well as adequately fund the capital
infrastructure and other strategic initiatives.” Below I
share the overall financial performance of the University
since this Council was composed in 2014:

Annual (deficit)/ surplus from
recurrent operations

2016

2015

2014

R181,5m

R41,1m

R123,9m

The multiple protests that hit the higher education
sector nationwide have made this standing decision
impossible to realise in the past two years. Among the
contributing factors were:
1.

2.
3.

4.

A rise in costs in the context of a call by
government for no fee increment for the academic
year of 2016. While the subsidy covered 75% of
that shortfall, the
University had to carry the remainder.
The protests themselves, which came at a high
cost to the University through damages and
logistical rearrangements in both 2015 and 2016.
An increase in the provision for bad debt, as the
call for free education has resulted in a decrease
in the payment of fees.

The challenge of generating third-stream funding
continues. The Advancement Department managed
to raise R29.4 million in 2016. The department has
already collected R4,6 million in 2017 and has pledges
of more than R52,7 million, mainly from the SETAs.
Going forward, the University seeks healing from
the violent protests that affected the sector. Staff
have been traumatised and this is not healthy for
the efficiency of the University’s operation. We need
to facilitate a process wherein the whole University

Even in difficult times we remain
dedicated to the good governance
of the University and will continue
to take decisions in its best
interests, without fear or favour.

”

community experiences healing through dialogue
on how we can maintain good relations beyond
the protests. Council, together with Executive
Management, will have to develop measures through
which the healing process can be realised. As an
interim measure, Council passed a resolution to allow
a three-member task team of Council to attend to
leadership squabbles in the SRC when unresolved by
Executive Management.

”

I thank my fellow Councilors for their work and
the commitment they continue to display. Even in
difficult times we remain dedicated to the good
governance of the University and will continue to
take decisions in its best interests, without fear or
favour.
Kea leboga.

THATO MOLAOLWA
Deputy Chairperson of CPUT Council

We call for tolerance and patience with each other
on all engagements we undertake. Council has
confidence that all stakeholders – students, unions,
staff, Senate, Institutional Forum, and Convocation –
will heed the call to strengthen our working relations in
future. It is in the best interest of the University to make
sure that these relations are functional if we are to build
and shape the great University we envisage.
To Acting Vice-Chancellor Prof John Volmink, we
are truly grateful for the stewardship you have shared
with our University in difficult times. Your contribution
not only to CPUT but the overall education sector in
the country is a legacy that we have come to enjoy in
your time spent with CPUT. I would like to thank the
University Executive as a whole, which has kept the
ship on course despite all the difficulties the University
has been exposed to. The support you have given the
Acting Vice-Chancellor is immense and does not go
unnoticed.
The Secretariat team, under the Registrar, has once
again played its pivotal role in the functioning of the
Council and its subcommittees. Council depends
on the wisdom and guidance always shared by the
Registrar in his role as Secretary of Council to ensure
diligence in the execution of its duties.
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2016 MEETING DATES FOR COUNCIL AND COUNCIL COMMITTEES
COMMITTEES

TIME

Jan

Selection Committee
for Senior
Appointments

10:00

30

Governance and Ethics

14:00

5

Human Resources

14:00

5

18
22

Physical Planning

10:00

12

29

Finance

13:00

12

29

IT Governance

10:00

19

27

Audit and Risk
Oversight

13:00

19

27

Joint Finance and
Audit Risk Oversight

13:00

Student Services

14:00

Executive Committee

14:00

Remuneration

12:00

Council

9:00

WS: Workshop
SP: Special

6

Feb

Mar

Apr

May

Jun

14

4

22
(WS)

8

Jul

Aug

Oct

Nov

18

18

1
8
14

15

14

12

Sep

2

29

23

7

19

7

5

28

17

2

28

13

25

13

4

12

10

19

4

2
(SP)

11

27

11

19

8

4

24
(WS)
25

8

3
28

22
(SP)

26

Dec

4

Mr C Blair

Remuneration
Chairperson:
Audit and Risk
Remuneration
Oversight
Human
Resources
Governance and
Ethics

3

1

4

3

4

Mr M Magida

Human
Resources
Remuneration
Search and
Selection

5

2

4

3

Ms X Limberg

Student Services Chairperson:
4
Physical
Student Services
Planning

2

2

2

Mr B Hadebe

Physical
Chairperson:
Planning
Physical
Human
Planning
Resources
Student Services
Search and
Selection

4

3

2

3

Ms N
Dhevcharran

IT Governance
Audit and Risk
Oversight

Chairperson:
IT Governance

4

2

2

3

Dr J Volmink

Finance
Search and
Selection
Honorary
Doctoral Award

Chairperson:
Finance

2

1

1

2

Mr K Patel

Audit and Risk
Oversight
Finance
Search and
Selection

2

1

Mr Z Fihlani

Finance

5

1

Mr L Makasi

Physical
Planning

Mr C Abner

IT Governance
Student Services

Chairperson:
Human
Resources

Chairperson:
Audit and Risk
Oversight

2

4

3

1

4

4

1

1

2

1

2

1

2

2

4

4

4

5

5

4
2

1

1

5

5

3
0

4

1

2

2

7

Sp Institutional Forum

4 3

2

Institutional Forum

3

SSCSA

4

Honorary Doctoral Award

Deputy
Chairperson

1

Quality Assurance and Risk

Audit and Risk
Oversight
Finance
Search and
Selection

5

Student Services

Ms R BenjaminSwales

Sp Governance and Ethics

3

Governance and Ethics

4

Sp Senate

3

Senate

5

IT Governance

Council
Chairperson

Sp Remuneration

Ex Officio

Remuneration

Mr M Bikwani

Finance

EXCO Members

Physical Planning

Sp EXCO

Council
Committees

Sp Human Resources

EXCO

Council Member

Human Resources

Sp Council

Audit and Risk Oversight

LIST OF COUNCIL MEMBERS INCLUDING MEETING ATTENDANCE

Council

2016

Senate

1

Ms B Mbomvu

Audit and Risk
Oversight
Remuneration
IT Governance
Search and
Selection

5

2

Dr AP Nevhutalu

Ex-officio for
all committees
except
AROC and
Remuneration

4

2

Mr MB Ngqentsu Quality
Assurance
and Risk
Management
Institutional
Forum
Human
Resources

5

3

Dr NS Nhlapo

Governance and
Ethics
Audit and Risk
Oversight
Search and
Selection

4

3

Ms N Nojozi

Finance
Human
Resources
Governance and
Ethics

4

3

8

Sp Institutional Forum

Prof L Chisholm

Institutional Forum

3

1

SSCSA

5

2

Honorary Doctoral Award

Finance
Institutional
Forum
Honorary
Doctoral Award

1

Quality Assurance and Risk

Mr T Molaolwa

5

Student Services

3

Sp Governance and Ethics

5

Governance and Ethics

Physical
Planning
Student Services
Senate
Search and
Selection

Sp Senate

Mr C Kruger

Senate

3

IT Governance

2

3

Sp Remuneration

Finance
Governance and
Ethics

1

Remuneration

Mr I Higgins

3

Finance

3

Physical Planning

5

Sp Human Resources

Human
Resources
Governance and
Ethics
Physical
Planning

Human Resources

Prof H Ballard

Audit and Risk Oversight

Council
Committees

Sp EXCO

Council Member

EXCO

Sp Council
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Council

2016

0

0

2

3

EXCO Members

Vice-Chancellor

2
3

4

1

4

2

1

1

1
1

3

2

4

2

3

1

4

1

1

2

1

3

2

1

1

1

1 2

1

4

4

5

4

3

3

3

5

6

1

Prof R
Hendrickse
Prof A Staak

3
2

1
Student Services
Audit and Risk
Oversight

Prof J Kioko
Mr P Mncamase

1

Finance
SRC
Governance and
Ethics
Student Services
Institutional
Forum
Search and
Selection

4

1

2

2

1

1

1

3

Ms M Madikizela Physical
Planning
Student Services
Institutional
Forum

1

Mr S Thwala

Finance
SRC
Student Services

4

2

3

Mr V Mgulwa

Student Services SRC

3

1

2

1

9

Sp Institutional Forum

1

EXCO Members

Institutional Forum

IT Governance

SSCSA

Prof C Winberg

Honorary Doctoral Award

2

1

Quality Assurance and Risk

IT Governance

3

Student Services

Prof S Pather

Sp Governance and Ethics

2

Governance and Ethics

4

Sp Senate

Finance
Search and
Selection

1

Senate

Ms M Sadeck

1

IT Governance

3

Sp Remuneration

4

Remuneration

Governance
and Ethics
Remuneration
Honorary
Doctoral Awards

1

Finance

Mr C Roos

4

Physical Planning

3

Sp Human Resources

4

Human Resources

Human
Resources

Audit and Risk Oversight

Ms A Pinn

Sp EXCO

Sp Council

Council
Committees

EXCO

Council
Council Member
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MEMBERS OF COUNCIL

JANUARY - DECEMBER 2016

Executive Management – 3 Members
Dr AP Nevhutalu
Vice-Chancellor
(on special leave with effect from 30 October 2016)
Prof J Volmink
Acting Vice-Chancellor
(appointed with effect from 31 October 2016)
Dr NS Nhlapo
Deputy Vice-Chancellor: Research, Technology
Innovation and Partnerships 		
Prof AP Staak
Deputy Vice-Chancellor: Teaching and Learning
Executive Management in attendance
Mr N Ntsababa
Registrar and Secretary of Council
Prof L Fourie
Deputy Vice-Chancellor: Knowledge, Information
and Technology Services
Ms M Geduld-Jeftha
Acting Executive Director: Finance
Appointed on 1 April 2015
Mr P du Plessis
Executive Director: Finance
Appointed with effect from 01 September 2016
Ms C Motale
Acting Dean: Student Services
Ms S Sibanda
Executive Director: Infrastructure and Facilities
Dr O Mkhabela
Executive Director: Office of the VC
Dr O Mkhabela
Acting Executive Director: Human Capital
With effect from 01 July 2016
Mr M Mabuza
Executive Director: Human Capital
Services terminated with effect from 17 June 2016
Appointed by Minister
Mr MB Ngqentsu
Prof J Volmink
On leave until 30 September 2016
Ms N Nojozi		
Mr C Kruger
Prof L Chisholm
Resigned with effect from 01 March 2016
Senate
Prof D Burger
Appointed with affect from 07 November 2016
Prof J Kioko
Resigned with effect from 01 September 2016
Prof R Hendrickse
Resigned with effect from 31 August 2016

THATO MOLAOLWA
Deputy Chairperson of CPUT
Council
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MR N NTSABABA
Registrar

Council Appointees
Ms N Dhevcharran
Mr M Bikwani
Mr Z Fihlani
Ms G Goven
Mr K Patel
Mr C Blair
Ms R Benjamin-Swales
Ms B Mbomvu		
Mr I Higgins
Appointed with effect from 01 July 2016
City of Cape Town Appointee
Councillor X Limberg
Donor Representative
Mr M Magida
Provincial Government Appointee
Mr C Roos
Academic Employees
Ms M Sadeck
Prof H Ballard

			
Non-Academic Employees
Ms A Pinn
Mr C Abner
SRC
Mr S Thwala
01 October 2015 till 30 September 2016
Mr V Mgulwa
01 October 2015 till 30 September 2016
Mr P Mncamase
Appointed with effect from 01 October 2016
Ms M Madikizela
Appointed with effect from 01 October 2016
January 2015 – September 2015
Mr S Thwala
Appointed with effect from October 2015
Mr V Mgulwa
Appointed with effect from October 2015
Convocation
Mr TV Molaolwa
Mr B Hadebe

Vice-Chancellor’s
Report on
Management and
Administration
CPUT owes a debt of gratitude to all those,
whether part of the University or part of the
broader community, who rallied to keep the
ship afloat during the tempest of 2016 and
guide it to calmer waters.

”

INTRODUCTION – A TUMULTUOUS
YEAR
The year 2016 ended as it had begun, under
the shadow of persistent #FeesMustFall protests.
It is difficult to convey the disorienting and almost
paralysing effects that violent protests have on an
academic institution like CPUT. The administration
was forced into crisis mode, making extraordinary
arrangements for the continuation of academic
processes and administrative services. Similarly,
academic staff had to work long hours, find creative
ways to communicate with their students and
eventually had to sacrifice their well-deserved rest at
the end of the year.
A major logistical operation was undertaken in early
2016 to enable the majority of CPUT students to write
their 2015 end-of-year assessments in large marquees

”

at Wingfield military base. Special arrangements were
made for the writing of examinations at other centres
around South Africa and even beyond the country’s
borders.
After relative calm during most of the year, violent
protests resumed in the fourth quarter of 2016. While
it seemed for a time that the disruptions might bypass
CPUT, they began in September and quickly reached
levels of violence that surpassed the experiences of
2015. Buildings and private vehicles were torched and
two security guards nearly lost their lives when the
Control Building on Bellville campus was set alight.
Senior management engaged with students and
others at all hours of day or night, in efforts to resolve
the tensions. Lecturers turned to the University’s
electronic learning management system (LMS), social
media, and other creative means to keep contact with
their students while administrative staff scrambled
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to keep services going from various off-campus
locations. Residence staff struggled to maintain a safe
environment for those students staying in residence.
A breakthrough was achieved on 22 October
when a special meeting of Council responded to
student demands formulated at a General University
Assembly two days earlier. However, it was not until

The progress of CPUT towards
realizing its mission as a University
of Technology is indicated by two
key performance indicators in 2016:
the proportion of academic staff with
Doctoral degrees and the research
publications of staff and students.

”

”

an agreement was brokered between University
management and various stakeholders on the
weekend of 12-13 November that a degree of
normality could be restored and staff could safely
return to the campuses. The agreement made
provision for the 2016 end-of-year assessments to be
conducted either in November-December, and/or in
January 2017.

The assessments were held on campus, although
in tense and sometimes challenging circumstances.
Following the successful conclusion of the
assessments, the main 2016 graduation ceremony,
comprising 16 different events over six days, was held
without incident at the end of March 2017. Altogether
8483 certificates, diplomas and degrees were awarded
in the 2016 academic year.
As part of the agreement with stakeholders in
November 2016, a Rapid Response Task Team was
set up. This ad hoc body comprised representatives
of students, management, unions, #FeesMustFall,
#OutsourcingMustFall, and external facilitators. It
played a significant role in interpreting the agreement
reached, monitoring its implementation, and dealing
with related issues that arose.
CPUT owes a debt of gratitude to all those,
whether part of the University or part of the broader

12

community, who rallied to keep the ship afloat during
the tempest of 2016 and guide it to calmer waters.
The stress on students and staff, the negative
impact on the academic project, and the damage to
the University’s reputation of violent and destructive
protests such as we have experienced in 2015 and
2016 is enormous. If such activity is to become the
norm, the future of CPUT (and public higher
education in general) will be at serious risk.
Simultaneous to the protests Council placed
the Vice-Chancellor, Dr Prins Nevhutalu, on special
leave in October 2016. Prof Louis Fourie, one
of the Deputy Vice-Chancellors, acted as ViceChancellor until Council appointed me as Acting
Vice-Chancellor from 31 October 2016.

PRINCIPAL MANAGERIAL AND
ADMINISTRATIVE ACHIEVEMENTS
REGARDING PLANS, GOALS AND
OBJECTIVES
Despite the disruptions to CPUT’s academic
programmes caused by the #FeesMustFall protests
towards the end of 2016, the University was able to
maintain its overall pass rate (or degree credit success
rate) at 78,9% against a target of 79%. This was slightly
down on the 2015 rate of 81%.
In terms of student enrolments, 2016 saw a reversal
of the declining trend of the past few years. The
University’s total enrolments exceeded 34,000 for the
first time, reaching 34, 455. This represents an increase
of 5,5% on the 2015 total of 32, 674.
Despite the increase in enrolments, the total fell
short of the target set in CPUT’s Annual Performance
Plan and its Student Enrolment Plan 2014-2019. The
2016 total was 5,8% short of the target of 36, 555. This
was an improvement on the shortfall in 2015 (7,6%), but
higher than the shortfall in 2014 (1,8%).
The University grasped the opportunity provided
by the Department of Higher Education and Training
(DHET) to revise its enrolment targets and some
of its other targets for the remaining three years of
the Student Enrolment Plan, 2017-2019. The total
enrolment target for 2017 has been revised downwards
in consultation with the faculties, from 37,623 to
33,631. At the time of writing, the total enrolments for
2017 stood at 34,384, 2,2% above the target.

The University is confident that it will be able to
manage its enrolments for the 2017-2019 period
within 2% or 3% of the revised targets, provided that
some degree of normality is restored to the Higher
Education system.
The progress of CPUT towards realizing its mission
as a University of Technology is indicated by two key
performance indicators in 2016: the proportion of
academic staff with Doctoral degrees and the research
publications of staff and students. The proportion of
permanent academic staff with a Doctoral qualification
reached 24,9% in 2016, well ahead of the target of
14%. The provisional total of 238 publication units
continued the strong growth of recent years, being
38% higher than the 2014 total of 172 units and 54%
above the 2016 target of 155.

MANAGERIAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
ASPECTS OF THE OPERATIONS OF
THE INSTITUTION, INCLUDING NEW
SENIOR APPOINTMENTS
A key senior post in the administration of CPUT,
that of Executive Director: Finance, was filled in
September with the appointment of Mr Peter du
Plessis. (Mr du Plessis is a Chartered Accountant with
24 years’ experience at Old Mutual and three years as
managing director of MPICO, a company listed on the
Malawi Stock Exchange.)
The Executive Director in the office of the ViceChancellor, Dr Octavia Mkhabela, was appointed as
Acting Executive Director: Human Resources, following
the departure of Mr Mikhail Mabuza in July 2016.

ACHIEVEMENTS OF THE
ADMINISTRATIVE STRUCTURES AND
RESOURCES
Across the entire ambit of programme and
course enrolment management, standards had to be
developed to allow for the monitoring of quality, service
delivery and efficiency. In addition, conversations
have been deepened on the capping of numbers and
enrolment targets set during the revised enrolment
planning. Business re-engineering in the online
registration has been an important step forward and
once the admissions process is largely automated, it
will provide for fairness and consistency across CPUT
campuses and faculties. The current dialogue can be
further strengthened with the debriefing sessions that

are a regular feature of the management of CPUT’s
academic administration.
Despite the intentions of the business process
engineering for improvement, there is high pressure on
staff because of multiple simultaneous demands e.g.
applications and registration taking place at the same
time because of walk-ins at the beginning of the year;
registrations and amendments happening at the same
time due to extended registration; HEMIS validations
and Internal Auditors make demands on staff at the
same time, to cite but a few examples.
Improved, timeous and accurate communication
by all stakeholders is critical in supporting the
improvement of the academic project. Different modes
of communicating, as well as an increased breadth of
communicating, have been instituted.

ADEQUACY OF
STAFFING LEVELS
The ratio of students to academic staff, expressed
as the ratio of full-time equivalent (FTE) students to
FTE academic staff, was 24:1 in 2016. This ratio has
stayed within the range of 23:1 and 24:1 for several
years. This ratio represents a steady trend, indicating
that the University is maintaining a consistent ratio of
students to staff as enrolments increase.
A major change to the University’s staff profile
occurred during 2016, as a result of the insourcing
demanded by the #FeesMustFall movement. Security
(541), gardening (27) and cleaning staff (347) were
incorporated into the permanent staff from November
2016, raising the total number of service workers
with 915 in 2016. The proportion of service workers
increased from 7,1% in 2015 to 26,5%.
The number of permanent academic staff
increased from 807 in 2015 to 842 in 2016, although
the proportion of academic staff declined from 40,6%
to 32,3% as a result of the incorporation of the service
workers.
It became clear to management during 2016
that the University’s salary bill was expanding at an
unsustainable pace. Management therefore initiated an
analysis of appointments against approved posts and
identified an unacceptably high number of temporary
appointments.
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EQUITY TARGETS
The insourcing of security and cleaning staff during
2016 has had a marked effect on the demographic
profile of CPUT’s permanent staff with regard to
population group, as is clear from the following graph:

The transformation of the University’s gender
profile has been slower. Between 2005 and 2016, the
proportion of women among all permanent staff rose
from 45,5% in 2005 to 49,2% in 2016.
Among permanent academic staff, the proportion
of women increased in the same period from 38%
to 42,9%. The proportion of
female Professors and Associate
Professors grew from 18,2% to
40%.
During 2016, at the insistence
of the Department of Labour,
CPUT revised its Employment
Equity Policy. Council approved
the policy in September, following
a consultative process with all
stakeholders, including the Joint
Union Task Team.

In the period since the merger that created CPUT
in 2005, the proportion of African staff has grown from
11% to nearly 50%, while the proportion of Coloured
and White personnel has declined.
In the case of permanent academic staff, the three
major population groups (African, Coloured, White) had
almost converged at about one third each by 2016, as
the following graph shows.
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An employment equity plan
was compiled, which was signed
by two of the three unions and
submitted to the Department of
Labour in October. A representative
Employment Equity Forum has been established,
which holds quarterly meetings.
The employment equity agenda has been infused
into recruitment and staff development initiatives. The
employment contracts of foreign nationals have been
amended to include a skills transfer component, and the
practice of appointing such staff permanently upon their
obtaining permanent residence status has been stopped.

QUALITY OF INFORMATION AVAILABLE
TO MANAGEMENT

is recommended to staff for planning and quality
assurance purposes.

The high-level enrolment planning, together with
the end of year marks administration process (MAS),
provide information to HoDs on the possible numbers
for admission. Reports are generated by the faculty
office from ITS (Adapt IT), the Enterprise Resource
Planning and Student Information System.

In addition to the above business intelligence, the
Centre for Innovative Educational Technology (CIET)
has embarked on an extensive learning analytics
project in order to provide an early warning system
with regard to students experiencing problems, as well
as to improve throughput and pass rates. Extensive
reports based on data extracted from ITS and the
Learning Management Systems (Blackboard) are
available to faculties, departments and lecturers.

It is also possible for HoDs to monitor the progress
of admissions and registration and align this with the
enrolment targets. Registration data feeds from the
ITS through to MIS, but there is a marked delay in
the registration of some students for various reasons,
but mainly due to the financial appeals process.
The faculty office generates reports for HoDs, for
the study period in which registration falls. These
reports however do not show the repeating student
numbers for that period, which increases the reliance
on departmental spreadsheets. This is one of the
many shortcomings of the ITS system and why CPUT
is currently busy with a serious evaluation of various
alternatives. A simplification of supporting processes
is required together with a closer integration of various
processes, before the turn over in real-time data will be
improved.
Separate systems must also be integrated and
student academic data, showing the currency,
ownership and status of data as well as, institutional
plans, quality review data, and improvement plans
impacting on capacity and resourcing, should be
linked and cascaded to the Registrar, departments
and units to allow for effective course and programme
enrolment management.
The HEDA application (Higher Education Data
Analyzer) enables the MIS Department to make
available to the CPUT community the HEMIS data
that is submitted annually to the Department of Higher
Education and Training, reported according to the
University’s Faculty and Department structure. The
MIS Department has selected a number of the most
useful reports to be included in the Data Queries
menu of the MIS Portal. In addition to the standard
queries, HEDA also provides a number of data cubes.
These cubes provide the end user with still more
flexibility with regard to accessing and presenting the
HEMIS data. Since this data reflects the official picture
of CPUT as audited and submitted to the DHET, it

STUDENT SERVICES AND EXTRACURRICULAR ACTIVITIES
Student Counselling conducted a very successful
orientation program with first year students in February
2016, as well as assisted students with individual
counselling and therapy; student welfare; career
development; learner support and student leadership
development. In addition they established several
support groups and initiated a residence outreach
program.
The Student Health Clinic provided health care
services to all students and also participated in the
orientation day to make students aware of body mass
index (MBI), diabetes, and hypertension.
The HIV/AIDs unit conduct regular health
awareness campaigns and HIV testing, as well as
counselling. The unit initiated a Peer Educators
programme in September 2016.
Sports, arts and culture supported various sport
codes during 2016. A highlight was when CPUT
joined Varsity Sport late in 2016. The support given
by Management to the Sport department raised the
level of commitment and accomplishment afforded to
a wide range of sporting activities towards promotion
of sport competitiveness and wellness for the entire
student population. The sporting facilities have been
put under scrutiny-areas of urgent intervention have
been identified which include improving the Bellville
Stadium.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH THE
COMMUNITY, ACADEMIC AND
SERVICE
In addition to several community projects in which
academics are involved, CPUT has made a concerted
effort in 2016 to support the community via short
courses under the leadership of Mr Mike du Plessis.

”
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The short courses of CPUT focuses
mostly on two segments within the
community we serve. Firstly, there is
the development of skills of those in the
workplace. In most cases their employers
sponsor their course fees since they have
a vested interest in them improving their
knowledge and skills to enhance their
effectiveness as employees. Examples
of such short courses include those in
Quality Control offered by the Industrial and
Systems Engineering Department, industry
specific courses for the maritime industry offered by
the Survival Centre in Granger Bay and customised
management and administrative courses offered by the
Graduate Centre of Management.
Secondly, there are the individuals who never had
the opportunity to study formally to obtain a tertiary
level qualification. For them short courses offer an
alternative to such studies. Being able to show that
they have successfully completed work related short
courses as part of their CV’s greatly enhances their
employability. The solution that short courses offer
them comes in the form of JIT (just in time) training and
the affordability of CPUT short courses.

CHANGING PATTERNS IN THE
PROVISION OF ACADEMIC COURSES
The development of new HEQSF aligned
qualifications relates to the 2020 vision and mission
of the institution to be at the heart of technology
education and innovation in Africa, by developing
programmes that are relevant and responsive to the
needs of a range of stakeholders including national
agencies, industry, alumni, staff and students.
Academic departments conducted a situation
analysis based on engagement with stakeholders
and benchmarked new qualifications nationally and
internationally at both a programme and subject level.
A holistic and engaged view has been adopted on
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developing these new HEQSF aligned programmes to
ensure that the set of graduate attribute statements
in CPUT’s Vision 2020 and strategic plan, as well as,
the philosophical approach adopted by the CHE in
the Framework for Qualifications Standards (2013)
are fore grounded in thinking. Incorporated into the
HEQSF aligned programmes is the philosophy of
graduate attributes as knowledge, skills and applied
competences, grounded in values, attitudes, critical

The impact of the HEQSF alignment
project in changing the strategic
focus and character of CPUT is likely
to be extensive in the next few years.

”

thinking, ethical and professional behaviour, which
encourage the capacity of a graduate to take what has
been learnt beyond the site of learning.
The extent of the impact of this project on
CPUT’s strategic thinking and direction must be
acknowledged. Already there has been extensive
change in the underlying principles and philosophical
approach that CPUT takes to the conceptualization
of qualification and alignment framework within
qualifications. The impact of the HEQSF alignment
project in changing the strategic focus and character
of CPUT is likely to be extensive in the next few years.

SELF-ASSESSMENT OF THE
ACHIEVEMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL IN
ATTAINING THE OBJECTIVES SET FOR
THE PERIOD UNDER REVIEW: (DETAIL
OF REALIZED ACHIEVEMENTS/SELFEVALUATION)
The stresses on management occasioned by the
#FeesMustFall protests of late 2016 were further
exacerbated by a disruption in leadership at the
highest level. The University Council placed ViceChancellor Dr Prins Nevhutalu on special leave from
21 October 2016. I was at the time a member of the
CPUT Council, but was asked to step off the Council
and take on the role of Acting Vice-Chancellor from 31
October 2016.

It is no easy task to step into the top managerial
and leadership post of a large and complex
organisation like CPUT at any time, much less at a
time of turmoil and uncertainty. I am grateful to all the
members of the senior management team at CPUT
for the support that they have given me in this task,
as well as the wisdom and experience that they have
brought to dealing with the extraordinary challenges
the University has faced.

The 2016 academic year has been deeply affected,
as was the case the previous year, by #FeesMustFall
disruptions in the fourth quarter. The implications of
the protests, whether good or bad, will be felt by the
University for many years to come.

registration fees. A new funding model is critical to the
sustainability of the University.
Notwithstanding the above challenges, the
University is making good progress in both the
academic and research spheres and continues to be
a University of choice for students entering the higher
education sector.
A major task of the University going forward will be
to rebuild trust between stakeholders. The accepted
social fabric of the University has been left in tatters.
Staff and students alike have been traumatised. So
in a sense the University has embarked on a long
journey towards healing. This calls for the commitment
and concerted effort of all members of the University
community.

While there have been many similarities between
the events of 2015 and 2016, the events in 2016 have
been characterised by a higher degree of violence and
destruction, and by attacks on both University and
private property.
A fundamental goal I had to pursue during the last
two months of the year was to try and restore normal
operations at the University. Assisted by my senior
management and skilled mediators we were able to
engage continuously with stakeholders until a major
breakthrough was achieved over the weekend of
12-13 November 2016. Although tough, the meeting
could build enough trust and consensus to end with
an agreement signed by all stakeholders to ensure the
restoration of peace on our campuses.

PROF J VOLMINK
Acting Vice-Chancellor

The agreement made possible the holding of
2016 year-end examinations in University venues.
Stakeholders agreed to postpone the examinations
for one week, to Monday 21 November (with the
exception of some that had already begun). The
objective was to create an environment conducive
to learning, including normal academic support and
access to the library, other learning amenities, and
wi-fi. All staff were to return to their workstations on
Tuesday 15 November. A withdrawal of the private
security would begin from the same date.
Some of the agreements reached have significant
financial implications for the University. These
include insourcing of workers, the establishment of
a debt relief fund, an end to financial exclusions, the
release of all qualifications, and an end to up-front
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Performance
Assessment
Report
This performance assessment
report relates to the University’s Annual
Performance Plan (APP) for 2016, as
submitted to the Department of Higher
Education & Training (DHET) in February
2016.
The DHET’s Implementation Manual for Reporting by
Public Higher Education Institutions notes that the University’s
performance assessment report should refer to “the key
performance indicators and targets as stated in the Annual
Performance Plan” (Government Gazette, No 37726, 9 June
2014).
The structure of CPUT’s 2016 APP differed from its
2015 APP, being influenced by a workshop arranged by
the DHET in September 2015 and templates for the key
performance indicators (KPIs) that the DHET provided.
The most significant change is that the KPIs are set at
the institutional level and not at the level of institution and
faculty, as in the 2015 plan.
The 2016 numbers quoted in this section are derived
from final and partly audited HEMIS data, as at 24 May
2017. The HEMIS (Higher Education Management
Information System) submission to DHET is the official
record of the University’s data.
The following tables reflect the success of the University
in meeting the academic targets set for 2016, as reflected
in the Annual Performance Plan.
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ACCESS
Key Performance Indicator

Target 2014 Actual 2014 Target 2015 Actual 2015

Target 2016

Actual 2016

Reasons for
Diviation

Please see
discussion below.

A. Access
Headcount Totals

33 781

33 186

35 343

32 674

36 555

34 455

First-Time Entering
Undergraduates

8 701

7 595

9 285

7 343

9 829

7 980

Foundation First-Time
Entering Ugs

1 290

1 141

1 295

1 211

1 295

1 297

Headcount Enrolements
Total UG

31 592

31 233

32 491

30 757

33 255

32 346

Headcount Enrolements
Total PG

1 575

1 831

2 258

1 783

2 786

2 006

Enrolements by Major Field
of Study

33 781

33 186

35 343

32 674

36 555

34 455

Science, Engineering, Technology

16 041

16 329

17 186

15 920

17 928

16 213

Business/ Management

10 407

10 943

10 665

11 146

10 894

11 549

Education

3 674

2 424

3 876

2 324

3 997

3 661

Other Humanities

3 659

3 490

3 627

3 284

3 997

3 661

165

272

133

334

149

304

% Female Students

54,0%

54,2%

54,0%

54,1%

55,0%

54,6%

% African Students

56,0%

59,1%

56,0%

60,4%

55,0%

62,7%

% Coloured Students

28,0%

27,2%

28,0%

26,8%

29,0%

26,2%

% Indian Students

1,0%

1,2%

1,0%

1,1%

1,0%

1,0%

% White Students

14,0%

12,5%

14,0%

11,7%

15,0%

10,1%

Distance Education Enrolments
Demographic Profile

CPUT’s total student headcount enrolment in
2016 was 34,455. This represents a reversal of the
declining enrolments of the previous three years. The
target for 2016, as reflected in the Annual Performance
Plan and the Student Enrolment Plan for 2014-2019
was 36,555. The total of 34,455 is 2,100 students or
5,7% below the target. (For the 2015 year, the total
enrolment of 32,674 was 7,6% below the target of
35,343.)
As reported previously and reflected in CPUT’s
communication with the Minister of Higher Education
& Training of 3 December 2014, the University’s main
problems with regard to meeting its enrolment targets

relate to delayed infrastructural development and the
slow pace at which new HEQSF-aligned qualifications
are approved.
During the course of 2016, CPUT took up an
invitation from DHET to review its enrolment targets for
the remainder of the planning period, 2017-2019. Input
was obtained from the Faculties on their projected
maximum enrolments and a new enrolment model
was produced. CPUT’s revised Student Enrolment
Plan was submitted to DHET in September 2016. The
lower enrolments are considered more realistic than
the previous projections; and from 2017 the University
should again be able to meet its targets.
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It should be noted, however, that the University has
not yet received formal confirmation from DHET that the
Minister has accepted the revised targets.
The downward trend in CPUT’s enrolment of firsttime entering undergraduates has also been reversed
in 2016. The total of 7,980 is 18,8% below the target of
9,829. The number of first-time entering undergraduates
enrolling for foundation (or extended curriculum)
programmes in 2016, 1,297, met the target of 1,295.
Given the overall shortfall in enrolments relative
to the target, the total undergraduate and total
postgraduate enrolments also fell short of the targets.
The enrolments by Major Field of Study are a cause
of concern. The overall objective of the University’s
enrolment planning is to grow the proportion of SET
(Science, Engineering, and Technology) students.
However, as reflected in the table, only the field of
Business and Management met or exceeded its target
in 2016. The total of 11,549 is 6,0% above the target
of 10,894. This is also the only Major Field of Study that
has shown growth in each of the past three years, while
the target has been zero growth.
The University’s Faculty of Business & Management
Sciences, which is the biggest Faculty, comes under
intense pressure every year to admit more students than
it has planned for. This is partly due to the admission
requirements for Business programmes being less
demanding than those for SET programmes. The
Faculty has made a serious effort to curb the growth
in enrolments in 2017; but it has again exceeded its
target, although by a smaller margin. Its current 2017
enrolments of 12,852 is 4,8% above its revised faculty
target of 12,262.
The total number of SET students in 2016, while not
meeting the target, did grow by 1,8% between 2015
and 2016, from 15,920 to 16,213.
In terms of the students’ demographic profile, the
proportion of female students inches up from year to
year. The proportion of female students in 2016, 54,6%,
effectively meets the target of 55%.
In terms of population group, there is steady
growth in the proportion of African students, while the
proportion of Coloured and White students is declining.
The proportion of Indian students hovers around 1% of
the total.
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SUCCESS
Key Performance Indicator

Target 2014 Actual 2014 Target 2015 Actual 2015

Target 2016

Actual 2016

Reasons for
Diviation

Please see
discussion below.

B. Success
Graduates UG

7 194

7 796

7 547

7 949

8 011

8 060

UG Degree Credit Success Rate

79.0%

79.7%

79.0%

81.6%

79.0%

79.5%

365

431

504

393

626

423

PG Degree Credit Success Rate

54.0%

62.9%

60.0%

62.6%

64.0%

57.7%

Overall Degree Credit Success
Rate

79.0%

79.2%

79.0%

81.0%

79.0%

78.9%

Science, Engineering, Technology

78.0%

76.8%

76.0%

79.5%

76.0%

76.7%

Business/ Management

80.0%

76.8%

80.0%

78.3%

80.0%

76.2%

Education

86.0%

92.8%

86.0%

92.6%

86.0%

92.3%

Other Humanities

83.0%

82.5%

83.0%

83.7%

83.0%

81.7%

1 292

1 356

1 366

1 301

1 680

1 292

Life and Physical Sciences

426

522

439

506

434

450

Animal Science

14

3

15

2

15

1

Human Health

658

689

721

686

750

628

Teacher Education

651

718

693

705

707

791

Graduates PG

Success Rate by Field of
Study

Undergraduate Output by
Scarce Skills
Engineering

The #FeesMustFall protests in the last quarter of
2016 (as in 2015) shook the University and seriously
disrupted year-end teaching and assessments. It took
a concerted effort by academic and administrative
sectors of the University to conduct and process
assessments and re-assessments, and to hold
successful graduation ceremonies at the end of March.
Considering the challenges, the student success rates
for 2016 compare well with previous years.
The overall pass rate (degree credit success rate)
for 2016 of 78,9% meets the target of 79,0%. The
undergraduate pass rate, at 79,5%, is slightly ahead
of the target of 79,0%; but the postgraduate pass rate
dropped from 62,6% in 2015 to 57,7% in 2016; which
was 6,3 percentage points below the target of 64,0%.

The number of graduating undergraduates in
2016, 8,060, is slightly ahead of the target of 8,011.
The 2016 postgraduates, 423, were 32,4% below the
target of 626. CPUT’s projections for its postgraduate
graduates were over-optimistic, projecting enrolments
in new HEQSF-aligned postgraduate qualifications that
were not yet been approved by 2016 as a result of the
slow approval processes referred to above.
Graduations by Major Field of Study were slightly
down on the 2015 figures; but met or exceeded the
targets in the case of Engineering and Education.
In terms of undergraduate graduates in scarce
skills areas, Engineering fell 388 graduates short of the
target. Teacher Education exceeded its target by 84
graduates.
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EFFICIENCY
Key Performance Indicator

Target 2014 Actual 2014 Target 2015 Actual 2015

Target 2016

Actual 2016

Reasons for
Diviation

C. Efficiency
Instruction/ Research
Professional Staff

785

774

813

807

835

842

FTE Instruction/Research Staff

1 003

1 013

1 039

1 063

1 068

1 086

% Staff with Doctoral Degrees

14.0%

20.0%

14.0%%

23.3%

14%

24.9%

% Staff with Masters Degrees

44.0%

48.1%

44.0%

47.8%

44%

47.7%

6

4

4

22.9

24.8

23.7

Headcount of Parmanent I/R
Staff

Number of NGap Staff
Ration of FTE Students to FTE
I/R Staff

24.8

24.2

The number of permanently employed academic
staff has grown sharply from 774 in 2014 to 842 in
2016. The 2016 total is 0,8% above the target of 835.
The proportion of permanent academic staff with
a doctoral qualification rose to 24,9% in 2016, well
above the target of 14%. The proportion of staff with
a Masters qualification, 47,7%, is also ahead of the
target of 44%.
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24.8

Please see
discussion below

The slight decline in the proportion of permanent
academic staff with a Masters qualification over
the period 2014-2016 can be expected to gather
momentum over the next few years as more and more
staff obtain doctoral degrees.
The ratio of full-time equivalent students to full-time
equivalent academic staff hovers around 23% to 24%
in the years 2014 – 2016. At 23,7% in 2016, the ratio
is slightly below the target of 24,8%.

RESEARCH OUTPUT
Key Performance Indicator

Target 2014 Actual 2014 Target 2015 Actual 2015

Target 2016

Actual 2016

Reasons for
Diviation

D. Research Output
Publication Units

146

172

151

213

155

238

Publication Units per Parmanent
I/R Staff

0.19

0.22

0.19

0.26

0.19

0.28

Masters Graduates

109

121

122

137

149

166

Doctoral Graduates

14

17

16

19

19

17

The final audited figures for CPUT publications
units are not available at the time of writing. The
provisional figure of 238 units is 11,7% above the
2015 total of 213 and 53,5% above the target of 155.
Given the rapid increase in publication units in recent
years, more challenging targets have been set in the
University’s revised Student Enrolment Plan, for the
years 2017 to 2019. The 2017 target is 262, rising to
325 in 2019.

MR T MOLAOLWA		
Deputy Chairperson of Council

Please see
discussion below

The number of Masters graduates in 2016, of 166,
is 11,4% ahead of the target of 149. However, the total
number of Doctoral graduates, 17, is 10,5% down on
the target and the 2015 total of 19.

PROF J VOLMINK
Acting Vice-Chancellor
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Report on Corporate
Governance
1.

Strategic aims
Sustainability and Efficiency:
Curriculum
Teaching and Learning
Student Experience
Research and Innovation

INTRODUCTION
For governance and operations, the Council
and Management of the Cape Peninsula
University of Technology, are guided by her
vision, mission, strategic aims and shared
values.

Values
Ubuntu
Mutual Respect
Equity
Innovation
Accountability
Excellence and Efficiency

Vision
To be at the heart of technology
education and innovation in
Africa.
Mission
• We will build a University that
is highly efficient, sustainable
and environmentally
conscious
• We will be known for the high
quality of its teaching and
learning and the relevance of
our curriculum
• We will strive to create a
vibrant, enabling and well
resourced living and learning
environment for its students
• We will enhance and develop
the quality and effectiveness
of its research and knowledge
production

2

STATEMENT ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
The following statement is made to assist
readers of the financial statements to gain an
understanding of the governance procedures
applied by the Council of the Cape Peninsula
University of Technology (CPUT) (hereinafter
referred as “the University).
The University embraces King III Corporate
Governance principles and applies the principles
contained in the King III Report. The University
is committed to the principles of accountability,
transparency, responsibility, independence,
fairness and social responsibility as advocated
in the King III Report. During the period under
review, the Council adopted consistently
emphasised the application of the Code of
Conduct for Council and Committee members,
the Policy on Conflict of Interest for Council
members as well as the Council Charter.
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The application of and compliance with the King
III recommendation and principles is monitored
by the Audit and Risk Oversight Committee of
Council.

3.

COUNCIL
During the period under review, the current
Council chaired by Mr Mbulelo Bikwani with Ms
Benjamin-Swales as the Deputy Chairperson,
who were both elected through a democratic
process in 2014, finished the second year of
their four (4) tenure in August 2016. The term of
office of the current Council is therefore due to
expire at the end of August 2018.
		
The different backgrounds, from which Members
of Council come, have ensured that the CPUT
has the requisite expertise to run a complex
institution efficiently. Council appointed members
to various Council Committees based on their
area of expertise and competencies relative
to the Terms of Reference of a particular
Committee of Council, as well as the balance
in terms of gender and equity. In areas where
there is a deficiency of the requisite skills
and competencies, Council has, through the
Governance and Ethics Committee, appointed
external people to serve on relevant Committees
without being Members of Council. The internal
membership also provides space for the voices
of employees and students to be heard in
governance. Representivity, the core tenet of
democracy, is thus practiced.
However, Council has experienced a number
of resignations over the past years across the
categories of appointments. Council, through
the recommendation of the Governance
and Ethics Committee was able to fill these
vacancies. Where the vacancy was as a results
of a Council appointee, Council sourced person
with requisite experience either from the external
members who serve in Committee or from
the general public. If the vacancy was from a
structure or stakeholder, Council submitted a
form written request to the relevant stakeholder/
structure for either elect or appoint another
member to fill the vacancy.
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4.

COUNCIL AND COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL
The Council is guided by the CPUT Statute and
applicable national legislation and it is directed
by the University Strategic Plan (Vision 2020) in
its governance function. Under these two guiding
frameworks, Mr Bikwani, Chairperson of Council,
helps the Council to focus on its mission through
four quarterly ordinary Council meetings. These
meetings are supplemented by at least two
Council Breakaways one scheduled in June of
each year to consider the mid-term performance
review and consideration of the budget for the
following year. The end of the year Breakaway
considers the final performance assessment
and approval of the performance plan for the
following year. To ensure that the core business
of the University, which is teaching, learning
and community engagement, is placed at the
forefront of the Council agenda, Council invites
all the Deans of Faculties to attend the Council
breakaways in their capacity as key drivers of the
core business.
The Senior Management under the leadership
of the Vice-Chancellor oversees the everyday
running of the University and reports and
accounts to the Council on the University
operations. There is a clear separation of roles
between the Chairperson of Council and the
Chief Executive Officer, the Vice-Chancellor,
which is expressly indicated in the Council
Charter as well as in the Code of Conduct for
Council and Members of the Council. However,
Council, as part of the process of dealing with
leadership and management matters, had to set
up a Council Task Team to reflect and submit
recommendation, primarily on the diverse and
complementary roles and responsibility of a
chairperson of council and a vice-chancellor as
well as the relationship between the two officials.
The secondary brief of the Council Task Team
was the submission of recommendation on
whether a chairperson of council had the power
and authority outside Council as well as whether
a vice-chancellor accounts to the chairperson
of council or to council. The findings and the
recommendations of the Task Team were wholly
accepted and endorsed by Council.
As prescribed in the Statute, Council
membership consists of 60% external Members
who are neither employees nor students of

including meetings of Council and particularly its
Committees meetings. The 2015 #FeesMustFall
student protests obliged Council to convene
a special meeting at the beginning of 2016 to
deal with outcomes of the students protests
and to ensure that the University had a proper
academic plan and resources in place to attain
its strategic objectives as well as the delivery of
quality services. Most of the Council and Council
Committee meetings, particularly during the
fourth quarter were held in external venue due to
the University shutdown during the strike action.
The following are some of the strategic matters
that we considered by the January 2016 Special
Council meetings:
• Financial implications and cost saving
measures as a results of concession made
by the University on #FeesMustFall
demands;
• 2015/2016 Plan on Key academic
activities;
• Engagement Strategy (with internal and
external stakeholders)
• Annual Performance Plan and Mid-term
report
• Student Allegations against the ViceChancellor
• Institutional Forum Advice on proper
Communication Strategy and protection of
the image of the University

the University. The rest is made up of internal
council members comprised of representative
from academic and non-academic sector,
senate, executive management members and
student representatives.
The functions of Council and the governance
issues reserved for Council are outlined in
the CPUT Statute and the Higher Education
Act, 1997 (Act 101 of 1997), as amended.
The Committees of Council supplement the
work of Council and enabled better-focused
engagements on issues.
The Council meets four times a year, and is
advised on various issues by the following
committees:

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Executive Committee
Governance Committee
Audit and Risk Oversight Committee
Finance Committee
Human Resources Committee
Physical Planning Committee
Student Services Committee
Social and Ethics Committee
IT Governance Committee
Search and Selection Committee for
Senior Appointments
Remuneration Committee

Besides the #FeesMustFall issues, the Council
had to deal with leadership and management
matters that had the potential of affecting
the functioning of Council as well as proper
management and administration of the
University. To this end, Council set up a number
of Council Task Team to deal mainly with these
leadership and management matters. During the
year under review, Council met a record ten (10)
times, made up of four (4) scheduled meetings,
five (5) special meetings and one (1) workshop.

Each of these Council Committee is chaired by
an external member of Council. In constituting
the new Committees, the Council ensured that
the majority of members who serve on these
Committees are members who are neither
employee nor students of the University. All the
committees were fully constituted with the terms
of reference that are reviewed annually. The list
of Council and Council committee meetings,
including the composition of each committee,
length of service of each member as well as
their respective attendance at those meetings is
attached on page 6 of the Report.
The year under review was quite different in
terms of number of Council and Committee
meeting that were convened by the University.
The national student protest action, towards
the end of 2016, on #FeesMustFall, affected
the operations and activities of the University,

The information below provides an outline of the
roles and responsibilities of each Committee of
Council:
4.1

The Executive Committee of Council (EXCO)
This committee of Council consists of the
Chairperson of Council, Deputy Chairperson
of Council, Chairpersons of all committees of
Council and the Vice-Chancellor.
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The mandate of the committee is:
i. To conduct such matters, generally deemed
to be of an urgent nature, as is necessary
between meetings of Council, and conduct
such specific matters, and with such
authority, as is delegated to it by the Council.
ii. Consider and make recommendations on
any aspect of standing resolutions of the
Council and of the Statute and Regulations
of the University (existing and new), and
on such other matters referred to it by the
Council or the Vice-Chancellor.
iii. Review and set agendas (annual work plan)
for Council meetings and for annual Council
planning sessions in consultation with
Executive Management.
iv. Propose the Council annual business
plan, including setting annual objectives
and targets in consultation with Executive
Management for submission to Council for
approval.
v. Identify priority issues consistent with the
business plan and Council resolutions.
vi. Receive and review on a quarterly basis
progress against agreed institutional
objectives and targets.
vii. Review with Executive Management any
corporate legal action (other than normal
operational legal action), any significant
litigation, claim or contingency which could
have a material effect on the going concern
of the University, and bring such matters to
the immediate attention of the Council.
viii. Plan and develop the Vice-Chancellor’s
annual contract based on the mutually
agreed goals approved by the Council in the
Vice-Chancellor’s annual objectives and the
expectations set out in the Vice-Chancellor’s
job description.
ix. Review the performance of the ViceChancellor on behalf of the Council. The final
results of the evaluation shall be documented
by the Chair and acknowledged by the ViceChancellor and the Council.
During the year under review, EXCO considered
the Vice-Chancellor performance contract for
the period 2015/2016, which was unfortunately
not concluded due to various challenges
related to leadership and management matters.
The EXCO recommended to Council the
setting up of a Council Task Team to engage
with various internal stakeholders about

28

the situation and environment on campus,
particularly with regard to the leadership and
management matters based on the number of
complaints that were received by Council via
the Chairperson of Council on the leadership
challenges, in particular the Vice-Chancellor. In
the same breath, EXCO also recommended
the introduction and piloting of a 360 degree
performance appraisal at senior management
level with effect from 2016.
Once again EXCO considered the renaming
of the Cape Town Campus into “District Six
Campus” and noted that the University was
ready to conduct the naming ceremony in
September/October 2016 and to make the
event as memorable as possible. However,
due to leadership issues, the ceremony could
not take place in 2016. After noting that there
was no firm report ever submitted to Council on
Climate and Culture Survey outcomes, EXCO
had mandated management to revisit this matter
and submit a firm report to Council on the
implementation plan on the Climate and Culture
Survey outcomes. EXCO also approved the
formation of Spin-Off Companies as well as the
formal establishment of a University Committee
that would deal with Spin-Off Companies.
EXCO, based on its observations and reports
from other Council Committees, noted with
concern the proliferation of special meetings,
cancellation and/or postponement of scheduled
meetings as well as the length of Council and
Committee that normally went beyond the
stipulated times. The above had huge financial
implications for the University. The causes for
the above mentioned challenges was mainly
attribute to late submission of documents,
poorly prepared documents as well as
inadequate or ambigous information submitted
by management. EXCO recommended for the
observance of meeting protocols and decorum,
which were stipulated in the Statute and
conducting of meetings based on good practice
as well as established meetings rules and
procedures. EXCO further recommended that
management improve and refine its processes
and systems with regard to submission of
adequate, precise and concise information to
Council in order to make informed decisions.

During the year under review, EXCO
considered the termination of appointment of
two senior management members through
the disciplinary measures and that a third
senior manager was also going through a
disciplinary hearing towards the end of the
year under review. Based on the endless
leadership challenges, EXCO recommended
a session facilitated by an external person
between management and Council for dialogue
on governance, leadership and management
matters.
With regard to the #FeesMustFall student
protest, EXCO convened a number of special
meetings to consider the report of the VC about
the situation on campus, including the planned
activities to salvage the academic year and
to ensure that some operations were being
undertaken by the University. EXCO contributed
to the following matters:
• Proposal for the engagement of mediators
to chair the General Assembly comprising
of all University stakeholders;
• EXCO be part of the General Assembly
Stakeholders meeting on behalf of
Council; and
• Every effort to be made by all stakeholders
to ensure that the University returned to
normalcy.
Since the Vice-Chancellor was put on a special
leave, EXCO exercised its delegated powers and
appointed Prof John Volmink, the Council and
Chair of Finance Committee, as acting ViceChancellor with effect from 01 October until 31
December 2016. This decision of EXCO was
ratified by Council at its meeting convened on 26
November 2016. Due to this appointment, Prof
Volmink was given leave of absence as Council
member and Chair of the Finance Committee
for the duration of his appointment as the acting
Vice-Chancellor. EXCO gave the acting ViceChancellor specific mandate to bring stability
to the University and ensure the resumption of
academic activities. The acting Vice-Chancellor
was also mandated to ensure that there was
consistent and continuous engagements with all
the University stakeholders. Through his sterling
leadership, the acting Vice-Chancellor, was able
to achieve ground-breaking agreement with

the students and other University stakeholders
with the assistance of the mediators and some
of his executive management members. Due
to this brokered agreement, the academic
and administrative activities resumed after a
shutdown period of close to a month.
4.2

Physical Planning Committee
During the period under review, the Committee,
at some stage, experienced challenges,
particularly with regard to the provision of
the necessary and adequate information for
decision-making process as well as nonavailability of the relevant line managers at some
of the normal scheduled meetings.
The main responsibility of the Committee is to
consider recommendations from management
on institutional infrastructural development plan
and the development of a campus master plan
as well as the following:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Policy and procedure formulation
Accommodation Planning
Project Planning
Service Level Statements
Property Investment Strategy
Funding Proposals for infrastructure
development

The Committee considered the management
recommendation on funding for urgent backlog
maintenance that had a potential of affecting
the operations of the University, in particular
the academic project. The Committee
extensively address the viable insourcing
models and submitted its inputs to the Finance
Committee and Council for consideration of
the financial implications. Besides the above
matters, the Committee further considered and
recommended to Council the following matters:
• The proposal for the urgent replacement
of the roof of one of the Wellington Campus
buildings;
• Delegation of authority to the VC to
reprioritize the approved budget taking into
account exceptional circumstances and
emergency situations and report back to
Council via the Finance Committee; and
• Management conduct an inspection on
the state of all University buildings and their
insurance cover.
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4.3

Finance Committee
The Committee had a difficult time of ensuring
that a break-even budget for the following year
was presented to Council for approval. Following
on the concessions, which had financial
implications, made by the University as a results
of the 2015 and 2016 #FeesMustFall student
protest and 0% increases on 2016 fees, the
Committee recommended an annual budget
with a deficit for 2017. Although the Committee
had recommended a 2016 break-even budget,
the decision was however, reevaluated by the
Committee based on the submission from
management for a R50m deficit budget during
the year under review in order to address a list of
priority and urgent operational matters such as
infrastructure and related maintenance matters.
Based on the government announcement
on the capping of 2017 fee increases to
8%, fee increases for 2016, the Committee
recommended an 8% fee increases for 2017
out of 12% that was required for a break-even
budget. Council, based on the Committee
recommendations, mandated management to
come up with a plan on cost-saving measures
to ensure the long term sustainability of the
University and optimal provision of quality
services.
The Committee considered and made
recommendations to Council on the following
matters:
• University purchase a New Policy with
Sanlam as Alternative insurer for former
Peninsula Technikon (Pentech) Postretirement medical aid liability plan asset;
• Establishment of an investment committee
as a sub-committee of the Finance
Committee to advise and guide Council on
investment matters;
• Financial clearance limits for 2017
registration process;
• the disinvestment of R250 million to fund
the University operations from January to
March 2017 with specific conditions set by
the Committee; and
• Financial implications of the viable
insourcing models.
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The Committee further ensured that acceptable
accounting systems were adhered to through
the design and use of appropriate Policies.
4.4 Audit and Risk Oversight Committee
The Audit and Risk Oversight Committee is
chaired by an independent member of Council
who is neither an employee nor a student of the
University. The Committee has a minimum of five
Council members. Council, through the Council
Membership Committee, appointed three
independent external members with the requisite
skills, experience and qualifications to serve
on the Audit and Risk Oversight Committee
of Council. The Committee has the following
specific responsibilities:
a) Internal Audit
The Committee is responsible for overseeing
of the internal audit, and in particular, the
Committee must:
i. Be responsible for the oversight of the
appointment, performance assessment
and/ or dismissal of the internal audit
service provider.
ii. Review and approve the annual internal
audit plan and audit charter.
iii. Receive feedback on the outcomes of
internal audits that have been performed.
iv. Be informed on the risk management
and corporate governance practices as
assessed by internal audit.
v. Ensure that the internal audit service
is subject to an independent quality
assurance review every five years and
complies with the Institute of Internal
Auditors’ International Professional
Practices’ Framework.
vi. Ensure that there is a formal process
of follow-up of significant findings and
that Internal Audit reports on nonimplementation of agreed management
actions or delays in implementing
remedial actions.
vii. Review and resolve significant differences
between management and internal audit.
viii. Obtain assurance on the independence
of the internal audit service.
ix. Review the internal audit service budget
on an annual basis.
x. Recommend the appointment of
internal and external auditors to Council
and subsequently to the Auditor-

General’s Office for confirmation of the
appointment.
b) External Audit
The committee is responsible for
recommending the appointment of the external
auditor and overseeing the external audit
process. In this regard, the committee must:
i. Oversee the external auditor for
appointment process by management as
aligned with the practical implementation
of the Public Audit Act.
ii. Approve the terms of engagement and
remuneration for the external audit
engagement.
iii. Monitor and report on the independence
of the external auditor in the annual
financial statements.
iv. Define a policy for non-audit services
provided by the external auditor.
v. Approve the contracts for non-audit
services to be rendered by the external
auditor.
vi. Ensure that there is a process for the
audit committee to be informed of any
Reportable Irregularities (as identified in the
Auditing Profession Act, 2005) identified
and reported by the external auditor.
vii. Review the quality and effectiveness of
the external audit process.
c) Risk Management Oversight
and Internal Controls
The committee is an integral component
of the risk management process. The
committee must:
i. Oversee the development and annual
review of a policy and plan for risk
management to recommend for Council
approval.
ii. Monitor policy implementation and plan
for risk management by means of risk
management systems and processes.
iii. Make recommendations to Council
concerning the levels of tolerance and
appetite and monitor risks that are
managed within the levels of tolerance
and appetite, as approved by Council.
iv. Oversee that the risk management plan
is widely disseminated throughout the
University and integrated in the day-today activities of CPUT.

v. Ensure that risk management
assessments are performed on a
continuous basis.
vi. Ensure that frameworks and
methodologies are implemented to better
anticipate possible unpredictable risks.
vii. Ensure that management considers and
implements appropriate risk responses.
viii. Ensure that Management continuously
monitors risk.
ix. Liaise closely with the internal auditors
and management by exchanging
information relevant to risk.
x. Express the committee’s formal opinion
to Council on the effectiveness of the
system and process of risk management.
xi. Review reports concerning risk
management to ensure that they are up
to date, comprehensive and relevant for
inclusion in the annual report.
xii. Oversee financial reporting, internal
financial controls, fraud, and general IT
risks as it relates to financial reporting.
xiii. Ensure that a combined assurance
model is applied to provide a coordinated
approach to all assurance activities,
addressing all the significant risks facing
CPUT, and monitoring the relationship
between the various internal and external
assurance providers.
d) IT Governance
i. The committee must ensure that the
IT risks are adequately addressed and
receive appropriate assurance on controls,
considering the impact of IT in relation
to financial reporting and the impact on
significant operational activities.
ii. The risks that CPUT faces by virtue of
its use of IT, as well as the associated
controls used to mitigate those risks,
should be assessed and clearly placed
in an institution-wide risk management
framework. This framework should be
periodically reviewed and a discipline of
continuous auditing must be considered
to provide assurance on these controls to
provide greater coverage and efficiency.
e) Fraud and Litigation
i. The committee receives reports on
matters of fraud and the results of
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forensic investigations into cases of
fraud. It will also consider management’s
actions in dealing with these cases
of fraud and receive assurance from
management with regard to the
compliance with relevant legislation
regarding the incidents of fraud and
actions to recover monies and assets.
ii. The committee will receive feedback on
CPUT’s fraud risk profile.
iii. Management will provide feedback on
areas of litigation that pose a risk to
CPUT in terms of financial impact and/ or
reputational consequences.
f) Compliance with Laws and Regulations
i. Management will provide AROC with
regular updates on CPUT’s compliance
with laws and regulations.
ii. Independent assurance will be provided
by the internal and external auditors based
on their annual audit coverage plans.
The committee worked closely with the Finance
Committee to jointly recommend the Annual
Report, Financial Statements and the Auditors’
Reports. Its responsibility to monitor was mainly
executed through the work of internal and
external auditors made up of practitioners from
independent and accredited auditing companies.
The internal and external auditors have
unrestricted access to the committee and attend
all the meetings of the committee, which are
held at least four times a year. The committee
took a decision that all Executive Members of
management also attend all the meetings of
the committee as observers due to the nature
of the business discussions at committee
meetings. The Office of the Auditor-General has
a representative who also attends the committee
meetings on a regular basis.
The committee considered the reports of internal
auditors as per the approved Annual Internal
Audit Plan and submitted firm recommendations
to Council for effectiveness of the University’s
internal control and procedures for identification,
assessment and risk reporting.
The committee, together with senior
management, was instrumental in the
appointment of the Director: Internal
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Audit. One of his functions is to follow-up,
specifically, on audit findings in consultation
with the relevant executive manager. Due
to the critical nature of the Internal Audit
Reports on Student Residences as well as
on Human Capital and Payroll, the committee
submitted the two reports to Council as well
as to the respective committees of Council for
consideration.
4.5

Human Resources Committee
This Committee concerned itself with matters
relating to staffing and working conditions. It
monitored and evaluated the implementation of
the HR strategy, policies, practices and systems
that guide institutional employment practices in
line with national labour relations laws.
The HR Committee operated under very difficult
circumstances during the year under review.
The Committee could not deal with some of
the critical matters due to lack of information or
inadequacy of information as well as sometimes
inaccurate and/or discrepancies in information
provided by the relevant leadership. As a results
of the leadership challenges, the Committee
afforded the recognized labour unions an
opportunity to engage on matters of interest
for the labour. When the service of the relevant
line manager were terminated, Council, on the
recommendation of the Committee, formally
appointed Dr Octavia Mkhabela, the Executive
Director: Office of the VC, as acting line manager.
Despite, the challenges experienced by the
Committee and with the vital support of the
acting Executive Director: HR, the Committee
considered and either recommended to Council
or approved the following matters:
• 2016 salary agreement with the Unions;
• Renewal of the performance contracts of
senior management whose term of office
were expiring; and
• Harmonisation of senior management
conditions and terms of service.
The HR Committee considered and
recommended to Council a thorough review of
its terms of reference and delegation of authority
in order for the committee to appropriately
exercise its oversight and monitoring function by
evaluating, holistically, the performance of senior
management as well as development of proper

practicable and feasible, an even workload for all
Council Members. The Committee noted with
concern the resignation trends at Council and
proposed that an exit interview be conducted in
order to inform Council of the main reasons for
the resignation of Council members.

support systems, training and development
programmes for senior management.
4.6

Governance Committee
The Committee consider the roles and terms
of reference of the both the Governance
Committee and the Social and Ethics Committee
and subsequently recommended to Council
the merger of the two committee due to the
complementary and sometime overlapping
roles. The Committee acknowledged that
good corporate governance was based on
sound ethical culture and behaviours. The
merger of the two committees was approved
by Council and the newly merged committee
was named as the Governance and Ethics
Committee of Council and considered and made
recommendation to Council on the following
matters:
• The filling of vacancies on Council and
Council committees and reallocation of
members to various committees based on
their skills and expertise;
• Training of Council members on meeting
protocol, procedures and time
management during Council and Council
committee due to the length of Council
and some Committee meetings;
• Corrective measures against the senior
leader who published an article that
appeared on the New Age newspaper,
which brought the University into disrepute
and possible tarnished the image of the
University;
• Code of Conduct for Senior Management
• The designing and approval of an Exit
Questionnaire for members who resign
from Council or whose term of office
expired;
• Review of the CPUT Statute and the
Project Plan for the review thereof; and
• Procedures for the nomination and election
of a Chancellor.
The Committee monitored the attendance of
meetings of Council and Council Committees
and made recommendations to Council on
corrective measures to be taken where there are
concerns. The Committee further monitored
the committee workload of Members and
advised Council on means of achieving as far as

Besides the above, the Committee is set, as
the per Council mandate, to play a critical and
proactive oversight, monitoring role and ensuring
that the Institution’s ethics is managed effectively
(as recommended in principle 1.3 on the King
Report III on Governance for South Africa, 2009),
including –
• leadership demonstrating support for
ethics throughout the Institution;
• a strategy for managing ethics that is
informed by the negative and positive
ethics risks the Institution faces;
• ethical standards are articulated in a code
of ethics and supporting ethics policies;
• structures, systems and processes are in
place to ensure that Council,
management, employees, students and
supply chains are familiar with and adhere
to the Institution’s ethical standards;
• ethics performance is included in the
scope of internal audit and reported on in
the Institution’s integrated annual report;
• ethics is imbedded in the organisational
culture.
The Committee played an instrumental role in
the review of the Policy for payment of honoraria
to external members of Council with special
consideration of social, economic and political
factors. The Committee further interrogated
its role and mandate and the linkages and
integration with other institutional structures
dealing with matters of ethics, particularly in the
academic component.
4.7

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee was established
by Council to:
i. Oversee the setting and administering of
remuneration at senior management levels in
the University.
ii. Oversee the establishment and
implementation of a remuneration policy that
will promote the achievement of institutional
strategic objectives and encourage individual
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performance at senior management levels.
iii. Make recommendations to Council on all
senior management remuneration levels
and annual increments in accordance with
institutional affordability.
iv. Review and monitor the remuneration policy
outcomes in terms of implementation and the
set objectives achieved.
v. Ensure the development and implementation
of a performance management system
for senior management, and the annual
application of the principles of this system.
vi. Consider the results of the Vice-Chancellor
and other senior managers’ performance
evaluations for determining remuneration.
vii. Select an appropriate comparative group of
higher education institutions when comparing
remuneration levels for senior management.
viii. Make recommendations to Council on the
payment of honoraria and other incidental
expenses to external members of Council.
ix. Oversee the preparation of the remuneration
report for inclusion in the annual report, and
recommendations to Council for whether it:
a) Is accurate, complete and transparent.
b) Provides a clear explanation for
how the remuneration policy has
been implemented, including use of
appropriate benchmarks.
c) Provides full disclosure of each individual
executive manager and external Council
member’s remuneration.
x. Oversee the annual review of the
remuneration policy.

4.8

a) Executive Director: Infrastructure
Development and Facilities Management
b) Executive Director: Office of the ViceChancellor
The Committee further recommended a number
of procedures to further streamline, improve and
refine the appointment process.
Council only approved the recommendation
for the appointment of an Executive Director:
HR, Mr Monde Mondi at its meeting held on
26 November 2016 to assume duties on 01
January 2017. With regard to the Deans’
positions, Council mandated the committee to
re-scope the advertisements for the positions
and consider the equity profile of the University.
Council further resolved the that performance
of the Committee, including its roles and
responsibility be reconsidered by the relevant
Council Committee, including the involvement of
the HR Committee in the process leading to the
appointment of senior management.

The committee recommended to Council the
rolling out of the performance management
system for senior management levels and
determined the salary packages of senior
management for Council approval. The
committee also dealt with the Policy on
Remuneration for Senior Management as well
as the harmonisation of conditions of service
and benefits for senior management. Both
matters would be finalised during the following
reporting year.
The committee further recommended to Council
the reviewed Policy on Payment of Honoraria
to external Council members as well as terms
and conditions for payment of such honoraria,
based on the extensive research and benchmark
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exercise undertaken by management.
Search and Selection Committee for Senior
Appointments
The committee was established to deal with
appointments of Senior Management, which is
the function of Council. Council reconfigured
the composition of the committee to ensure
inclusivity and representivity. The committee
is comprised of: the Chairperson of Council,
Deputy Chairperson of Council, Chairperson
of the HR Committee, two external members
of Council, one Senate representative, one
Institutional Forum representative, one Student
Representative Council representative, the
Vice-Chancellor, two members of management
as full members, as well as representatives
from each labour union as observers.
The committee makes recommendations
to Council on the appointment of Senior
Management, after consultation with Senate
and the Institutional Forum. During the year
under review, the committee concluded and
recommended the following appointments to
Council for approval:

4.9

Student Services Committee
As prescribed in the Higher Education Act, Act
101 of 1997 and the CPUT Statute, the Council

established the Student Services Committee
chaired by one of the external members of
Council to:

implemented an effective IT governance
framework to enable the organisation to
deliver value from IT, whilst optimising cost
and managing risk.

a) Perform the functions of the structure
contemplated in the Act to advise on policy
in respect of student services within the
university.
b) Ensure provision of non-academic services
to students that create an environment
conducive for student success.
c) Promote a safe, conducive and academically
stimulating life and learning environment
that encourages personal development and
student satisfaction

During the year under review the Committee
considered and recommendations on the
Business Continuity Strategy and Plan,
particularly following the #FeesMustFall student
protest. The Committee considered various
mechanisms and strategies to optimize the
utilization of IT during the University shutdown as
a results of the student protest. The Committee
further considered the following matters:
• Follow-up on Internal Audit findings
• Disaster Recovery Plans and Business
Continuity measures
• Review of the current ERP system
• Development of relevant code of ethics for
staff on IT environment

The Committee is comprised of Council,
management and SRC members and meets
four times a year. During the year under review,
the Committee considered and recommended
the following matters to Council, which were
subsequently approved:
• the Residence Placement Policy
• Student Housing Strategic Plan
• Changes to the Student Rules and
Regulations
• Review of Policy on Picketing and
Demonstrations
These policies and procedures were to be
further recommended the following year after
extensive consultation with the student body and
structures.
4.10 IT Governance Committee
Council applied the recommendations of the
King III Report by establishing the IT Governance
Committee of Council to:
To support the Council in the governance of
the University by ensuring that the strategic
asset of IT and its related risks and constraints
are well governed and controlled to ensure
that IT supports the strategic objectives of the
organization;
• To consider the leadership and
organisational structures and processes
ensuring that the IT sustains and extends
the University’s strategies and objectives; and
• To assist Council in their governance
role by ensuring that the University has

The Committee had a close working relationship
with and reported on its activities, particularly
on risk element to the Audit and Risk Oversight
Committee.
5.

STATEMENT OF CONFLICT MANAGEMENT
Council had not mandated any specific
committee to deal with conflict management and
resolution within the University, as was the case
in previous years. Council decided to source
external independent mediators or arbitrators,
through a Council-approved process, whenever
there was a need to resolve any dispute or
manage conflict that threatens the governance,
management and operations of the University
as well as to manage and resolve disputes
arising within the University in a constructive,
transparent, fair and effective way for all
involved. All matters should be group-specific
matters, that is, not individual cases, referred
to the Council for consideration and must have
gone through the due internal processes and
channels. The decision or resolutions of the
committee would be final and would be tabled at
Council for information in a summary form.
At the beginning of the year under review, the
student protest around the issues of financial
exclusions was resolved by the Chairperson of
Council and the Acting Vice-Chancellor. There
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were no academic days lost since the protest
happened during the registration period. There
was also no reported damage to property
and no additional costs to the University
were incurred as a result of the student
protest. However, during the unprecedented
#FeesMustFall student protest, there was
serious damage to the University property and
equipment and many academic days were
lost due to the student protest action. Despite
Council satisfying a number of the student’s
demands, the protest action continued
unabated. This resulted in the University
shutting down and postponing the examination
to January the following year. The University
incurred exorbitant costs on security measures
in an attempt to protect the University property
as well as students and staff.
6.

The following are some of the fundamental
principles covered in the code:
6.1

The principle of democratic governance
A member of Council must act in a manner,
which is respectful of and in accordance
with the principle of democratic governance.
Council should also create an environment that
encourages the participation of all members of
Council.

6.2

The principle of accountability
Members of Council are directly accountable to
one another, as Council, for the performance
of their functions and duties and indirectly,
through Council, to the staff and students
of the University and to the public at large.
Council is accountable and responsible for the
performance and affairs of the University.
The principle of transparency
Council accepts that it is accountable to those it
serves. It is important to inform its stakeholders
of its decisions timeously. A member of Council
is expected to perform their functions and duties
in a manner that reflects the highest ethical
conduct, which encompasses integrity, honesty
and openness. Decisions made should be
objective and without undue influences.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR COUNCIL AND
MEMBERS OF COUNCIL
In September 2011, the Council approved
the revised Code of Conduct for Council and
members of Council to guide itself in its workings
as well as the conduct of individual Council
members as they carry out their duties.
The purpose of the code is not intended to
inhibit the actions of a member of Council, but
to ensure that where there is a conflict between
any such actions and the best interests of the
University, the interests of the University will
take precedence. The purpose of this code is
to provide a member of Council with a set of
principles as to what is regarded as appropriate
conduct by a Council member in performing his/
her functions and duties.
This code should be seen as a means of
ensuring self-regulation by a member of Council
and as an instrument for taking action with
regard to inappropriate conduct on the part of a
member of Council.
In exercising their powers and performing their
functions, Council Members must at all times:
i. Serve the interests of the University and its
staff, students and the public at large with
the highest degree of integrity, objectivity,
equity, fairness and ethics as befitting persons
appointed to such office.
ii. Enhance the public image of the University
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as well as interpret the community to the
University.
iii. Support the Vice-Chancellor in the fulfillment
of objectives and policies of the Council.

6.3

6.4

The principle of respect for the rights of others
A member of Council must respect the rights of
others.

6.5

The principle of objectivity
A member of Council must perform their
functions and duties fairly and not allow
prejudice, bias or the influence of others to
override their objectivity. Any actual or potential
conflict of interest must be avoided, but must
also be seen to be avoided.

6.6

The principle of cooperative governance
Council commits itself to the notion of
cooperative governance, which is defined as “a
social contract in which diverse parties agree
to suspend particular interests in the interest of
reconstruction and development.” Council must

work with other University structures and in
doing so accepts the spirit of academic freedom.
6.7

6.8

The principle of collective responsibility
A member of Council is collectively responsible
for resolutions of Council and must abide by
such resolutions. A member representing
Council in another University structure must
represent resolutions of Council in that structure
in the best possible manner.
The principle of fiduciary responsibility
A member is appointed to Council to serve
both the interests of the University and the
public. On acceptance of the office, a member
of Council becomes a trustee for the benefit of
the University and the public they serve, which
gives rise to an obligation on their part to fulfill
their responsibilities solely with the purpose of
promoting the best interests of the University
and the public.
Fiduciary duties of a member of Council entail,
inter alia, the duty to:
1.3.8.1 Act:
• In the best interest of the University
by exercising reasonable care, skill
and diligence in the conduct of their
responsibilities
• Legally, honestly and within their
powers
1.3.8.2 To refrain from misusing information.
1.3.8.3 To act in a manner that creates a
conflict between duty and personal
interest.
1.3.8.4 A member of Council who acquires
special knowledge or information by
virtue of a confidential or fiduciary
relationship with another is not free to
exploit that knowledge or information
for their own personal benefit. The
broader principle is inherent in the
nature of the fiduciary relationship that
prohibits a Member of Council from
extracting secret profits from their
position of trust.

6.9

The principle of independence and integrity
A member of Council undertakes at all times to
apply their mind to the matters before them in an
open and independent manner with integrity and
without undue influence, fear or favour.

6.10 The principle of confidentiality
A member undertakes to honour at all times
the trust and confidence bestowed upon them.
They undertake not to disclose inappropriately
and without authority deliberations or decisions
of Council in a manner that will be detrimental to
the University.
As per previous Council decision, it is the
responsibility of the Chairperson of Council
and the Vice-Chancellor to communicate to
the University community, matters of Council,
including decisions taken after each meeting.
6.11 The principle of respect for the privacy of the
personal affairs of members of Council
Council respects the privacy of the personal
affairs of a member of Council. Notwithstanding
above-mentioned, a member of Council should
at all times conduct themselves in a manner that
will not be prejudicial to the best interests of the
University.

7.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST: POLICY,
PRINCIPLES AND RULES APPLICATION TO
COUNCIL MEMBERS
Council has approved a Conflict of Interest Policy
that applied to all Council and Council committee
members and regulates the declaration of
Conflict of Interest by Council members
concerning potential and real conflicts of interest
in the conduct of the affairs of the University.

MR T MOLAOLWA		
Deputy Chairperson of Council

MR N NTSABABA
Registrar
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Council Statement
on Sustainability
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For the institution to be sustainable, the
issue of fees will have to be considered very
seriously in future in the absence of a radical
change to the level of government funding.

The sustainability of CPUT is
dependent on political, economic,
social and technological factors on
both a national and institutional level.
At the national level, the funding formula has not kept
pace with the increased costs of providing higher
education services. The Higher Education sector is
affected by international cost drivers such as journals,
equipment, IT systems and the exchange rate, which
push academic inflation beyond the domestic inflation
rate. Revised funding models are being considered,
but these will not necessarily improve the funding
position going forward. Alternative and creative ways
of funding in the future need to be developed with the
aim of creating self-sustainability.
In response to the erosion of government funding over
the years, the universities responded by increasing
student fees. This had the unintended consequence
of making higher education unaffordable for many
poor and middle class students and gave rise to the
#FeesMustFall movement, which caused considerable
damage to the sector’s reputation and infrastructure.
In 2015 an intervention at national level reduced the
fee increase for 2016 to zero. Universities were still
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expected to fund the difference between the additional
funding that DHET provided and the existing fee base
which has put an unbearable strain on our university
resources. The effect of the zero fee increase in 2016
has resulted in the University’s financial sustainability
ratio deteriorating further whereby its total reserves
will only be able to cover less than one year of its total
annual recurrent expenditure.
In 2016 a further intervention at national level saw
the fee increase set at 8% for 2017. Relief from the
increase was provided to all students with family
incomes of less than R600 000 per annum. The
success of this intervention is inconclusive at this
stage.
Added to the challenge of a zero% increase in tuition
fees was the national call for insourcing of services
that were currently outsourced. This has the potential
to negatively affect the financial sustainability of CPUT
if handled recklessly. The cost implications of the
insourcing of services can only be done after careful
consideration of the broader financial impact of the
particular service.
At an institutional level, the university has reported
deficits over the past two years, as evidenced by the
financial reports. The main contributor to this being

the zero fee increase and other financial demands
that have impacted negatively, namely the reduced
recoverability of student debt, reduced investment
income due to forced disinvestment and the cost of
damages incurred through the level of violence protest
experienced in late 2016.
The level of violence at CPUT in 2015 and 2016
has had a detrimental effect on the image of the
university which has resulted in a reduction in the
level of donations and other external income received.
For CPUT to regain its standing, attention needs
to be given to it improving its image amongst its
stakeholders. Once this is addressed then new and
creative strategies will be required for the raising of
funds.
The university must conclude the consolidation of its
faculties on particular campuses by 2020 to avoid
the current rental commitments and additional staff
costs related to the incomplete consolidation. The
challenging nature of the funding environment relating
to the consolidation plan is a concern in this regard
and will need to be addressed as a matter of priority.
The current cost of administrative staff, being both
support services and faculty, comprises about 50%
of the salary bill. This cost needs to be controlled to
become less than 45% of the salary cost and the
employment of academic personnel, who will have
a positive effect on the success rates, should be
prioritised. All of the above is being addressed through
the Establishment Table Reprioritisation project.
Demand for access to CPUT remains strong. The
number of first-year, first-choice applications received
by the University has fluctuated between 33,000 and
35,000 over the past five years, with a total of 34,168
applications being received for the 2016 academic
year (compared with 34,257 in 2015). The total
number of student enrolments passed the 34,000
mark for the first time in 2016, with 34,455 students
enrolling.
After two years of #FeesMustFall disruptions, the
overall pass rate (the degree credit success rate)
dipped in 2016 after showing small increases the
previous four year. The overall pass rate was 78,9%,
compared with 80,9% in 2015. While a reduction on
the previous year, the 78,9% pass rate effectively met
the University’s target of 79,0%.

The recurriculation of CPUT qualifications continued
in 2016. However, the rate at which the new
qualifications were approved by the CHE (Council on
Higher Education) was very slow. The lengthy approval
processes associated with the introduction of new
qualifications on the Higher Education Qualifications
Sub-framework (HEQSF) poses a challenge to the
University over the next few years.
The last year in which non-HEQSF qualifications
may be offered is 2019. Thereafter, the progression
of students from undergraduate to masters level
will change for Diploma students. Instead of
progressing from the Diploma to the one-year
B.Tech degree, such students will be required to
complete a one-year Advanced Diploma and a
one-year Postgraduate Diploma. This change may
have a significant negative effect on the supply of
students for postgraduate studies after 2020. In the
meantime, it is a major challenge for the University
to complete the curriculation of the new Advanced
Diploma and Postgraduate Diploma qualifications in
the time available, quite apart from the slow approval
processes.
The sustainability of CPUT is dependent on
the participation and involvement of all of its
constituencies. We are all responsible and liable for
the future sustainability of the university and this is not
achievable without the long-term partnerships with the
community and city.
CPUT’s tuition fees have remained amongst the lowest
in the country and yet the institution operates in the
same sector as other higher Institutions in the Western
Cape where the costs are significant. For the institution
to be sustainable, the issue of fees will have to be
considered very seriously in future in the absence of a
radical change to the level of government funding. This
includes a reconsideration of a transport and other
levies to enable the university to continue to provide
services for students, so that this can be self-funding
and not subsidised by Council Controlled Funds.

MR T MOLAOLWA		
Deputy Chairperson of Council
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Report of the
Audit and Risk
Oversight Committee
CPUT’s Audit and Risk Oversight
Committee (AROC) of Council has
a specific mandate and its terms of
reference specify that members of the
committee must be independent of the
University. The Committee is chaired
by an external member of Council. The
terms of reference have been approved
by the CPUT Council.
The committee has an independent role and is
accountable to Council. The committee does not
assume the functions of management, which remain
the responsibility of the Vice-Chancellor, Deputy ViceChancellors, Executive Managers, officers and other
members of senior management.

COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEE
AND ATTENDANCE
The committee currently has nine members,
five external Council members and four additional
members, all independent of the University. The
members of the AROC have a variety of skills, ranging
from business, auditing, legal, governance, information
technology, risk management and financial services.
Meetings are held at least four times a year and
are attended by the external and internal auditors and
appropriate members of the Executive Management of
CPUT.
Arising out of each AROC meeting is a chairman’s
report to Council indicating matters requiring Council
attention for noting, approval or action.

The Audit and Risk Oversight Committee have the following objectives:
• To ensure that the interests of all stakeholders are properly protected in relation to
financial reporting and internal control.
• To provide Council with an independent assessment of the University’s financial
position and accounting affairs, with the objective of providing further assurance of the
quality and reliability of the financial information used by Council and contained in the
documents approved by Council for issue on behalf of CPUT.
• To keep under review the effectiveness of CPUT’s internal control policies and
procedures for the identification, assessment and reporting of risks.
• To ensure that CPUT has implemented an effective policy and plan for risk
management that will enhance the university’s ability to achieve its strategic objectives.
• To ensure the CPUT’s disclosure regarding risk is comprehensive, timely, and relevant.
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Audit and Risk Oversight Committee member

Date of meetings
19/02/2016

27/05/2016

07/08/2015

25/10/2015

K Patel (Mr) (Chair)*

Present

Present

Present

Present

R Benjamin-Swales (Ms) (Vice-Chair)*

Present

Apology

Present

Present

C Blair (Mr) *

Present

Present

Present

Apology

O Bailey (Mr) **

Present

Apology

Present

Apology

N Dhevcharran (Ms)*

Present

Present

Present

Present

R Lebethe (Ms) **

Present

Present

Present

Present

R Bredenkamp (Mr) **

Present

Present

Present

Apology

B Mbomvu (Ms) *

Present

-

-

-

N Mphuthi (Ms) **

Present

Present

Present

Present

* Members of Council
** Independent members – not in the employ of CPUT
*** Ms Mbomvu, a member of Council was requested to serve on the IT Governance Committee of Council and
attended her last AROC meeting in February.

SUMMARY OF MAIN ACTIVITIES
The Audit and Risk Committee complied with key
aspects of its mandate.

INTERNAL AUDIT
The Internal Audit Director developed a 3-year
Internal Audit strategy and a Risk based Internal
audit plan for the year ending 31 December 2016,
for consideration and approval by the Audit and
Risk Oversight Committee (AROC) and Council. The
plan was informed by the Internal Audit Director’s
assessment of significant risks and the internal audit
universe. Additional engagements took place with
Executive Management, the Chairperson of AROC,
the co-sourced Internal audit service provider (SNG)
and the external auditors (KPMG) to agree on the
proposed areas of coverage to avoid possible
duplication of activities.
SizweNtsalubaGobodo (SNG), the current cosourced internal audit service provider to execute
the 2016 Internal audit plan under the guidance and
supervision of the Internal Audit Director.
All the scheduled audits approved in the 2016
Internal audit plan were completed and reported to
AROC by February 2017. The following serves as
summary of the audits assignments completed for
the period under review.

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Budgeting and Forecasting Review
Internal Control and Risk identification Gap
Analysis Financial Aid.
Contract Management
Business Continuity Programme: High Level
Review
Information Technology Software Licensing
Management Review.
ITS: Student Management Application
Policy Development
Quality and Risk Management Committee:
Governance Review.
Ad hoc Request: Squatting at Residences
Short Course Management.
Transformation
Research Technology Innovation Partnership
Library Asset Management
Infrastructure Development, Facilities and
Maintenance
Human Capital

Quarterly Internal audit follow ups were
conducted and in general, the University’s
performance in respect of the resolution of findings
previously reported has been satisfactory. The Audit
and Risk Oversight Committee monitors that action
plans are developed to resolve any finding and any
unresolved findings remains on the agenda until it is
fully resolved.
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EXTERNAL AUDIT

The total amount of control deficiencies has
reduced from 43 in 2015 to 27 in 2016.

KPMG was appointed in 2013 to fulfill the external
audit function at CPUT. Their appointment is renewed
annually after review and evaluation by AROC and
before commencement of the audit by obtaining
approval from the Auditor General in terms of the
Public Audit Act.

The committee has ensured that appropriate
management attention was obtained, to ensure that
items raised in the management letter, are addressed.
The committee requires written progress reports at
each quarterly meeting.

AROC’s review of the external audit function included the following activities:
•

August 2016 AROC review of KPMG Management Comments Letter (MCL) ‘2015 audit’
findings as well as management’s action plans.
October 2016 discussion of KPMG’s audit plan, strategy and budget for the audit of CPUT for
the year ending 31 December 2016.
Reviewed KPMG audit planning documentation for the audit of CPUT for the year ending 31
December 2016 (‘2016 Audit’);
Monitored timetable of audit activity to ensure that CPUT meet deadline dates for finalisation of
2016 Annual Financial Statements and submission to DHET.
Reviewed the draft Annual Financial Statements and Annual Report at a Joint meeting of
Finance and Audit committee on 19 May 2017.
Considered the Final Annual Financial Statements at the AROC meeting of 27 May 2017 for
recommendation to and approval by Council.

•
•
•
•
•

Final Management Letter Points (MLPs) –
Audit for the year ended 31 December 2016
The audited MLPs were submitted in May 2017
by KPMG. External auditors’ recommendations have
been discussed with relevant departments and the
management responses received by KPMG have
been incorporated in their full report.
Summary of findings – 31 December 2016
The table below shows the findings per risk grade
as compared to the prior year’s external audit findings.
Risk grade

Number of
Number of
findings (2016) findings (2015)

Significant deficiency

2

11

Control deficiency

5

11

Other matter

16

24

Significant deficiency

3

2

Control deficiency

1

1

Other matter

0

4

Predetermined objectives
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RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
The Committee reviewed and recommended the
following reports in this Annual Report to Council for
approval:
•
•

Report on Internal Administrative/
Operational Structures and Controls; and
Report on Risk Management.

The university was unable to appoint a Risk
Manager during the financial year and the Director
– Internal Audit, has overseen the risk management
activities as an interim measure. A Strategic Risk
Identification and assessment workshop was
facilitated by SNG which produced the 2016 CPUT
Strategic Risk register. The 2016 Strategic Risk
register was presented to AROC and approved
by Council. Emerging risk areas were considered
by QARM and AROC during the financial year
and mitigating controls were implemented by
management to reduce the risk exposure to the
University.

AROC has re-initiated the process of recruiting
a Risk manager in the 2017 Financial year to assist
with the implementation of the Risk management
framework, to develop risk management policies and
processes and to facilitate workshops and training
regarding risk management practices at CPUT.
Annual Performance Self-assessment
The Annual self-assessment process for the 2016
year was initiated by the Director – Internal audit in
terms of good corporate governance in terms of
evaluating performance of committees. The selfassessment questionnaire was compiled by Internal
audit and circulated to all members for completion.
An action plans will be developed to address areas of
improvement identified during the assessment.

Conclusion
The Audit and Risk Oversight Committee reports
that it complied with its terms of reference and is
satisfied that the CPUT has continued to maintain
and manage internal control systems effectively in a
manner that ensures the achievement of institutional
objectives and operational goals. This was obtained
by means of a risk management process, combined
assurance approach, as well as the identification
of corrective actions and enhancements to internal
processes and controls.
The committee therefore recommended the 2016
Annual Report to Council for approval.

MR T MOLAOLWA		
Deputy Chairperson of Council

MR K PATEL
Chairperson: Audit & Risk Oversight Committee
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Report on Internal
Administrative/
Operational Structures
and Controls
SYSTEMS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS
AND PROCESSES
The Cape Peninsula University of Technology
(CPUT) maintains systems of internal control over
financial reporting and the safeguarding of assets
against the unauthorised acquisition, use or disposal
of such assets. Such systems are designed to
provide reasonable assurance to the management
and the Council regarding an operational environment
that promotes the safeguarding of a public higher
education institution’s assets and the preparation
and communication of reliable financial and other
information.
The systems of internal control designed
by management include: the documentation
of organisational structures, the assignment of
responsibilities and the establishment of policies
and procedures in key areas. These, in turn, are
communicated throughout the university. To further
enhance the control environment, the University
conducted two workshops to review the Policy
development processes to refine the controls in
developing and reviewing polices.

KNOWLEDGE AND INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY
CPUT applies modern information systems such
as virtualization, storage redundancy and managed
backup applications in key central data centres. The
development and implementation of these information
systems is performed in accordance with defined
and documented standards to achieve efficiency,
effectiveness, reliability and security. Accepted
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standards are applied to protect privacy and ensure
control over all data, including disaster recovery
and “back up” procedures. Password controls are
strictly maintained with users required to change
their passwords frequently. There are regular Internal
audit reviews to ensure that there are no clashes in
user access rights and that the basic internal control
concept of division of duties is maintained. Systems
are designed to promote ease of access for all
users and the systems are sufficiently integrated to
minimise duplication of effort and ensure minimum
manual intervention and reconciliation procedures.
The development, maintenance and operation of all
systems are under the control of competently trained
staff.
In utilising electronic technology to conduct
transactions with staff and third parties, control
aspects receive scrutiny and procedures are
designed and implemented to minimize the risk
of fraud or error. The institution is continuously
striving to improve on its operations to achieve the
necessary efficiency, effectiveness, reliability and
security. The Information Technology and Governance
Committee provided additional oversight in terms
of the implementation of the IT Strategy and the
control environment was further strengthened by the
development of the IT Charter.

INTERNAL AUDIT

Internal audit monitors the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal control systems through the
Risk based Internal Audit Coverage plan discussed
with management and approved by the Audit
and Risk Committee. Internal audit findings and
recommendations are reported to management

and the Council via the Audit and Risk Oversight
Committee. Corrective actions are taken by
management to address control deficiencies and
other opportunities for improving systems. The
internal audit process includes a follow-up of agreed
management action plans, the results of which
are then reported to the Audit and Risk Oversight
Committee on a quarterly basis. The Council,
operating through its Audit and Risk Oversight
Committee, provides oversight of the internal control
process.

some outstanding items in terms of controls deemed
to be inadequate or ineffective. These matters were
reported to the management, the Audit and Risk
Oversight Committee and Council for relevant action.
The recent protest action has impacted on the time
in resolving certain of these outstanding matters. The
progress with addressing such issues will be reviewed
in subsequent follow-up audits and duly reported.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Audit and Risk Oversight Committee reviewed
the report on internal administrative/operational
structures and controls in the year under review at its
meeting of 26 May 2017, which meeting quorated and
the documentation for approval by the Committee was
circulated with the meeting agenda in advance with
due notice.

There are inherent limitations to the effectiveness
of any system of internal control, including the
possibility of human error and the circumvention
of controls. Accordingly, even an effective internal
control system can only provide reasonable
assurance with respect to the reporting of financial
information and the safeguarding of assets.
Furthermore, the effectiveness of an internal control
system can change with circumstances. In instances
where it is detected that internal control systems
have failed, it should be determined whether further
investigation is required.

AUDIT AND RISK OVERSIGHT
COMMITTEE
The committee received reports from the Internal
Auditors on various internal audit projects at each of
its four meetings during the year. The internal audit
coverage is based on the 2016 – 2018 rolling threeyear plan and therefore not all processes are covered
in each year. Internal audit also performed Internal
control reviews and IT audits during the year. Follow
up audits were conducted on all previously reported
findings. Management undertook to address the
findings and identified the corrective action plans with
the responsible persons and due dates.

STATEMENT BY AUDIT AND RISK
OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE

Mr K PATEL
Chairperson: Audit & Risk Oversight Committee

MR V JONES
Director: Internal Audit

STATEMENT OF ASSESSMENT OF
INTERNAL CONTROLS
The Cape Peninsula University of Technology has
assessed its internal controls as at 31 December
2016 in relation to the criteria for the effective internal
control over financial reporting as described above.
Reports to the Audit and Risk Committee by both the
internal and external auditors indicate that there are
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Report on Risk
Identification and
Management
RESPONSIBILITY
FOR RISK MANAGEMENT

THE GOVERNANCE
OF RISK MANAGEMENT

The Council is ultimately responsible for risk
management, which includes evaluating key risk areas
with mitigating factors and ensuring that processes for
risk management and systems of internal control are
implemented.

The University embarked on an enterprise risk
management process with the development and
adoption of a Risk Management Framework in 2012.
In 2014 a decision was approved to create a Risk
Manager position to assist with the implementation
of the Risk Management Framework, develop risk
management policies and processes and to facilitate
workshops and training regarding risk management
practices followed at CPUT. The position is still
vacant as a suitable candidate was not yet found.
The Director: Internal Auditing, whom assumed duty
1 October 2015, is currently overseeing the function
until the position is filled.

At CPUT financial and non-financial risk resides
with two committees. The oversight for financial risk
resides with the Audit and Risk Oversight Committee
(AROC) which reports to Council. The non-financial
risks reside with the Quality Assurance and Risk
Management Committee (QARM) a joint committee
of Senate and Council, approved in 2012. AROC has
oversight over all risks in CPUT.
QARM meets quarterly and comprises of the ViceChancellor (Chairperson), the Registrar, representatives
from Council, Senate and the Student Representative
Council, Executive Management, Deans, Executive
Directors, the Director and Manager of Quality
Management, Director of Internal Audit and the
Directors of MIS, Fundani CHED, and Legal Services.
The committee oversees and reviews the
development and management of the risk framework
and receives progress reports from management,
who are responsible for developing action plans and
managing risk, within their area of responsibility.
The reporting of the QARM committee is to
AROC, Senate and Council and when necessary,
QARM serves as the approval body for external
reporting to the Council on Higher Education and
the DHET, on issues concerning quality and nonfinancial risk.
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RISK IDENTIFICATION
AND ASSESSMENT
A strategic risk identification and assessment
workshop was conducted in May 2016 to identify risks
that could have an impact on the University achieving its
strategic objectives.
Mitigating action plans were identified to reduce the
impact of the identified significant risks and were adopted
by the Management Committee in July 2016. The Audit
and Risk Oversight Committee recommended the 2016
Institutional Strategic Risk register to Council for adoption
on 28 November 2016.
Progress regarding the implementation of action
plans are monitored by the Quality and Risk Management
Committee (QARM) and overseen by the Audit and Risk
Oversight Committee (AROC).

CPUT’S RISK PROFILE
Twelve high level risks were identified, aligned to
strategic goals, accepted by CPUT and assigned to
risk owners. The inherent risks identified in terms of
impact and probability can be summarised as follows:
• Inadequacy of the funding model (including overdependence on subsidy and fees, specifically as a
result of #FeesMustFall).
• Socio-political instability resulting in University
disruptions.
• Lack of research and Innovation optimisation
resulting in lost opportunities to generate additional
third stream income.
• Possible non-achievement of strategic goals due
to the lack of inclusive organisational culture at the
University;
• Risk of a decrease in academic standards due
to poor integration and consolidation across all
campuses which could also lead to increased
operating expenses due to non-integration of
various campuses at a business level.
• Risk of Increase in Dropout rates, decrease in
throughput and success rates resulting in the nonachievement of agreed DHET targets and loss of
income.
• Ineffective business model resulting in ineffective
co-ordination between academic units, support
units and student affairs.
• Lack of financial resources to fund high performing
students who cannot afford fees during the
academic progression.
• Failure to attract and retain world class researchers
and scarce skills due to scarcity in the market and
the inability to retain well qualified staff.
• The instability of the IT infrastructure may adversely

affect a number of areas, including the academic
programmes (e-learning and class tests), research
initiatives as well as the administrative operations of
CPUT.
Action plans to mitigate the high-level risks by
managers were implemented during the year and
progress was reported and monitored at QARM.
In addition to the University’s strategic risk register,
additional workshops were facilitated by the Director,
Internal audit to identify operational risks in the
Legal Services Directorate. Internal audit consulting
assignments were performed in the Infrastructure
development, Facilities and Maintenance and
Financial aid departments to identify operational risks.
Action plans to mitigate the identified operational
risks to an acceptable level were identified and
progress was reported to QARM and AROC.
Progress on operational Risk registers for Faculties
and departments were monitored at QARM.

MANAGEMENT AND
CONTROL OF RISKS
Aside from the inherent management obligation
that resides with each risk owner and manager at
CPUT, the risk register is used to provide AROC with
insight into areas to include in the internal audit plan
for the following year. This is an ongoing management
process and is supplemented by audits conducted
internally at CPUT, when required. Management of risk
is therefore integrated into the daily activities of CPUT.
Emerging risk areas were also considered by
management and AROC during the financial year and
mitigating controls were implemented to reduce the
risk exposure to the University. It is important to note

47

2016

ANNUAL REPORT

that the call for decolonized free higher education
and the student protests in relation to this demand
in November 2016 had a severe impact on many
operational aspects of the University. The following
emerging risks were identified:
• Safety and Security of students and staff
• Reputational damage to the image of CPUT
• Damage and loss of entire university buildings
• Theft of institutional assets during campus closure
• Loss of productivity due to staff working from
remote sites
• Postponement of exams resulting in the non
– completing the academic programme as
scheduled
• Financial risks in relation to in-sourcing of certain
staff
• Unforeseen expenditure during protest action

CONCLUSION
Great strides have been made in the ongoing
identification of emerging risk and the mitigation
thereof. CPUT still needs to embed a culture of
integrated risk management University wide.
As part of the improved management of risk and
increased risk awareness, the focus in 2017 will be
to appoint a Risk Manager for CPUT, reviewing the
Risk Management Strategy and developing detailed
Operational Risk Registers for all departments. As
the understanding of risk and risk management
develops further, CPUT strives to be more proactive
in its approach to risk management, to enhance the
efficiency and effectiveness of business and academic
processes and to ensure the optimum economical
utilisation of the university’s resources.
The development of risk appetite and risk tolerance
as advocated in King IV will be considered for CPUT as
well as the development of a combined assurance plan.

Mr K PATEL
Chairperson: Audit & Risk Oversight Committee

MR VINCENT JONES
Director: Internal Audit
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Report of the
Chairperson of the
Institutional Forum
The IF started the year with Mr Xolani Vanda,
the Deputy Chairperson acting as the Chairperson,
as the Chairperson, Prof Binza was on Special
leave. The Chairperson then left CPUT during the
first term in 2016. In the meeting in June 2016 a
new Chairperson, Prof Thobeka Mda, was elected
and Mr Xolani Vanda retained his seat as Deputy
Chairperson. The IF resumed its normal activities
and held formal meetings after a number of 2015
meetings were either held off-campus during student
protests, and/or were not quorate. The operations
of IF were once more disrupted and a workshop
planned for October 2016 had to be cancelled
because of the student protests again, which this
time had resulted in staff working from home as it
was not safe to be on campus. On the other hand,
the IF played a significant role in various fora, where it
was represented and provided advice when sought.

NTEU
•
Marian Pike
•
Hendrik Theys

2016 MEMBERSHIP

STUDENTS
•
P Mncamase
•
Mbaliyezwe Madikizela

MANCOM
•
Thobeka Mda – Chairperson (June 2016 )
•
Octavia Mkhabela (replaced Prof Binza who left
the university during the first quarter 2016)
ADMIN STAFF:
•
Xolani Vanda – Deputy Chairperson
•
Vacant since B Sebake left CPUT
CPUEU
•
Johnny Basson
•
Noleen Leach

NEHAWU
•
Alvino Moses
•
Siyabulela Thwalani
SENATE
•
Liiza Gie
•
Mandisa Silo
COUNCIL
•
Benson Ngqentsu
•
Thato Molaolwa
ACADEMIC STAFF
•
Vacancy (Prof Hendrickse resigned)

CONVOCATION
•
Mandla Ntlanganiso
= 16 Total active members in 2016
SECRETARIAT
•
Lindie Jantjies
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NUMBER OF MEETINGS HELD IN 2016

CONCLUSION

Special IF meetings
•
23 November 2016
•
06 December 2016

Regarding the vacancies which had not been filled for
months, IF decided at the end of 2016 that, since the
current IF membership was left with one year (2014
– 2017), IF would continue with the active members,
and invite representatives at the end of the cycle –
August 2017.

•
•
•

03 March 2016
15 June 2016
15 August 2016

FORMAL ADVICE GIVEN TO COUNCIL
1.

Appointment of Executive Director: Finance –
June 2016
Advice on Student Crisis – October 2016
November 2016 – Advice on the selection of:
a. Executive Director: Human Capital
b. Dean of the Faculty of Business and
Management Sciences
c. Dean of the Faculty of Engineering
d. Dean of the Faculty of Health and Wellness
(Council did not accept the IF advice on the
selection of the Deans, but wrote formally to
IF explaining its decision. The process was
then put on hold)
November 2016 – General Comments on the
Senior appointments selection process

2.
3.

4.

ADVICE ALSO GIVEN TO:
•

•

•

Employment Equity Forum (established in 2016)
– advice on the university employment equity
targets;
HR Policies: Staff Education, Learning and
Development Policy, CPUT Induction Policy,
Medical Aid Policy, and Renewal of Fixed Term
Contracts for level 1 to 4
Broad Stakeholder Meeting – established during
student protests, and facilitated by external
mediators

OTHER IF ACHIEVEMENTS
•
•

Completion of the document: IF Code of conduct
(Standard of Care)
IF Terms of Reference
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The active members have proved to be committed
and they all want the best for CPUT, and as a result
the IF discussions are robust, and suggestions for
improvement of conditions and operations at CPUT
have been the focus of the IF meetings.

PROF THOBEKA MDA
Chairperson: IF

Senate Report
for 2016
The Senate convened quarterly meetings during
2016 primarily to consider the following:

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Senate Committee reports
Senate Executive Committee reports
Submissions from the Faculty Boards
Recommendations for Ad Hominem
Promotions
Reports on success rates and
throughput rates
Policy proposals relating to the
academic project
Admission and Readmission Criteria
Research matters

The Executive of Senate met on a monthly basis to
deal with matters that required urgent attention such
as appointments of academic staff, applications for
recognition of prior learning, applications for exemption
and recognition of subjects, approval of examiners
and moderators, requests for mark alterations,
request for changes to the academic structure and
quality assurance self-evaluation and programme
accreditation reports.
The minutes of the Senate Executive meetings
were ratified at the quarterly meetings.

1. COMPOSITION OF SENATE:
1.1 Senate comprised:
• Members of the Executive Management, with
the Vice-Chancellor as Chairperson and the
Registrar as Secretary

•

•
•
•
•
•
•

Representatives of the academic faculties
(Deans, Associate Deans, Heads of
Departments)
Professors and Associate Professors
Directors of academic support units
Representatives of the academic employees
Representatives of the non-academic
employees
Representatives of the CPUT Council
Representatives of the Student
Representative Council

1.2 Senate Committees:
The following sub-committees of Senate met at
least once per quarter throughout the year:
Academic Planning, Library, Research,
Teaching and Learning, Higher Degrees, Language,
Ethics and Student Administration
In addition reports were received from the
Student Services Council, the Quality Assurance
and Risk Management Committee and the Hotel
School Board which served as Joint Committees of
Senate and Council.
The Information Literacy Committee served
as a sub-committee of the Teaching and Learning
Committee. The Centre for Personal and Professional
Development, and the Centre for Community
Engagement and Work Integrated Learning tables
reports at Senate Teaching and Learning Committee
meetings.
The Honorary Degrees Committee, considered
nominations for honorary doctoral degrees from
CPUT. Three worthy candidates, Mr Anant Singh,
Ms Marlene Le Roux and Ms Mildred Ramakabe Lesiea, were recommended to Senate and approved.
These degrees were awarded during the April 2017
graduation ceremonies. In addition an honorary
doctoral degree was awarded to Mr Selvanathan
Mudaly at the September 2016 graduation ceremony.
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2. CHANGES TO ACADEMIC
STRUCTURE:
2.1 The following new HEQSF aligned qualifications
were approved by the DHET and accredited by
the CHE for introduction in 2017, which resulted
in changes to the academic structure
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Diploma in agriculture
Master of agriculture
Diploma in nature conservation
Diploma in nature conservation (ext)
Diploma in marine science (ext)
Master of conservation science
Master of applied science in chemistry
Bachelor of environmental health
Diploma in environmental management
Dip in environmental management (ext)
Master of environmental health
Master of environmental management
Doctor of food science and technology
Master of food science and technology
Diploma in horticulture
Diploma in horticulture (extended)
Diploma in landscape architecture
Diploma in landscape architecture (ext)
Doctor of horticulture
Master of horticultural science
Diploma in mathematical sciences
Diploma in mathematical sciences (ext)
Diploma in biotechnology
Diploma in biotechnology (extended)
Dip: consumer sc in food &nutrition(ext)
Dip: consumer science in food &nutrition
Master of consumer sc.- food & nutrition
Diploma in operations management
Master of construction
Doctor of eng in civil eng
Master of eng in civil eng
Diploma in clothing & textile technology
Dip: clothing & textile technology (ext)
Master of engineering in quality
Doctor of eng in mechanical eng
Master of eng in mechanical eng
Diploma in emergency care
Diploma in film production
Doctor of applied arts in design
Doctor of ict
Doctor of philosophy in informatics

2.2 In 2016 the CHE accredited the Diploma in Real
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Estate as a distance-learning qualification. In
2017 this diploma became the first programme
to be offered by CPUT in the distance-learning
mode of delivery
2.3 The Diploma and Masters in Office Management
and Technology were changed to Diploma
and Masters in Business and Information
Administration respectively.
2.4 All departments remained involved in a major
curriculation exercise to align their academic
programmes with the Higher Education
Qualifications Sub Framework. During 2016
thirty-one Advanced Diploma qualifications
(Category C qualifications) received PQM
clearance by the DHET and were submitted to
the Council of Higher Education for accreditation.

2.5 As a result of the merger a number of academic
departments and programmes were duplicated
on the various campuses of CPUT. The process
of consolidating these programmes on CPUT
campuses is currently underway. In July 2016
the phased-in consolidation of the Electrical
Engineering Department on the Bellville campus
of CPUT was completed.
2.6 In January 2016 the Graphic Design Department
was on the Cape Town campus of CPUT.
2.7 As part of the transition from the current to the
new HEQSF aligned qualifications, the admission
requirements to the new MEng qualifications
required that students with a BTech do an
addional 30 credit Research Methodology
module.
2.8 The following name changes to faculties and
departments were approved by Senate:
• Department of ‘Public Management’ to
‘Public Administration and Governance’

3. SIGNIFICANT DEVELOPMENTS:
3.1 There was an ongoing focus in the academic
sector on the development of academic related
policies to regulate and guide the academic
project. During the course of the year the
following policies and guidelines were approved
by Senate:
• Time Tabling Policy
• Moderation Policy
• Policy on Student Feedback on Teaching
3.2 The implications of the Higher Education
Qualifications Sub-Framework (HEQSF) for
qualifications in the University of Technology
sector remained a standing item on the
agenda of meetings of the Academic Planning
Committee. Progress on the development of
HEQSF compliant programmes was closely
monitored by this committee. The primary
focus of the committee during 2016 was the
consideration and approval of Category C
submissions (mainly advanced diplomas) from
faculties.
3.3 Quality related activity at CPUT focussed
primarily on the Departmental Quality
Improvement Plans that responded to the
recommendations emanating from departmental
programme reviews. Quarterly meetings were
held with departmental heads and the Quality
Management Directorate to monitor progress in
addressing recommendations.
3.4 Senate considered reports from faculties on
their subject review process and qualifications
review process, which were specifically aimed at
improving success and throughput rates at the
institution.
3.5 Funding of R500 000 was secured to establish a
dedicated language laboratory in the Department
of Electrical, Electronic and Computer
Engineering.
3.6 During 2012 the Cape Peninsula University of
Technology received confirmation that the BTech
Nursing qualification had been accredited by the
South African Nursing Council. This opened the
door for students from the Western Cape College
of Nursing (WCCN) to register at CPUT for their
nursing qualification, and for the WCCN to be

fully incorporated into CPUT. The incorporation
date was originally set for July 2016. Due to
outstanding information the Financial Model for
incorporation could not be finalized and the date
for incorporation had to be postponed for the
following year.
3.7 CPUT HIVAIDS unit was involved a project
funded by a DHET-NSF grant that aimed at
integrating HIV and AIDS into the curricula of
two academic programmes at the institution.
During 2016 three text books were developed to
support this curriculum intergration initiative.
3.8 A project initiated by surface design
lecture Penny George focused on the 50th
commemoration of District Six being declared
a whites-only area. She initiated a partnership
with the District Six Museum, which saw 50
local and international artists participating in
the compilation of a print exchange portfolio
under the theme: Remembering 60 000
Forced Goodbyes. The portfolio of 50 prints
was exhibited at the District Six Museum
Homecoming Centre in November and
December 2016.
3.9 From 18 – 29 July 2016, the Service-Learning
and Civic Engagement Units at CPUT hosted
eight German and four Chinese students for
the International Summer Academy on Student
Leadership in Community Engagement. These
were students from the University of Applied
Sciences Osnabrück, Germany and Guizhou
University of Finance and Economics, China
respectively. Two teachers from each university
accompanied these students. Joining them were
eight Service-Learning students and two staff
from the Department of Management and Project
Management.
3.10 The Service-Learning Unit was funded by the
National Youth Development Agency (NYDA):
R1 022 400, the Education, Training and
Development Practices Sector Education and
Training Authority (ETDP SETA): R360 000 and
Chemical Industries Education Training Authority
(CHIETA): R500 000 to implement the National
Senior Certificate 2nd Chance Project in the
Western Cape in 2016. The project aims to
prepare Matric learners to rewrite the Matric
examination in September/ October 2016
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by providing lessons in Mathematics, Physical
Sciences, Life Sciences, Accountancy and English
FAL. The Service-Learning component linked
to this project is the Faculty of Education’s Post
Graduate Certificate in Education (PGCE) Student
Mentorship Programme. All 2nd Chance learners
were assigned a PGCE Mentor.
3.11 Teaching and Learning:
The Fundani Centre for Higher Education
Development (CHED) was involved in the following
initiatives in 2016:
•

Obtaining funding for the new cycle of Teaching
Development Grants (TDG) and implementing the 6

•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•

TDG programmes;
Award of national collaborative Teaching
Development Grants (NCTDG);
Curriculum review, revision and development (focus
on advanced diplomas);
Language development and the promotion of
multilingualism;
The implementation of the Postgraduate diploma in
higher education teaching and learning (PGDip in
HET&L);
Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL);
Subject and Qualifications Reviews in each faculty
The First Year Experience programme; and
Best Practice Seminars, writing for publication
retreats and academic conferences.

TDG: The value of the 2016/17 TDG was R19702 000. These funds were used for academic staff development
(including masters and doctoral studies), student posts, such as teaching assistants, mentors and tutors,
celebratory events, educational research and priority programmes, such as CPUT’s ‘First Year Experience’.
In the First Year Experience nine online student support videos were produced. There were 11000 views of these
videos recorded in 2016. The first year orientation was extended to four faculties so that students could be
better exposed to these and other resources. In addition, specialized year one committees were established and
Retention Officers appointed in all Faculties. Furthermore CPUT FYE engaged with other similar programmes at
local and international conferences and seminars.
NCTDGs (National Collaborative Teaching Development Grants): CPUT was awarded four NCTDGs in
2015. In 2016 Prof Staak’s graduate attributes project resulted in a distinctiveness grid and a guide for developing
Graduate Attributes for all universities, as well as a book chapter and other publications. In Prof Winberg’s project
three universities have had their Postgraduate Dilpomas in Higher Education Teaching and Learning accredited
and more are preparing to develop their programmes based on the national collaborative platform. There have
also been a number of publications emanating from this project. In Prof Garraway’s project there have been
nine publications on writing retreats and seven on tutoring, mentoring and the FYE as well as nine local and
international conference presentations. The project has also produced special editions of two journals and is in the
process of creating a national tutoring guide and a separate FYE guide.
CPUT work-sharing model: The spirit of the new model, as opposed to a work-load model, is that teaching,
research, community engagement and WIL and administrative (and other) activities need to be acknowledged as
workload and shared equitably within departments. The model was refined during 2016 and implemented as a
pilot in some facuties. A guiding manual was produced and road shows conducted for the CPUT community.
Language development and the promotion of multilingualism: Donor funds (National Heritage Council) were
received to support multilingual signage at CPUT. In addition a multilingual touchscreen (similar to those found in
shopping centres) was acquired for the Electrical Engineering building. The language unit has been involved in the
development of multilingual blogs and online glossaries for the CPUT community but the most concentrated work
for 2016 has been in Electrical and Mechanical Engineering and in Architectural Technology (part of the work also
involves helping students gain access to difficult concepts via home language). Furthermore, the unit is augmenting
the glossaries with audio.
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Tutorials and teaching assistants: Approximately 2 000 students benefitted from Faculty tutorials and a
further 300 foundation students were involved in the specialized ‘Step-Up’ support programme, tutorials aimed
at improving social inclusion. Approximately 340 tutors were trained by Fundani in 2016. Approximately 3000
students benefitted from ‘at risk’ subject lecturers being supplied with 101 teaching assistants who were trained
by Fundani. The role of the TA is to help staff with teaching preparation, marking and other associated activities
so that staff may benefit from more time on, for example, curriculum development and lecture planning.
Academic staff development: Ten CPUT academic staff enrolled on the regional Post Graduate Diploma in
Higher Education and all went through to their second year in 2017. Three Fundani CHED staff lecture on this
course and Fundani CHED coordinates two of the six modules. 35 new academic staff were enrolled on the
non-credit semester-long Teaching Development Programme (TDP) and twenty two completed their teaching
portfolios. Approximately 200 CPUT staff attended the Fundani CHED development workshops and seminars
aimed at improving curriculum development and teaching and learning (for example on the general curriculum,
the flexible curriculum, career development, moderation and student feedback). Staff who attened a ‘teaching
scolarship’ programme in 2015 were able to submit a publication in 2016. Six NGap lecturers were recruited
and all are attending the TDP and have been assigned mentors. The online-assisted student feedback project
generated 33 reports to faculty on student perceptions of course (this project is being done collaboratively with
Rhodes University).
Recognition of prior learning: 103 RPL applicants were approved by SENEX. For the first time in CPUT’s
history 12 Nursing applicants were successfully admitted via RPL to year one.
The Quality Enhancement Project (QEP): CHE delegation visited CPUT in September 2016 to report back
on our Quality Enhancement Report that was submitted at the end of Phase I of the Quality Enhancement
Project. The CHE commended the university on the Curriculum Officer Forum as an initiative not found in other
universities but clearly having positive impact on teaching and learning (The forum involves fifty five Curriculum
Officers drawn from all faculties).
Higher education conferences organized: Fundani CHED was part of a regional consortium convening the
International Consortium for Educational Development conference (630 delegates from around the world); the
regional Extended Programme/Foundation conference attended by approximately 40 CPUT staff members; and
the national Education Association of South Africa Conference.
The Information Literacy programmes were implemented by the library in a number of departments across
the institution, and the uptake across the institution is on the increase.
Best Practice Seminar: Flowing from the Subject Review Mechanism, the Faculties of Business and
Engineering arranged best practice seminars in order to create opportunities for departments to present their
innovative teaching practices to the faculty. Such seminars are used as the basis for 1) staff applying for
teaching awards and 2) the Teaching and Learning Report.
New open learning spaces: The Faculty of Engineering was awarded approximately R380 000 for the
development of open learning spaces for students. The funds were spent on the Electrical and Chemical
Engineering building to provide for comfortable (light, settees. WIFI etc.) learning spaces which have been
extensively used by students and for staff-student consultations. These areas are mainly for group collaboration
but will also allow individual work.
New Master of Engineering in Energy Programme: Under the Edulink-supported project PEESA,
the Faculty of Engineering has completed the academic structure for the development of a new Masters
Programme on Energy Engineering, with emphasis on energy access and efficiency. CPUT, through the Faculty
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of Engineering, is the principal African partner together with the Namibian University of Science and Technology
(NUST), Vaal University of Technology (RSA), and Tshwane University of Technology (RSA). The European
partner consortium is led by Wismar University, Germany. DHET approval for this programme was obtained in
2016 and the online application for accreditation was submitted to the CHE.
ECSSA 2016 conference: The Emergency Care Society of South Africa (ECSSA) awarded CPUT EMS the bid
to host the 2016 ECSSA conference. This was a success with representation from Southern African countries
and Australia. The conference theme was bridging the gap between theory and practice in Emergency Care.
Winter School: Chemical Engineering ran the Winter School during the mid-year break in July 2016, for
subjects that are a pre-requisite to continue with at least 3 subjects in the second semester. This intervention
achieved excellent success rates and allowed a significant number of students to continue in the subsequent
semester.
Participation in the HPCSA guideline development project: EMS collaborated with UCT (Emergency
Medicine) Stellenbosch University (Centre for Evidence-based Health Care), under the auspices of the African
Federation of Emergency Medicine to conceptualise and implement a clinical guideline development project for
the HPCSA, Professional Board for Emergency Care (PBEC). The outputs involved critiquing current practice
and recommending evidence-based guidelines for new practice for over 70 000 practitioners registered with the
PBEC, HPCSA
Innovative modes of delivery: All departments in the Health and Wellness faculty have implemented some
innovative changes to the mode of delivery.

Examples are:
• High Fidelity simulations: The Emergency Medical Science department
conceptualised, planned and executed multiple High-fidelity patient
simulations involving CPUT BEMC final year students, The Red Cross Air
Mercy Service (NGO) and the UCT Medical School Skills laboratory.
• Flipped classroom: This approach is now a regular practice in all the
programmes.
• Online content and blackboard utilization enhanced: Blackboard is a
standard feature of the offering. Blackboard training took place in 2016
to further encourage staff to incorporate all aspects of the LMS into the
teaching and learning environment
• Evidence-Informed Decision Making: The BTechs participated in a
workshop on the evidence-based medicine approach for the first time and
this will be a regular inclusion in the curriculum
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3.12 Research Development
In 2016, 178 conference applications were
processed by the Research Development
and the overall amount contributed towards
conference participation was in the amount
of R 2 176 383. This funding scheme allowed
CPUT academics to participate in both local and
international conferences.
In 2016, six Research Exchange Programme
applicants were awarded. Total amount funded
was R236 076.
The Research Development supported
academics with research running costs through
the University Research Funding Scheme and the
overall amount awarded in 2016 totalled to R3
765 343. A total of 95 applicants were awarded.
Two research capacity building workshops were
presented by the Research Directorate.
In 2016, from the 11 submissions we made to
the NRF, we were granted eight NRF ratings.
CPUT has 37 NRF Rated researchers.A total of
R 17 269 208 of NRF funding was obtained by
CPUT academics in 2016 through applying to
funding calls.
This amount was paid to the institution and
included NRF grants obtained in the following
categories:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Sabbatical grants to complete doctoral
studies (7)
Incentive Funding for Rates Researchers (31)
Thuthuka (19)
International Science and Technology
Agreements (3)
Competitive Support for Unrated
Researchers (5)
Competitive Programme for Rated
Researchers (5)
National Equipment (1)
Knowledge Interchange and Collaboration (10)
F’Sati (1)
Education Research in Africa (1)
Indigenous Knowledge Systems (1)
South African Research Chairs (3)
Foundational Biodiversity Information
Programme (1)

•
•
•

Research and Technology Fund (1)
Research Equipment Programme (1)
S& F Research Development Grants for nGAP
Scholars (5)

3.13 Innovation
At the South African Technology Network, a
CPUT technology was awarded first prize. The
technology dealt with a Fluid Treatment Process
and Apparatus.
Three CPUT technologies were on display at the
Leaders in Innovation event in London during
February 2016. Two CPUT academics were
awarded LiF fellowships and were involved in
the event. These are Prof Veruscha Vester who
pitched her waste water treatment technology
and Prof Maretha Opperman who pitched the
Omega Caro E technology.
Three CPUT projects were awarded TIA seed
funding in September 2016. These were the
‘High bitrate X-band solution for commercial
nanosatellites’ (R496 650), the ‘Beneficiation
of Agathosma essential oil’ (R467 000), and
the ‘Sustainable fodder production technology’
(R499 459). A further project was awarded TIA
seed funding in December 2016. This was the
‘Fortified milk beverages to supplement the diet’
(R493 336). In total TIA seed funding of R 1 956
445 was awarded.
The Design Garage was launched in 2016.
This initiative was funded and supported by the
Innovation Fund
The CPUT patent portfolio from innovations
stemming from research increased to 16. Two
new filings were submitted in 2016:
• Fluid Treatment Process and Apparatus
This invention is related to a reactor consists
of an oxidising agent activator immobilised
in permeable media positioned in a special
enclosure that allow remover colour and organics
from wastewater without leaving retentate.
• Inverse Class-F Power Amplifier
Other patents were further developed. Patents
filed in RSA were paid to term to ensure cost
efficiency.
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IP status

Patent
Provisional

PCT

Current Cost

Regional

Complete patent
RSA

R82 269

RSA, Malaysia, Singapore,
Canada, USA

R772 290

RSA

R48 307

1. Unmanned Aerial systems

Europe

2. Food supplement
3. Micro nutrient supplement

Europe

4. Fluid Visualization(FLOW-VIZ)

RSA, Belgium, Switzerland,
Germany, Denmark, Spain,
Finland, France, UK, Italy,
Japan, Netherlands, Norway,
Sweden, USA

R1 629 528

5. Bambara Beverage (BamPro)

RSA

R45 911

6. Omega 3-Fatty Acid Emulsion

RSA, Malaysia, Singapore,
Canada

R91 901

7. Bambara Fibre (BamFiber)

RSA

R2 322

8. Driver Lincense Control Unit

RSA

R1 108

9. Modular Aquaponics System

RSA

R23 659

RSA

R28 871

RSA, Australia

R26 550

12. SnugSack

RSA

R102 704

13. Hydraulic Drive Mechanism (Solar Tracker)

RSA

R29 690

ARIPO

10. Uyindoda MMC Underwear
11. The Braai Tool (TBT)

14. Wastewater Reactor (CoorTech)

X

R17 096

15. Inverse Class-F Power Amplifier

X

R72 000

16. Rooibos Extract (SlowRedT)

X

R52 440

The TTO was involved in three licensing deals in 2016. This includes a license to Sozo, which intends to use
the Nutri Caro E technology to create a range of food products. In addition to this, a license was granted to a
former CPUT student via his company (Protolab (Pty) Ltd) to commercialise the ‘Braai Tool’ invention. This nonexclusive license for the braai tool has subsequently been upgraded to an exclusive license. Finally, a royalty free,
retrospective license for the Flow-Viz technology.

4. COMPOSITION AND SIZE OF STUDENT BODY:
Total Student Enrolment during 2016				
Enrolment composition was as follows
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34 455

Data

Sub-Category

All
Gender

Group

Level

100,0%

Female

17 685

54,1%

18 797

54,6%

Male

14 989

45,9%

15 658

45,4%

Black

19 738

60,4%

21 610

62,7%

Coloured

8 754

26,8%

9 033

26,2%

White

3 834

11,7%

3 462

10,1%

Indian

348

1,1%

350

1,0%

30 757

94,1%

32 346

93,9%

1 406

4,3%

1 626

4,7%

PG (Other)

377

1,2%

380

1,1%

Occasional

134

0,4%

103

0,3%

1 191

3,6%

1 390

4,0%

215

0,7%

236

0,7%

B.Tech

5 318

16,3%

5 678

16,5%

B.Ed and Bachelor of Education

3 206

9,8%

3 460

10,0%

533

1,6%

628

1,8%

12 104

37,0%

12 904

37,5%

Engineering

7 371

22,6%

7 543

21,9%

Education

3 868

11,8%

4 194

12,2%

Informatics & Design

3 419

10,5%

3 543

10,3%

Applied Sciences

3 094

9,5%

3 332

9,7%

Health & Wellness Sciences

2 818

8,6%

2 939

8,5%

UG (including B.Tech)

Other Bachelor Degrees

•

% of Total

34 455

Doctors

•

2016

100,0%

Masters (M.Tech & M. Degree)

•

% of Total

32 674

PG (M & D)

Faculty

2015

Business & Management Sciences

The number of registered Master students
as recorded by the Centre for Postgraduate
Studies increased from 1 199 in 2015 to 1
410 in 2016, while the number of Doctoral
students increased from 215 in 2015 to 234
in 2016.
In 2016 a total of 156 Masters and
23 Doctoral students graduated. The
graduation figures were, respectively 159 and
22 in 2015.
The HDC digital system in 2016 has 1 162
staff and 1 572 students registered as users.

•

•

Institutional training has been facilitated
for students in research design, data and
statistical analysis and thesis writing as part
of the RTI plan. An editor was appointed
in 2016 to review student proposals as a
means of improving the approval rate and so
the throughput rate.
The planned annual postgraduate student
conference was not held on 4 November
2016 due to anticipated student unrest.
There were no calls made.

59

2016

ANNUAL REPORT

5. TEACHING AND LEARNING

skills development transformation projects.
This two year part-time blended learning
programme allows students with no prior
academic qualifications but at least 10 years
relevant work experience to complete at
architectural degree qualification through
studio-based learning. In 2016 students from
as far afield as Windhoek, Polokwane,
Harare and Johannesburg were enrolled
for this course.

5.1 Limitations on Access to certain courses:
•

•

•

•

•

•
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Access to CPUT programmes was again
broadened with the implementation of
Extended Curriculum Programmes (ECP).
CPUT offered 37 such programmes in
2016 ( Business 10, Applied Science 10,
Engineering 6, Health and Wellness 4 and
Informatics and Design 7). These involved a
total of 1275 first time entering students. The
Step-Up Training was conducted by Fundani
in departments with ECP Programmes.
Students with a first qualification at a
Private Institution who apply for the BTech:
Somatology programme have for a while
had to go through the RPL process for
access. To improve the success rate these
students are now assessed for possible
benefit from completion of courses on the
ND: Somatology programme. These must be
completed prior to access being granted to
the BTech.
In many programmes access was limited due
to infrastructural constraints such as limited
lecture rooms and laboratories. However,
funding received from the Department of
Higher Education and Training is being used to
expand physical facilities in SET programmes
and in Education to enable student enrolment
in these programmes to be increased in line
with the CPUT Enrolment Plan.
Recognition of Prior Learning was used
by all faculties to grant access to their
programmes.
The Information Technology department has
embarked on a partnership with four TVET
colleges in the Cape Town area which will be
offering the Higher Certificate: Information
& Communication Technology that the
Information Technology department has
curriculated. The aim of the TVET partnership
is to improve access for learners with a
qualification that can better prepare them for
studying ICT at a University of Technology.
The Information Technology department
enrolled the first cohort of these students at
TVET Colleges in January 2016.
CPUT collaborated with the service provider
of the South African Institute of Architects
(SAIA), Open Architecture, on the first of its

5.2 Levels of academic programmes and levels of
study:
•

•

All departments offered programmes to the
level of the four year BTech degree. The
majority of departments offered programmes
to the Masters Level. Doctorate programmes
were only offered in selected programmes,
but were offered in all faculties at CPUT.
The Education Department offered a fouryear BEd degree, while most departments
in the Health and Wellness Sciences Faculty
offered four year professional degree
programmes.

5.3 Awards and Achievements
•

•

•

•

Departmental and Faculty Distinguished
Teachers awards were presented in all
faculties during 2016. These awards were
funded by the Teaching Development Grant.
In 2016 over 20 awards were made. The
top three awardees were then nominated
for (and portfolios submitted to) the national
HELTASA awards programme.
For the HELTASA award a national panel
of teaching experts examines teaching
portfolios from universities across the country
and five individuals are then selected for this
prestigious award. Dr Nic Theo from CPUT’s
Film and Media Department was one of
the five to receive the prestigious HELTASA
award in 2016.
Prof Learnmore Kambizi was appointed as
the inaugural Director of the African Centre
for Herbal Research Institute (ACHRI),
located at the University of Ilorin as part of
the U6 collaboration.
The Lesotho CHE invited N Naidoo of the
EMS Department to chair a Programme
Review in Lesotho.

•

•

•

•

•

•

Former member and student Daryne Joshua
directed a SA film nominated as SA entrant to
the 2016 Academy Award as best foreign film.
Alumnus Stephan van der Merwe won
a worldwide scriptwriting competition
sponsored by Samsung.
Graphic Design students Kyron Green and
Natalie Gendron took first place and a R50
000 award in the Nestle Art Competition.
Graphic Design student Jamie Matthews
was the winner in Standard Bank Portraits in
Progress campaign.
Fashion design student Anita Hlazo
produced a fashion film shown at Bokeh
International Film Festival. BTech 2014
Lukhanyo Mnisi won an award at Bokeh in
2016.
Three Jewelry Design students were in the
top ten AngloAmerican, Platafrica 2016
Competition, Vuyiseka Luke was awarded
2nd prize, Simphiwe Dumengane was 3rd
and Boda Song was awarded 8th place.

•

•

•

research, and the injection of innovation
output into the local economy;
A concentration of efforts on the research
areas and the resultant improved synergies,
research outputs and associated returns;
The appointment of top-rated scientists
as Research Chairs to lead flagship
research niche areas within the research
focus areas; and
The growth of a robust cohort of postgraduate students and post-doctoral
fellows across disciplines for increased
masters and doctoral outputs.

The following are the seven focus areas identified
and funded by the CPUT:
•
•
•
•
•

Bio-economy and biotechnology
Space science and technology
Energy
Climate change and environment
Human and social dynamics, including issues
related to service delivery Economic growth
and international competitiveness
Design for sustainability

6. RESEARCH

•

6.1 Research Programmes:

In addition, research and development is
conducted in 29 research centres and units.

The Cape Peninsula University (CPUT), Research,
Technology and Innovation (RTI) Blueprint
is the guiding document to all our research
endeavours and provides a roadmap towards
research, innovation and technology. Through
the RTI Blueprint, research areas and research
niche areas have been identified and allows
for specialisation and support in a managed
environment whilst not excluding new areas of
research.
The benefits of these research areas are:
•

•

•

Increased visibility, stature and improved
brand worth of CPUT as a result of the
impact of research and innovation outputs;
Enhanced attractiveness of CPUT to
donors and venture capitalists as a result
of high quality, high visibility research and
innovation;
The overall contribution of CPUT to
economic growth and to the GDP of the
country as a result of producing high quality
post-graduate doctoral output, high quality

There are eight research chairs appointed and
funded as per the below:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Bio-technology (funded by CPUT)
Literacy Development (funded by CPUT)
Oceans Economy (funded by CPUT)
Work Integrated Learning (funded by NRF/
DST)
Wholesale and Retail Leadership (funded by
Wholesale SETA)
Teacher Education (funded by NRF/DST)
Work Integrated Learning (funded by ETDP
SETA)
Innovation in Society (Service Design) (funded
by CPUT).

The RTI directors provide structural and
management support to the research focus
areas and research chairs.
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6.2 Awards
•

•

One hundred and fifty-six (156) Masters
degrees and twenty-three (23) Doctorate
degrees were awarded at the graduation
ceremonies in April and September 2016
compared to one hundred and fifty-nine
(159) Masters degrees and twenty-two (22)
Doctorate degrees that were awarded in
2015.
In 2015 CPUT improved in its journal article
publications, it was an increase of 50.38
units compared to 2014. The DHET audited
units for 2015 awarded were:

Output type

Units

Book chapters

5.99

Conference proceedings

33.44

Journal Articles

173.14

•

•
•

Four Cape Higher Education Con sortium
(CHEC) awards were held by CPUT
academics in the amount of R250 000 for
the year of 2016.
Prestigious Projects to the amount of R300
000 was awarded in 2016.
Department of Higher Education and Training
(DHET) Improvement of Qualifications (IQ)
awarded 24 CPUT academics in 2016 in the
amount of R2 723 736

6.3 Research/ Postgraduate Studies Funding
The graphic below indicates the 2015 audited
outputs per faculty.
During 2016, funding for research and
bursaries was received from the following
sources:
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1. Outside Agencies / Industry:
AEL
R
BTB
R
Carnival Travel Grant
R
CHEC
R
Dust Burners
R
Eskom
R
Maueberger
R
MRC		
R
MRC-Newton Project
R
NRF Bursaries
R
NRF Post Doc Fellowships
R
NRF Research Funding
R
NSFAS Postgraduate
R
Nutek Project
R
PPC/WRC
R
Rheology Centre
R
RINA
R
SKA
R
Webb Trust
R
WRC
R
TOTAL OUTSIDE FUNDING

136 551.75
1 900 906.25
127 894.18
250 000.00
107 489.10
26 315.79
550 000.00
2 631 578.94
1 657 608.00
9 810 000.00
1 835 000.00
17 269 208.03
3 383 500.00
211 578.94
372 228.07
136 551.75
650 000.00
233 000.00
30 000.00
558 187.09

R 41 877 597.89

2. CPUT:
University Research Fund
R
Conference attendance
383.48
Research Exchange Programme
R
Prestigious Projects
R
(DHET) Improvement of Qualifications R
CPUT Contribution to NRF Funding R
Post Doc Fellowships
R
TOTAL CPUT FUNDING

3 765 343.02
R 2 176
236 076.36
300 000.00
2 723 736.00
1 571 123.00
1 648 000.00

R 12 420 661.86

6.4 Contract Research
The TTO reviewed/vetted 37 contracts in 2016.
The total value of the contracts was R9 231 799.
Of this funding to the value of R5 922 689 was
research related and R3 309 110 was due to the
rendering of services.

7. FINANCIAL AID
7.1 Access
Students with proven academic record and
financial need qualify for financial assistance.
7.2 Provision

Financial Aid - Provision in 2016
TOTAL

NUMBER OF
AWARDS

Nominated Bursaries

R 80 079 060.71

3 922

NSFAS Undergraduate

R 329 688 602.54

10 258

University Administered

R 1 746 500.00

156

Work Study Program

R 4 477 030.33

973

R 415 991 193.58

14 949

CATEGORY

8. RISKS TO THE ACADEMIC
PROJECT
During 2016 CPUT commissioned a risk
assessment workshop with senior management
and head of divisions at the university.

due to poor integration and consolidation
across all campuses which could also lead
to increased operating expenses due to
non-integration of various campuses at a
business level.
• Risk of increase in dropout rates, decrease
in throughput and success rates resulting in
the non-achievement of agreed DHET targets
and loss of income.
• Ineffective business model resulting in
ineffective co-ordination between academic
units, support units and student affairs.
• Lack of financial resources to fund high
performing students who cannot afford fees
during the academic progression.
• Lack of experienced and qualified academic
staff and researchers.
• The instability of the IT
infrastructure may adversely
affect a number of areas,
NUMBER OF
including the academic
STUDENTS
programmes (e-learning and
3 922
class tests), research initiatives
as well as the administrative
10 258
operations of CPUT.
156
These risks have been included
in the institutional risk register
14 402
and mitigation strategies have
been developed for each of
these risks. Progress in addressing these risks
was reported to the Quality Assurance and Risk
Management Committee and the Audit and Risk
Committee of Council on a quarterly basis.
973

As a result of this workshop following top ten
risks were identified:
•

•
•

•

•

Inadequacy of the funding model (including
over-dependence on subsidy and fees,
specifically as a result of #FeesMustFall and
in-sourcing).
Socio-political instability resulting in University
disruptions.
Lack of research and innovation optimisation
resulting in lost opportunities to generate
additional third stream income.
Possible non achievement of strategic goals
due to the lack of inclusive organisational
culture at the University.
Risk of a decrease in academic standards

PROF J VOLMINK
Acting Vice-Chancellor
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Report on
Transformation
The CPUT Transformation
Manager exited the system in 2014
and this created a hiatus in terms
of a concerted effort to the drive
transformation within the institution.
This gap is unfortunate given the deafening
silence on transformation matters that CPUT
experienced, notwithstanding a ground swell of
support for transformation in the Higher Education
Sector.
An attempt to fill the Transformation Manager
position has been hampered by a disjuncture
between the level at which the position was
advertised, and the level of skills required. The
position was graded and came at a Director level,
but Dr Nevhutalu insisted that it be advertised at a
Manager level.
The position has now been re-advertised at
the right level, and the process to fill the position
is underway. The initiatives in this regard will
be still located against the background of the
Transformation, social cohesion and diversity charter
– is CPUT blueprint for the process of embedding
transformation, social cohesion and diversity
engagement at CPUT. These three tenets can best be
realized through equity processes in the employment
of staff, curriculum development, teaching and
learning, and governance that are underpinned by
democracy and transparency.
CPUT charter is underpinned by the following broad
principles:
•
Equity and redress
•
Access, retention and success
•
Non-racism and non-discrimination
•
Diversity
•
Support for a conducive and working climate
•
Gender

Regarding equity and redress, a competent
Employment Equity Manager has been appointed,
and in addition to compliance with the Department
of Labour requirements, with regards to submission
of an EE Plan that was consulted on, and the EE
Report within prescribed deadlines, the EE Manager
has embarked on a number road shows to sensitize
line managers of the EE Plan and their roles and
responsibilities in that regard.
Performance management for all grades 1 –
4 has been implemented and the Vice Chancellor
together with his executive has signed their
performance contracts, in 2015 all line Managers
for grades 5 – 18 will be trained on performance
management with a view to start with performance
contracting phase in 2018. The student protests
hampered the delivery of the roll out of Performance
Management planned for 2016. Furthermore the
paradigm used was incorrect as it aimed at training
everyone before roll out; a process that can never be
completed because of staff turnover
Culture and climate survey; prior to the
suspension of the Vice Chancellor, the approach
endorsed by MANCOM was to have a road show
facilitated by MCD to deal with issues raised in the
culture and climate survey. This was overtaken by the
student protest as well as special leave of the Vice
Chancellor. This is a matter that has been overtaken by
events, and there might be a need to revisit this report
as it is clearly out of date due to the many critical
events that have happened at CPUT since the
survey was conducted.
Equity and Redress; while CPUT is in a
teenage stage, it appears that the gains made
in earlier years are being eroded and that the
insourcing that has recently happened, is also
going to shift focus on these matters as the
institution battles to mainstream outsourced
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workers. The fact that the institution is also
experiencing challenges, suggests that the focus on
transformation is not going to be in the epicentre.

CPUT 2015 AND 2016 STAFF BREAKDOWN

66

The staff profile remains more or less the same
and this is because the EE Plan was not quite in place
and with the new EE Plan approved by the DoL, a
concerted effort is being made to address those areas
that are still non- representative.
Recognition agreement with all unions, CPUT
that was signed and celebrated as ground breaking
‘collective recognition agreement’ with all three unions
in 2014, is under threat due to insourcing which has
manifested in more unions wanting to be recognised
arguing that the addition of 1000 employees renders
the recognised unions non representative. Instead of
increasing non representative Unions the approach
has been to nudge the recognised Unions to become
representative. In 2016 the management labour
relations were strained and this led to two strikes, and
delayed conclusion of a wage agreement.

THATO MOLAOLWA
Deputy Chairperson of CPUT Council

Leadership Next Generation Programme
was rolled out in 2016 with a view to preparing high
performing staff to be ready for senior positions which
has a personal exploration, individual mentorship, and
group sessions which is biased in favour of previously
disadvantaged individuals.
Staff Wellness This program started in 2014
continued and the four elements of the programme
continue to be to provide Emotional, Physical, Financial
and Social support, however the sustainability of
this programme is under threat, given the financial
constraints.

PROF J VOLMINK
Acting Vice-Chancellor
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Annual Financial
Review: 2016
The University’s financial reporting
and preparation of financial statements
is in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
as well as the Department of Higher
Education and Training (DHET) reporting
requirements for Higher Education
Institutions.
With the advent of the #FeesMustFall protests
in 2015 and 2016, the core income stream of the
University, namely the subsidies and tuition fees, were
adversely affected and have not kept pace with cost
increases for personnel costs and other operating
expenses. Similarly the level of student debt has grown
exponentially when compared with prior years and is
placing the continued sustainability of the University in
question.
The impact of a reduction in the core income
stream has resulted in the University’s inability to
invest in and upgrade the capital infrastructure of
the University as part of the consolidation process.
The ability of the University to increase its Residential
offering has also been impacted as a result of the
strain on its cash flow. The dependency on the
Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET)
to fund backlog maintenance and residential projects
continues to escalate.
Management sets budget directives annually for
the next budget year which stem from the Vision 2020,
specific priority projects and the CPUT strategy. Due
to the pressure placed on the University’s cash flow,
the University has not been able to generate sufficient
funds to maintain both the day to day operational
needs of the institution as well as adequately fund the
capital infrastructure and other strategic initiatives.
The budgeting processes are performed by various
Committees that are representative of the broader
University stakeholders.
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The budget forms part of the Annual Performance
Plan which includes a three year budget projection,
cash flow projection and capital expenditure
projections.
The University has not been able to continue of its
turnaround strategy. CPUT budgeted for a recurrent
deficit of R8,6 million in 2016 (surplus of R23,6 million
in 2015). This financial objective was unfortunately
not achieved with the University reporting an actual
net recurrent deficit of R181,5 million for 2016 (actual
recurrent deficit in 2015 was R41,1 million). The key
reasons for the negative financial performance during
2016 being:
•
•
•

General purpose subsidy increase of only
4.5% which was below inflation;
Payroll related expenses increase of 8,9%;
and
Additional provision for student debt of
R212million as a result of the increase in
outstanding student debt.

2016 has seen many challenges of its own and
this has lead to challenges both economically and
politically. The final report by the Presidential Task
Team on Tertiary Funding in 2017 is awaited, but is not
expected to provide all of the required solutions.
Key highlights from the Comprehensive Income
Statement for the year ending 31 December 2016
were as follows:
1. Other operating expenses increased by
11,7% compared to increases of 14,8% in 2015.
There were significant increases in unbudgeted
costs as a result of the #FeesMustFall campaign
at the end of the financial year in respect of
additional security, alternative exam venues,
overtime for key staff, current year bad debts
written off etc.
2. The student residences reported a net
recurrent deficit of R25,2 million for 2016 (2015:

recurrent surplus of R10 million). Residences
have reported a recurrent deficit. This is as a
result of an additional bad debt provision of
R29,5 million processed at year end.
3. State appropriations – Although subsidies
and grants have increased by 4,5% to
R1 032 billion (2015 – R988 million) as a result
of an increase in student numbers. The general
purpose subsidy from the DHET increased by
only 9,4% to R977 million (2015: R893 million).
The 2016 block grant includes an additional
R78,5 million received due to #FeesMustFall.
4. Tuition and other fee income increased by
4,9% to R816 million (2015: 778 million). The
increase arose from an increase in student
enrolment from 32 674 for the 2015 financial
year to 34 455 in the 2016 financial year. The
increase in residence fees of 3,0% is as a result
a marginal increase in residence beds taken up
at Park Central, Toplin House and South Point
residence.
5. Gifts & Donations decreased by 31,1%
to R91,5 million (2015: R132,9 million). The
decrease relates to a reduction of nominated
bursaries received from various donors for 2016.
#FeesMustFall had an impact on our
fundraising activities, due to late registration we
are finding it difficult to report to donors on the
final results of the previous academic year.
6. Interest and dividends received were R74
million (2014: R76 million). Interest rates have
been fairly flat over the past two years. The
significant decrease in the bank balance and
the challenging cash flow has, however, had a
negative impact on interest returns.
7. Depreciation of assets have decreased from
R66,6 million in 2015 to R60,6 million in 2016,
as a result of splitting land and buildings during
the year.
8. Total payroll expenses have increased by
8,9% to R1,28 billion (2015: R1,18 billion). The
increase in the recurrent payroll expense, in
excess of the 7% general increase, has resulted
from the creation of new posts, regrading and
revised salaries.
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Key highlights from the Comprehensive Income
Statement for the year ending 31 December 2016
were as follows:
1.

Other operating expenses increased by 8,2%
compared to increases of 14,8% in 2015. There
were significant increases in unbudgeted costs
as a result of the #FeesMustFall campaign at the
end of the financial year in respect of additional
security, alternative exam venues, overtime for
key staff, current year bad debts written off etc.

Stricter cost management has to
be embedded in the everyday life
of the University to ensure its future
sustainability.

”
2.

3.

4.

5.
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The student residences reported a net recurrent
deficit of R25,2 million for 2016 (2015: recurrent
surplus of R10 million). Residences have reported
a recurrent deficit. This is as a result of an
additional bad debt provision of R29,5 million
processed at year end.
State appropriations – Although subsidies and
grants have increased by 4,5% to R1 031 billion
(2015 – R988 million) as a result of an increase in
student numbers. The general purpose subsidy
from the DHET increased by only 9,6% to R979
million (2015: R893 million). The 2016 block grant
includes an additional R78,5 million received due
to #FeesMustFall.
Tuition and other fee income increased by 4,8%
to R816 million (2015: 778 million). The increase
arose from an increase in student enrolment from
32 887 for the 2015 financial year to 34 842 in
the 2016 financial year. The increase in residence
fees of 3,1% is as a result a marginal increase in
residence beds taken up at Park Central, Toplin
House and South Point residence.
Gifts & Donations decreased by 31,1% to R91,5
million (2015: R132,9 million). The decrease
relates to a reduction of nominated bursaries
received from various donors for 2016.

#FeesMustFall had an impact on our fundraising
activities, due to late registration we are finding it
difficult to report to donors on the final results of
the previous academic year.
6.
Interest and dividends received were R74 million
(2014: R76 million). Interest rates have been
fairly flat over the past two years. The significant
decrease in the bank balance and the challenging
cash flow has, however, had a negative impact
on interest returns.
7.
Depreciation of assets hav e decreased from
R66,6 million in 2015 to R60,6 million in 2016, as
a result of splitting land and buildings during the
year.
8. Total payroll expenses have increased by 8,9% to
R1,28 billion (2015: R1,18 billion). The increase
in the recurrent payroll expense, in excess of
the 7% general increase, has resulted from the
creation of new posts, regrading and revised
salaries.
The key items to highlight in respect of the
statement of financial position as at 31
December 2016 are as follows:
1. The net book value of property, plant and
equipment has increased by R88,4 million to
R1,922 billion (2015: R1,835 billion). Additions to
land and buildings and leasehold improvements
were R115,8 million in 2016. The additions relate
to the following building projects: HDI Electrical
Engineering, Sandenburgh Residence Extension,
Health & Wellness and Applied Sciences. The
movables additions include R10,9 million in
respect of furniture & equipment attributable to
the furnishing of new buildings while R22 million
is attributable to the purchase of computer
equipment as there were significant purchases
of computers to replace computers that reached
the end of their economic useful lives and
attempt to continuously provide students with the
latest technology.
2.
The market value of investments has decreased
by R183,4 million to R1,281 billion (2015: R1,465
billion). This decrease is due to the withdrawal
of funds from our investment managers during
the first and last quarter of the financial year to
fund recurring operations when the cashflow
suffered a huge knock during the #FeesMustFall
campaign. Student fee receipts decreased
significantly during that period.
3.
The net student fees outstanding (after
provisions) at year end amount to R146,8 million

4.

5.

(2015: R163,2 million). The student bad debt
expense for the year (i.e. the movement in
the provision and actual write-offs in the year)
was R212 million (2015: R47,2 million). During
2016, R75,6 million of debt older than 3 years
and deemed irrecoverable, has been provided
for (2015 – R28,4 million). The university will
continue to engage and participate in the
joint efforts of NSFAS and DHET in respect of
obtaining additional funding for our students
who cannot afford their tertiary education. For
future funding creativity is required due to the
ever changing and very unpredictable tertiary
education landscape.
Accounts receivable and prepayments increased
from R61,1 million in 2015 to R98,4 million
in 2016. This can largely be attributed to an
increase in the amount due for other government
receivables at year end (R40,8 million) as
compared to the same time in 2015 (R20,8
million).
Cash and cash equivalents have increased from
R89,7 million at the end of 2015 to R146,5
million at the end of 2016. This is mainly due
to the withdrawal from our investment of R104
million. There was a decrease in receipt of
student fees during the last quarter of 2016
during the student protest period.

6.

7.

8.

9.

The University has been closely monitoring its
cash flow requirements throughout 2016 and has
compiled detailed cash flow projections for 2017
to confirm that the institution has sufficient funds
to meet its obligations in terms of both its normal
operations and the major capital commitments in
terms of the DHET Infrastructure programme.
Total interest bearing borrowings have decreased
from R352,7 million at the end of 2015 to
R322,1 million at the end of 2016. No new
loan agreements were concluded and no new
Ministerial requests for new loans were submitted
during the 2016 financial year (refer to note 8 to
the financial statements).
It should be noted that in terms of the statement
of financial position, current assets of R399
million (2015: R321 million) exceeded current
liabilities of R318 million (2015: R276 million)
by R81 million. However, R93 million (2015:
R81 million) of these liabilities are in respect of
leave pay which do not represent a current cash
liability. Furthermore, the University’s investment
portfolio is reflected as a non-current asset but
can be accessed at short notice if required.
Accumulated Funds excluding restricted funds
has decreased by R170 million during 2016.

A selected list of financial ratios and extracts from the
financials for the past 5 years follows below:

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

Current ratio

1.44:1

1.16:1

1.33:1

1.36:1

1.19:1

Quick ratio

1.42:1

1.14:1

1.30: 1

1.33:1

1.16:1

Cash ratio

0.45:1

0.32:1

0.61: 1

0.43:1

0.74:1

Student debt turnover ratio Tuition/ Average Student debt

2.03:1

1.51:1

1.42:1

1.45:1

1.52:1

Net gain/ (loss) on Residences (million)

R15.0

R10.0

R6,5

(R12,8)

(R18,3)

Salaries as % of Recurring income

53.0%

56.5%

53%

54.3%

53.5%

Other current operating expenses as % of recurring income

41.4%

40.7%

36.7%

37.4%

36.0%

State subsidies as % of Recurring income

48.2%

47.4%

47.0%

49.8%

50.6%

Tuition and other fee income as % of recurring income

38.2%

37.4%

34.7%

35.0%

34.6%

Gifts & donations as % of recurring income

4.3%

6.4%

5.7%

6.3%

6.6%

Sustainability Ratio (Council-controlled reserves only)
(Council-controlled reserves/ annual recurrent expenditure on council
controlled expenditure)

0.73

0.83

0.96

0.99

0.95

Sustainability ratio (Total CPUT Reserves)
Total CPUT reserves/ annual recurrent expenditure

0.80

0.95

1.06

1.04

1.05
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Key highlights in Financial Administration
The budgetary process for 2017 was changed to
clearly split the budget between Council Controlled
Funds, Specifically Controlled and Residences. This
included a cleanup of cost centres to ensure that they
are correctly allocated to either Council or Specifically
funded. Budget was only allocated for recurrent
income. Profit on the sale of investments was excluded
from the budget process in order to commence the
process of reducing dependency on this source of
income.
As part of the cleanup process, one of the major
interventions was the review of the Establishment
Tables. This has enabled us to clearly identify the
number of approved Council Controlled posts to which
both the Faculties and Support Services need to work

ZOLA FIHLANI
Chairperson: Finance Committee
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towards as an immediate target. The benchmark of
65% of recurrent income has been tested and proven
and will now be the target to which the University
has to work. Stricter cost management has to be
embedded in the everyday life of the University to
ensure its future sustainability.
The University’s management wishes to
thank Council’s Finance and Audit & Risk
Oversight Committees for their guidance and
commitment in steering the institution. A special
word of thanks is also extended to the staff
of the Finance Division for their selfless efforts
and continued commitment in serving CPUT.

MR P DU PLESSIS
Executive Director: Finance
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Statement of
Responsibility for the
Financial Statements
The Council is accountable for the
integrity and fair presentation of the
annual financial statements of the Cape
Peninsula University of Technology.
The annual financial statements, presented on
pages 82 to 128 of this Annual Report, have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the requirements
of the Minister of Higher Education and Training
as prescribed by the Higher Education Act, 1997
(Act No.101 of 1997 as amended), and include
amounts based on judgments and estimates made
by management. The Council is also responsible for
the University’s system of internal financial control.
These are designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance as to the reliability of the annual
financial statements. The Council also prepared other
information as required to be included in this Annual
Report and is responsible for both its accuracy and
consistency with the financial statements.

The “going concern” basis has been adopted
in preparing the financial statements. Nothing has
come to the attention of Council to indicate that
any material breakdown in the functioning of the
system, procedures and controls has occurred
during the year under review. The Council also
has no reason to believe that the Cape Peninsula
University of Technology is not a “going concern” in the
foreseeable future, based on forecasts and available
cash resources. The viability of the Cape Peninsula
University of Technology is supported by the content
of the financial statements.
The independent accounting firm, KPMG INC.,
who were given unrestricted access to all financial
records and related data, including minutes of
meetings of the Council and all its committees, has
audited the financial statements. The Council believes
that all representations made to the independent
auditors during their audit were valid and appropriate.

Approval of the
Financial Statements
The annual financial statements on pages 82 to 128 were approved by the Council of the Cape Peninsula
University of Technology on 24 June 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

MR T MOLAOLWA
Deputy Chairperson of Council
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Prof J VOLMINK
Acting Vice-Chancellor

MR P DU PLESSIS
Executive Director: Finance
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 December 2016
Note

2016
R

2015
R

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Available-for-sale investments

2
3

3 204 460 706
1 922 943 530
1 281 517 176

3 299 442 555
1 834 514 834
1 464 927 721

Current assets
Inventory
Accounts receivable and prepayments
Student fees receivable
Cash and cash equivalents

4
5
6
7

398 832 566
7 029 823
98 490 818
146 843 762
146 468 163

321 094 826
6 988 308
61 107 026
163 271 244
89 728 248

Total assets

3 603 293 272

3 620 537 381

FUNDS AND LIABILITIES
Accumulated Funds
Council controlled unrestricted funds
Specifically restricted funds
Available-for-sale reserve

1 857 690 167
1 282 883 656
265 475 400
309 331 111

2 010 594 306
1 358 125 037
248 254 531
404 214 738

Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings
Post-retirement medical aid obligation
Pension fund obligation
Government grants – deferred income

8
10,2
10,3
16.2-16.6

1 427 710 680
288 889 859
470 221 457
9 798 000
658 801 364

1 333 578 628
321 853 266
447 358 710
7 866 000
556 500 652

Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Employee leave liability
Current portion of interest-bearing borrowings
Government grants – deferred income

11
10,1
8
16.2-16.6

317 892 425
182 862 477
92 516 493
33 221 155
9 292 300

276 364 447
155 465 026
81 306 954
30 882 467
8 710 000

3 603 293 272

3 620 537 381

Total funds and liabilities
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 December 2016
2016
Note

TOTAL INCOME
RECURRENT REVENUE
State appropriations – subsidies and grants

12

Tuition and residence fees
Income from contracts:
for research
for other activities
Rendering of services
Gifts and donations
Sub-total
Interest income and dividends

13

NON-RECURRENT INCOME
Loss on scrapping/disposal of PPE
Realised gains on sale of investments

3

Other non-recurrent income
TOTAL EXPENDITURE
RECURRENT EXPENDITURE
Personnel

15

Council
Controlled
Unrestricted

Specifically
Funded Activities
Restricted

R

R

2015

SUB - TOTAL

Student & staff
Accommodation
Restricted

TOTAL

TOTAL

R

R

R

R

1 688 679 839

348 914 936

2 037 594 775

213 403 885

2 250 998 660

2 133 034 581

1 578 312 619

347 393 970

1 925 706 589

213 434 011

2 139 140 600

2 082 860 571

982 655 698

49 152 316

1 031 808 014

-

1 031 808 014

987 807 910

512 924 957

97 627 409

610 552 366

205 620 700

816 173 066

778 407 443

5 763 328

58 736 710

64 500 038

-

64 500 038

55 759 284

247 843

39 413 120

39 660 963

-

39 660 963

44 347 933

5 515 485

19 323 590

24 839 075

-

24 839 075

11 411 351

5 290 525

47 984 855

53 275 380

7 813 311

61 088 691

51 598 879

(2 372 125)

93 892 680

91 520 555

-

91 520 555

132 897 682

1 504 262 383

347 393 970

1 851 656 353

213 434 011

2 065 090 364

2 006 471 198

74 050 236

-

74 050 236

-

74 050 236

76 389 373

110 367 220

1 520 966

111 888 186

(30 126)

111 858 060

50 174 010

(209 712)

(26 300)

(236 012)

(30 126)

( 266 138)

( 354 693)

101 499 901

-

101 499 901

-

101 499 901

31 176 539

9 077 031

1 547 266

10 624 297

-

10 624 297

19 352 164

1 755 361 976

331 694 067

2 087 056 043

238 663 208

2 325 719 251

2 159 006 174

1 750 368 249

331 694 067

2 082 062 316

238 663 208

2 320 725 524

2 123 965 007

1 134 273 883

127 509 699

1 261 783 582

19 660 749

1 281 444 331

1 177 156 146

Academic professional

619 523 081

64 070 762

683 593 843

2 005 721

685 599 564

587 236 863

Other personnel

514 750 802

63 438 937

578 189 739

17 655 028

595 844 767

589 919 283

573 119 540

190 554 915

763 674 455

183 674 585

947 349 040

848 206 804

Other operating expenses

14

Depreciation

2

Sub-total

41 546 263

13 629 453

55 175 716

5 373 054

60 548 770

66 617 050

1 748 939 686

331 694 067

2 080 633 753

208 708 388

2 289 342 141

2 091 980 000

Finance costs

9

1 428 563

-

1 428 563

29 954 820

31 383 383

31 985 007

NON-RECURRENT EXPENDITURE
Impairment of investments

3

4 993 727
4 993 727

-

4 993 727
4 993 727

-

4 993 727
4 993 727

35 041 167
35 041 167

NET (LOSS)/SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR

(66 682 137)

17 220 869

(49 461 268)

(25 259 323)

(74 720 591)

(25 971 593)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items which are subsequently reclassifiable to
surplus/(loss):

(78 183 548)

-

(78 183 548)

-

(78 183 548)

36 349 705

Fair value gains on available-for-sale investments

3

6 616 274

-

6 616 274

-

6 616 274

80 413 482

Realised gains on sale of investments

3

(101 499 901)

-

(101 499 901)

-

(101 499 901)

(31 176 539)

Items which will never be reclassified to
surplus/(loss):
(870 000)

-

(870 000)

-

(870 000)

4 472 362

17 570 079

-

17 570 079

-

17 570 079

(17 359 600)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(144 865 685)

17 220 869

(127 644 816)

(25 259 323)

(152 904 139)

10 378 113

NET RECURRENT (LOSS)/SURPLUS

(172 055 630)

15 699 903

(156 355 727)

(25 229 197)

(181 584 924)

(41 104 436)

Remeasurements of the pension fund obligation
Remeasurements of the post-retirement medical aid
obligation
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 December 2016
2015
Note

TOTAL INCOME

Council
Controlled
Unrestricted

Specifically
Funded Activities
Restricted

SUB - TOTAL

Student & staff
Accommodation
Restricted

R

R

R

R

TOTAL
R

1 607 812 376

322 551 352

1 930 363 728

202 670 853

2 133 034 581

1 560 619 244
915 220 379
532 379 307
6 134 340
2 225 725
3 908 615
32 146 004
7 792 676
1 493 672 706
66 946 538

319 533 896
72 587 531
46 449 237
49 624 944
42 122 208
7 502 736
16 812 262
125 105 006
310 578 980
8 954 916

1 880 153 140
987 807 910
578 828 544
55 759 284
44 347 933
11 411 351
48 958 266
132 897 682
1 804 251 686
75 901 454

202 707 431
199 578 899
2 640 613
202 219 512
487 919

2 082 860 571
987 807 910
778 407 443
55 759 284
44 347 933
11 411 351
51 598 879
132 897 682
2 006 471 198
76 389 373

47 193 132
(233 483)
31 176 539
16 250 076

3 017 456
(84 632)
3 102 088

50 210 588
(318 115)
31 176 539
19 352 164

(36 578)
(36 578)
-

50 174 100
(354 693)
31 176 539
19 352 164

1 680 003 164

286 355 078

1 966 358 242

192 647 932

2 159 006 174

9

1 644 961 997
1 082 594 224
548 774 513
533 819 711
511 119 657
49 603 616
1 643 317 497
1 644 500

286 355 078
76 440 952
37 901 893
38 539 059
201 224 226
8 689 900
286 355 078
-

1 931 317 075
1 159 035 176
586 676 406
572 358 770
712 343 883
58 293 516
1 929 672 575
1 644 500

192 647 932
18 120 970
560 457
17 560 513
135 862 921
8 323 534
162 307 425
30 340 507

2 123 965 007
1 177 156 146
587 236 863
589 919 283
848 206 804
66 617 050
2 091 980 000
31 985 007

3

35 041 167
35 041 167

-

35 041 167
35 041 167

-

35 041 167
35 041 167

(72 190 788)

36 196 274

(35 994 514)

10 022 921

(25 971 593)

36 349 705

-

36 349 705

-

36 349 705

80 413 482

-

80 413 482

-

80 413 482

(31 176 539)

-

(31 176 539)

-

(31 176 539)

4 472 362

-

4 472 362

-

4 472 362

(17 359 600)

-

(17 359 600)

-

(17 359 600)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(35 841 084)

36 196 274

355 191

10 022 921

10 378 112

NET RECURRENT (LOSS)/SURPLUS

(84 342 753)

33 178 818

(51 163 935)

10 059 499

(41 104 436)

RECURRENT REVENUE
State appropriations – subsidies and grants
Tuition and residence fees
Income from contracts:
for research
for other activities
Rendering of services
Gifts and donations
Sub-total
Interest income and dividends
NON-RECURRENT INCOME
Profit on scrapping/ disposal of PPE
Realised gains on sale of investments
Other non-recurrent income

12

13

3

TOTAL EXPENDITURE
RECURRENT EXPENDITURE
Personnel
Academic professional
Other personnel
Other operating expenses
Depreciation
Sub-total
Finance costs
NON-RECURRENT EXPENDITURE
Impairment of investments

15
14

2

NET SURPLUS/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items which are subsequently reclassifiable
to surplus/(loss):
Fair value gains on available-for-sale
3
investments
Realised gains on sale of investments
3
Items which will never be reclassified to
surplus/(loss):
Remeasurements of the pension fund
obligation
Remeasurements of the post-retirement
medical aid obligation
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS
for the year ended 31 December 2016
2015

Note
Balance at 31 December 2014

Council
Controlled
Unrestricted
Funds

Specifically
Restricted
Funds

Student & staff
Accommodation
Funds

Available
for Sale
Reserve

TOTAL

R

R

R

R

R

1 433 180 142

212 058 257

-

354 977 795

2 000 216 194

(85 078 026)
(72 190 788)

36 196 274
36 196 274

10 022 921
10 022 921

49 236 943
-

10 378 112
(25 971 593)

4 472 362

-

-

-

4 472 362

(17 359 600)

-

-

-

(17 359 600)

-

-

-

49 236 943

49 236 943

10 022 921

-

(10 022 921)

-

-

Balance at 31 December 2015

1 358 125 037

248 254 531

-

404 214 738

2 010 594 306

Total comprehensive income

(49 982 059)

17 220 869

(25 259 323)

(94 883 627)

(152 904 139)

Net (loss)/surplus for the year
Remeasurements of the
pension fund obligation
Remeasurements of the
post-retirement medical aid
obligation
Net movement on available-forsale investments

(66 682 137)

17 220 869

(25 259 323)

-

(74 720 591)

(870 000)

-

-

-

(870 000)

17 570 079

-

-

-

17 570 079

-

-

-

(94 883 627)

(94 883 627)

Transfers – (debits)/credits

(25 259 323)

-

25 259 323

-

-

1 282 883 656

265 475 400

-

309 331 111

1 857 690 167

Total comprehensive income
Net surplus for the year
Remeasurements of the pension
fund obligation
Remeasurements of the postretirement medical aid obligation
Net movement on available-for-sale
investments
Transfers – credits/(debits)

Balance at 31 December 2016
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 December 2016
Note
Cash flow from operating activities
Cash receipts from government
Cash receipts from students and other customers
Cash paid to employees and suppliers
Cash utilised in operations
Dividends received
Interest income
Finance costs

13
13

Net cash inflow from operating activities
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from disposals: investments

2
3
3

Cash flows from investing activities
Cash from financing activities
Repayment of loans
Infrastructure and other grants received
Cash flows from financing activities

16.2 – 16.6

Increase (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

86

7

2016
R

2015
R

912 129 385
1 008 176 294
(2 051 724 042)

924 394 387
991 756 848
(1 959 741 611)

(131 418 363)

(43 590 376)

18 020 520
56 029 715
(31 383 383)

23 143 548
53 245 825
(31 244 319)

(88 751 511)

1 554 678

(149 249 704)
6 099
(140 881 885)
325 914 977

(247 354 528)
1 589 662
(165 365 160)
328 405 688

35 789 487

(82 724 338)

(30 624 719)
140 326 658
109 701 939

(30 818 494)
52 313 319
21 494 825

56 739 915
89 728 248

(59 674 835)
149 403 083

146 468 163

89 728 248
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 December 2016
Note

2016
R

2015
R

(74 720 591)

(25 971 593)

60 548 770

31 383 383
4 993 727
(101 499 901)
(870 000)

66 617 050
(49 755 456)
354 693
(53 245 825)
(23 143 548)
31 985 007
35 041 167
(31 176 539)
4 472 362

17 570 079

(17 359 600)

(173 822 275)

(62 182 282)

11 209 539
24 794 747

10 106 184
42 110 967

(20 956 310)

(54 448 524)

(41 515)

(277 688)

27 397 450

21 100 967

(131 418 363)

(43 590 376)

Reconciliation of net loss to cash utilised in operations
Net loss
Adjusted for:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Government grants released to income
Loss on sale of property plant and equipment
Interest income
Dividends received
Finance costs
Impairment of investments
Realised gains on sale of investments
Remeasurement of the pension fund obligation
Remeasurement of the post-retirement medical aid
obligation

2
16.2 - 16.6
13
13
9

(37 443 645)
266 138
(56 029 715)
(18 020 520)

Movement in working capital
Increase in employee leave liability
Increase in employee benefits
Accounts receivables, student fees, non-current
receivables and prepayments
Inventories
Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and student
deposits
Cash utilised in operations

10.1
10.2 - 10.3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2016 for the year ended 31 December 2016

1

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES
			
1.1 General Information and Basis of preparation
The Cape Peninsula University of Technology was
established on 1 January 2005 with the merger
of the former Peninsula and Cape Technikons
and is domiciled in South Africa. The University’s
registered office is at the Administration Building,
Symphony Road, Bellville South, 7530.
		
The annual financial statements of the University
for the year ended 31 December 2016 were
authorised for issue in accordance with a
resolution of Council on 24 June 2017.
			
The principal activities of the University relate to
teaching, research and the providing of residential
accommodation to students.			
Statement of Compliance		
The financial statements of the Cape Peninsula
University of Technology have been prepared in
accordance with and comply with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and, in
the manner required by the Minister of Higher
Education and Training in terms of S41 of the
Higher Education Act 101 1997 (as amended).
			
Basis of Preparation
The accounting policies set out below are
consistent with those applied in the previous year
except as stated below. The financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern and
historical cost basis, except where stated
otherwise (refer accounting policies). The annual
financial statements are presented in Rands and
all amounts rounded to the nearest rand.		
			
Change in Accounting policies
No standard become effective this year and had
a significant effect on the annual financial
statements.
			
The following Standards and Interpretations have
been issued but are not yet effective. They have
not been early adopted by the University.		
		
• IFRS 9: Financial Instruments (effective
1 January 2018)		
• IFRS 15: Revenue from contracts with
customers (effective 1 January 2018)
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• IFRS16: Leases (Effective 1 January 2019)
				
Except for IFRS 9 and 16 the application of these
standards is expected to have no impact on the
reported numbers of the University, but will lead to
additional disclosure.
IFRS 9 and IFRS 16 are expected to impact
the University. Management is in the process of
determinig the expected impact of these two
accounting standards.
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
On 24 July 2014, the IASB issued the final
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments Standard, which
replaces earlier versions of IFRS 9 and completes
the IASB’s project to replace IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
			
The standard will have a significant impact on
the University, which will include changes in the
measurement bases of the University’s financial
assets to amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income or fair value through
profit or loss. Even though these measurement
categories are similar to IAS 39, the criteria for
classification into these categories are significantly
different. In addition, the IFRS 9 impairment model
has been changed from an “incurred loss” model
from IAS 39 to an “expected credit loss” model,
which is expected to increase the provision for
bad debts recognised in the University.			
				
The standard is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with
retrospective application, early adoption is
permitted.			
1.2 Significant accounting judgements and
estimates
Judgements
In the process of applying the University’s
accounting policies, management has made
certain judgements apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements as discussed below.
Management assesses the University’s assets and
liabilities based on the criteria at the reporting date
to reach the appropriate conclusions in this regard.
			

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2016

Estimation uncertainty			
The key assumptions concerning the future and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the reporting date, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities as well as the
release of income with respect to these assets,
within the next financial year are set out below.
Student fees receivable
Management estimates the amounts that it
expects to recover from outstanding balances
based upon the age profile of the debts
outstanding, payment trends experienced in both
the current and prior years, and the levels of
student registration and payments received from
outstanding students post year end as well as
events potentially impacting the recoverability
of fees receivable. A provision for impairment is
raised based on these estimates.
The carrying value of student fees receivable at 31
December 2016 was R146 843 762 (2015: R163
271 244) refer Note 6.			
Investments			
The University classifies certain assets as
available-for-sale and recognises movements in
their fair value in other comprehensive income.
When the fair value declines, management
makes assumptions about the decline in value to
determine whether it is an impairment that should
be recognised in income and expenses. An
investment is considered impaired if either; the fair
value at year end is more than 30% below original
cost; or the fair value is below cost for a period of
greater than 12 months. At 31 December 2016
impairment losses of R4 993 727 (2015: R35 041
167) have been recognised for available-for-sale
investments. The carrying value of investments at
31 December 2016 was R1 281 517 176 (2015:
R1 464 927 721) refer Note 3.				
Depreciation			
At each reporting date management reviews
the assets within property, plant and equipment
to assess whether the useful lives and residual
values applied to each asset category are
appropriate. With the exception of motor
vehicles residual values have generally been
assumed to be nil as it is the University’s
intention to fully consume assets through use.
In determining the expected useful lives of
individual assets management has considered

the University’s historical patterns of usage as
well as future expected usage. The estimates for
the expected useful lives of buildings have been
based upon the nature and use of the buildings
concerned and the type of construction and
materials used in construction. The carrying
value of property, plant and equipment at
31 December 2016 was R1 922 943 530 (2015:
R1 834 514 834). Refer to Note 2 for further
detail.
Post-retirement medical aid benefit obligation
The University’s future obligation in respect of
post-retirement medical aid contributions is
actuarially valued based on the projected unit
credit method. For the purpose of the valuation
at 31 December 2016 key assumptions were
made in respect of the discount rate, expected
inflation on medical aid contributions, actual
return on plan assets, expected age of
retirements and mortality rates. More details on
these assumptions are provided in Note 10.2.
The carrying value of the post retirement
medical aid obligations at 31 December 2016
is a liability of R470 221 457
(2015: R447 358 710).
Pension fund obligation
The University provides for its obligations relating
to conditional benefits in respect of certain
employees who are members of the National
Tertiary Retirement Fund. The University’s
future obligation in respect of this pension fund
obligation is actuarially valued based on the
projected unit credit method. For the purpose
of the valuation at 31 December 2016 key
assumptions were made in respect of the discount
rate, expected salary and pension fund increases,
expected return on plan assets, expected age of
retirements and mortality rates. More details on
these assumptions are provided in Note 10.3.
The carrying value of the obligation as at
31 December 2016 was R9 798 000
(2015: R7 866 000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2016 for the year ended 31 December 2016

1.3 Segment Information		
Segmentation provided in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income of these financial statements
is in terms of the guidelines prescribed by the
Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET)
and is not required in terms of IFRS 8.
			
A segment is a recognised component of
the University that is engaged in providing
products or services that are subject to risks
and returns different from those of other
segments.
The operating businesses are managed
separately but fall under the oversight of the
Cape Peninsula University of Technology
executive leadership.
Council controlled
The Council controlled segment predominantly
represents the teaching component of the Cape
Peninsula University of Technology. Decision
making rights relating to income earned in this
segment rests with Council.
Specifically funded activities restricted
The specifically funded activities restricted consist
mainly of research activity and bursary donations.
Here decision making rights over income earned
and related expenses rest with researchers.
Council retains an oversight role in regard to
ensuring that expenditure is in accordance with
the mandate received from funders.
		
Student and staff housing
Student and staff housing relates to the provision
of accommodation to students. The availability
of this accommodation being a strategic initiative
aimed at ensuring that students adopt the Cape
Peninsula University of Technology as their
preferred place of study.
					
Statement of changes in funds
The total comprehensive income generated
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
segments is further allocated into additional
funds within the Statement of Changes in
Funds. Council controlled funds are allocated
between unrestricted funds and designated
funds, whereby the Council sets aside specific
funds for designated purposes. Transfers
between these funds are an internal allocation
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by the University and have no effect on income
and expenses.
1.3.1 Accumulated Funds		
Council controlled unrestricted funds reserve
This reserve predominantly represents the
cumulative net surplus of the teaching component
of the Cape Peninsula University of Technology.
The net (loss)/surplus for the year for the student
and staff accommodation is included here. 		
		
Specifically restricted funds reserve
This reserve comprises the cumulative net surplus
of specifically funded activities.
Available-for-sale reserve
This reserve comprises the cumulative net change
in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
until the assets are derecognised or impaired.
1.4 Foreign currency translation
The financial statements are presented in
Rands, which is the University’s functional and
presentation currency.
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially
recorded in the exchange currency rate ruling at
the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate
of exchange ruling at the reporting date. All
differences are taken to net surplus or loss in the
year in which they arise.
Non-monetary items carried at cost are
translated using the exchange rate at the date
of the transaction, whilst assets carried at fair
value are translated at the exchange rate when
the fair value was determined. When a gain
or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
directly in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss shall
be recognised directly in other comprehensive
income. Conversely, when a gain or loss on a
non-monetary item is recognised directly in net
surplus or loss, any exchange component of that
gain or loss shall be recognised directly in net
surplus or loss.			

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2016

1.5 Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received, or receivable excluding
discounts, rebates and VAT. Revenue is recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the University and the revenue
can be reliably measured. The following specific
recognition criteria must also be met before revenue
is recognised:
			
State appropriations – subsidies and grants		
Government grants relating to revenue
State subsidy and grants for general purposes
are recognised in surplus or loss as revenue in the
financial year in which they become receivable.
Subsidies and grants for specific research
purposes are recognised in surplus or loss as
revenue in the financial period in which they
become receivable to the University in accordance
with the relevant conditions of such grants and
agreements. Such subsidies and grants are
presented separately as revenue in surplus or loss.
Subsidies and grants relating to specific expenses
incurred by the University are not offset from the
related expenses, but are presented separately as
revenue in surplus or loss.
Government grants relating to assets
When a grant relates to an asset, the fair value
is credited to a deferred income account and is
released to income over the expected useful life of
the relevant asset on a systematic basis.			
Designated income from contracts, gifts and
donations
Revenue received for designated specific
purposes arises from contracts, gifts and
donations. Such revenue is recognised in the
financial period in which they become receivable
to the University in accordance with the conditions
attached to the relevant agreement.
		
Income from contracts for research activity is
recognised over the duration of the associated
research activity as determined with reference
to the stage of completion. Stage of completion
is determined on a cost or time- apportionment
basis. Revenue from contracts for other activities
is recognised when such activities occur.		
Gifts and donations, whether of cash or assets,
are recognised as revenue in the period they are

received or receivable only when the University
obtains control of these funds, the right to receive
it or it is probable that the economic benefits
comprising these funds will flow to the University
and the amount of the gifts and donations can be
measured reliably.		
Gifts and grants with restrictions or conditions
attached are recognised as income if the
restrictions and conditions are under the entity’s
purview and it is probable that these restrictions
and conditions would be met. Alternatively, these
funds are recognised as deferred income until the
above criteria are fulfilled or when the restrictions
or conditions expire.
Income is recognised at the fair value of the gifts
and donations received or receivable. Gifts and
donations in the form of services are measured at
the fair value of the services received or the fair
value of the asset enhancement resulting from
the services. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.			
			
Tuition and residence fees				
Tuition and residence fees charged are applicable
to one academic and financial year and are
recognised in revenue in the period to which they
relate on a stage of completion basis determined
on a time-apportionment basis.
				
Interest income					
Revenue is recognised as interest accrues (using
the effective interest method that is the rate that
discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset).
			
Dividends						
Dividends are recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.			
Rendering of services
		
Various academic departments render a range
of services to industry. Revenue from rendering
of these services is recognised by reference to
the stage of completion, determined on a cost or
time-apportionment basis, as appropriate of the
services involved. 					
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1.6 Retirement benefits				
Defined contribution retirement plan 		
Employer contributions to the Cape Peninsula
University of Technology Retirement Fund
(previously known as the Cape Technikon
Retirement Fund) are recognised as expenses as
the related service is provided.
Defined contribution and defined benefit
retirement plan 				
Retirement Fund (NTRF) are recognised as
expenses as the related service is provided.		
The NTRF is a defined contribution fund and
members were transferred from the AIFPF
(previous State Pension Fund) with conditional
benefits which materialise once these conditions
are met. In terms of the conditional retirement
benefits, membersí benefits are equal to the actual
value at date of retirement provided that they are
60 years or older and the Employer is obliged to
ensure that the conditional retirement benefit is
effected, as referred in those membersí conditions
of employment and the contract between the
Fund and the respective participating employers
to fund any shortfall (difference between the
Member Share account and actuarial value of the
benefit) at retirement.				
The costs incurred in respect of these pension
fund obligations are charged as an expense, as
the employee renders the service. The present
value of the pension fund obligation is actuarially
determined annually using the projected unit credit
method in accordance with IAS 19 Employee
Benefits. The liability is recognised at the
reporting date.
			
When the calculation results in a potential asset,
the recognised asset is limited to the present value
of economic benefits available in the form of any
future refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan. To calculate the present
value of the economic benefits, consideration
is given to any applicable minimum funding
requirements.
		
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit
liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses,
the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and
the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding
interest), are immediately recognised in Other
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Comprehensive Income (OCI). The institution
determines the net interest expense/(income)
on the net defined benefit liability/(asset) for the
period by applying the discount rate used to
measure the conditional benefit obligation at the
beginning of the annual period to the then net
conditional benefit liability/(asset) during the period
as a result of contributions and benefit payments.
Net interest expense and other expenses related
to defined benefit plans are recognised in surplus
or loss.
				
When the benefits of a plan are changed or when
a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit
that relates to past service or the gain or loss on
curtailment is recognised immediately in surplus or
loss. The institution recognises gains or losses on
the settlement of a conditional benefit plan when
the settlement occurs.

Post-retirement medical aid obligations		
The Cape Peninsula University of Technology has
an obligation to provide certain post retirement
medical aid benefits to its eligible employees and
pensioners. The University is required to provide
a defined amount of the medical aid contribution
due. One of the University’s plans is funded with a
plan asset.
Other staff members elected to take out individual
retirement annuities which will be used to fund
their medical aid obligation upon retirement. The
institution provides these staff members with a
monthly allowance to enable them to fund these
individual retirement annuities.				
The costs of providing post-retirement medical aid
benefits are determined using the projected unit
credit method. 					
When the calculation results in a potential asset,
the recognised asset is limited to the present
value of economic benefits available in the form
of any future refunds from the plan or reductions
in future contributions to the plan. To calculate
the present value of the economic benefits,
consideration is given to any applicable minimum
funding requirements. The net obligation is
calculated separately for each plan by estimating
the amount of the future benefit that the
employees have earned in the current and prior
periods, discounting that amount and deducting
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the fair value of any plan assets.
			
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability,
which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the
return on plan assets (excluding interest) and
the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding
interest), are immediately recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI). The institution
determines the net interest expense/(income) on
the net defined benefit liability/(asset) for the period
by applying the discount rate used to measure
the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of
the annual period to the then net defined benefit
liability/(asset) during the period as a result of
contributions and benefit payments. Net interest
expense and other expenses related to defined
benefit plans are recognised in surplus or loss.
When the benefits of a plan are changed or when
a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit
that relates to past service or the gain or loss on
curtailment is recognised immediately in surplus
or loss. The institution recognises gains or losses
on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when
the settlement occurs.

1.7 Borrowing costs				
Borrowing costs are accrued based on the
effective interest rate. Borrowing costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of an asset that necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are
recognised as an expense.

1.8 Research costs				
Research costs are expensed as incurred and is
included in other operating expenses.		

1.9 Property, plant and equipment		
Property, plant and equipment are initially
recognised when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the University
and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. Property, plant and equipment are
initially measured at cost. The cost of an asset

comprises the purchase price and any costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to operate
as intended by management.			
Subsequently, property plant and equipment is
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and net of any accumulated impairment losses.
Subsequent costs are included in the assetís
carrying amount or are recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the University
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Maintenance and repairs, which do not meet
these criteria, are recognised in surplus or loss
as incurred. Donated items of property, plant and
equipment are initially recognised at fair value of
the asset received. Land is not depreciated as it is
deemed to have an indefinite life.			
		
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis estimated to write each
asset down to its estimated residual value over the
estimated useful lives of the assets which range
as follows:
Useful Life
Land
Buildings
Leasehold Improvements
Motor vehicles
Furniture and equipment
Computer equipment

Indefinite
5 to 200 years
Lease period
5 to 12 years
1 to 15 years
3 to 12 years

The assetsí residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
reporting date.
If significant parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives then they are
accounted for as separate items of property, plant
and equipment.
				
Depreciation commences when an asset is
available for use, i.e. when it is in the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by
management. Depreciation ceases at the earlier
date that the asset is either classified as held for
sale or the asset is derecognised.
An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
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economic benefits are expected from its use. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in surplus or loss in the year the
asset is derecognised. 				

1.10 Impairment of non-financial assets		
The University assesses at each reporting date
whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any such indication exists,
the University makes an estimate of the asset’s
recoverable amount.
An assetís recoverable amount is the higher of
an assetís fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use. Value in use is the present value of
future cash flows expected to be derived from an
asset or cash generating unit. Where the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and
is written down to its recoverable amount and
impairment losses recognised in surplus or loss.
An assessment is made at each reporting
date as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the assetís
recoverable amount since the last impairment
loss was recognised. If that is the case the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its
recoverable amount. That increased amount
cannot exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation, had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in net
surplus.
			
After such a reversal the depreciation charge is
adjusted in future periods to allocate the assetís
revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on
a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

1.11 Financial assets and liabilities		
Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognised
on the statement of financial position when the
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University becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. The trade date method
of accounting has been adopted for ‘regular way’
purchase or sale of financial assets. The trade date
is the date that an enterprise commits to purchase or
sell an asset. A ‘regular way’ contract is a contract
for the purchase or sale of financial assets that
require delivery of the assets within the time frame
generally established by regulation or convention
in the market place concerned. Financial assets
are classified as either loans and receivables or
available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. The
University determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at each
financial year-end.
			
Financial assets and liabilities are initially
measured at fair value including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition the measurement
of financial assets and liabilities depends upon the
classification of instrument as follows:		
Loans and receivables			
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Such
assets comprise student fees , NSFAS, trade,
government, other and accounts receivable in
terms of contracts and loans to employees. These
assets are initially measured at fair value and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Gains and losses are
recognised in net surplus or loss when the loans
and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as
well as through the amortisation process.
Available-for-sale financial assets		
Available-for-sale financial assets are those nonderivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified in any of
the three preceding categories. Such assets are
comprised of investments in listed equity shares,
quoted interest bearing corporate and government
bonds, quoted unit trusts and money market
deposits. After initial recognition available-for-sale
financial assets are measured at fair value with gains
or losses being recognised as other comprehensive
income in the available-for-sale reserve until the
investment is derecognised or until the investment
is determined to be impaired at which time the
cumulative gain or loss previously reported in other
comprehensive income is included in income and
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expenses. The fair value of investments that are
1.12
actively traded in organised financial markets is
determined by reference to quoted market prices at
the close of business on the reporting date. 		
				
Cash and cash equivalents				
Cash and cash equivalents are initially measured
at fair value. They are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Cash and cash equivalents consist
of cash on hand, short-term deposits and balances
at banks, net of outstanding bank overdrafts for
purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows.
Financial liabilities					
Financial liabilities are comprised of trade payables
and accrued expenses, student creditors and
deposits, other payables and interest-bearing
loans and borrowings.
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. They are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method. Gains and
losses are recognised in net surplus or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the amortisation process.
Students with credit balances and upfront
deposits by current and prospective students
are treated as current liabilities until the amount
is settled as due. Student creditors and
deposits are initially measured at fair value being
the amount received. They are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method. Gains and losses are
recognised in net surplus or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process. 				
		
Subsequent to initial recognition, interestbearing loans and borrowings are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The interest expense is recognised using the
effective interest rate method. Gains and losses
are recognised in net surplus or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported on the statement
of financial position when there is a currently
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities on a net basis.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised where:
• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired.		
• The University retains the right to receive cash
flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material
delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement.
• The University has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from the asset and either:
(a) Has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset;
(b) Has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
		
Financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.				
Where an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in net surplus or loss.		
		

1.13 Impairment of financial assets
The University assesses at each reporting date
whether a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or group
of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred if, there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred after initial recognition of the asset
(a ìloss eventí) and that loss event has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset and can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that debtors
or a group of debtors are experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will
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enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation
and where observable data indicate that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cashflows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
				
Assets carried at amortised cost		
If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables carried at amortised
cost has been incurred, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between
the assetís carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). The carrying amount of the asset
shall be reduced either directly or through use of
an allowance account. The amount of the loss
shall be recognised in net surplus or loss.
The University first assesses whether objective
evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant,
and individually or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If
it is determined that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, the
asset is included in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and that
group of financial assets is collectively assessed
for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is or continues to be recognised
are not included in a collective assessment
of impairment. If, in a subsequent period, the
amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in
net surplus or loss, to the extent that the carrying
value of the asset does not exceed its amortised
cost at the reversal date.
		
Available-for-sale financial assets		
Where there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, the cumulative loss is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in
net surplus or loss. The cumulative loss is the
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difference between the acquisition cost less any
impairment losses previously recognised. In the
case of equity investments classified as availablefor-sale, objective evidence would include a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the investment below cost. ‘Significant’ is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and
‘prolonged’ against the period in which the fair
value has been below its original cost. 			
				
If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a
debt instrument classified as available for sale
increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in net surplus or loss, the
impairment loss shall be reversed, with the
amount of the reversal recognised in net surplus
or loss.
Impairment losses on equity investments are not
reversed through net surplus or loss, increases
in their fair value after impairment are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.

1.14 Inventories					
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Net realisable value is
the replacement cost of the inventories. Cost is
determined on the weighted average method.
The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of
purchase,costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.
Jewellery is loaned to the University for use
by students. The jewellery is accounted for as
inventory and is valued at its market value on the
date it is received. It is subsequently remeasured
to fair value at the end of each year with fair value
changes recognised directly in comprehensive
income. A corresponding liability is raised and is
included in accounts payable. 				
			
1.15 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the University has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will
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be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
The expense relating to any provision net of any
reimbursement is presented in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income. If the effect of the
time value of money is material, provisions are
discounted using a current rate that reflects,
where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
Where discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised
as a finance cost. The discount rate is a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money.

1.16 Leases					
The determination of whether an arrangement is,
or contains a lease is based on the substance
of the arrangement at inception date of whether
the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset or assets or the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. A
reassessment is made after inception of the lease
only if one of the following applies:
(a) There is a change in contractual terms,
other than a renewal or extension of the
arrangement.				
(b) A renewal option is exercised or extension
granted, unless the term of the renewal or
extension was initially included in the lease
term.			
(c) There is a change in the determination of
whether fulfilment is dependant on a specified
asset.				
(d) There is a substantial change to the asset.
Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting
shall commence or cease from the date when
the change in circumstances gave rise to the
reassessment for scenarios (a), (c) or (d) and at the
date of renewal or extension period for scenario (b).
Leases of property, plant and equipment where
the University assumes substantially all the
benefits and risk of ownership are classified as
finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
the lower of the fair value of the asset at inception
date or the present value of the minimum lease
payments.

Each minimum lease payment is allocated
between liability and finance charges to achieve a
constant rate on the finance balance outstanding.
The corresponding rental obligations, net
of finance charges, are included in interestbearing borrowings. The interest element of the
finance charges is charged to the statement of
comprehensive income over the lease period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under
finance leasing contracts are depreciated over the
shorter of the useful life of the assets or the lease
term, only if there is no reasonable certainty that
the University will obtain ownership at the end of
the lease term.
Leases of assets under which all the risks and
benefits of ownership are effectively retained
by the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases are
charged as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease. Any contingent rental
expenses are accounted for as incurred. Any
difference that arises between the straight line basis
and contractual cash flows is recognised as an
operating lease obligation or asset.
When an operating lease is terminated before the
lease period has expired, any payment required
to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is
recognised as an expense in the period in which
termination takes place. 				
		
1.17 Other employee related liabilities		
Short-term employee benefits
University’s staff members, in the case of
death, qualify for different categories of benefits
depending on whether they are a member of the
Pension or Provident Fund.				
Other long-term employee benefits
Certain staff members of the two heritage
institutions (Cape and Peninsula Technikons)
qualify for certain post-retirement medical aid
benefits (refer Note 10.2) and pension fund
benefits (refer Note 10.3). In some cases the
institution will contribute either 50%, 66.67%
or 100% of the medical aid contributions to an
approved scheme upon retirement, whilst in the
case of other qualifying members the University
is paying a monthly allowance to those staff
members to enable them to purchase a retirement
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annuity which they could utilise upon retirement
towards their medical aid contributions. The cost
pertaining to these benefits is expensed during the
period. With regards to staff members of the NTRF
who qualify for defined benefits upon retirement,
the University pays the shortfall as calculated by
the actuaries, into the members’ fund during the
year of retirement. The related cost is expensed
during that period.

2

Post-employment benefits
Qualifying staff members who were employed at
the University prior to 1 January 2005, accrue leave
at a rate of 12 days per annum and are entitled to
encash those 12 days on an annual basis.
The accumulative leave is limited to 120 days.
Upon termination of employment, the unutilised
portion of this accumulative leave is paid to the
staff member at the rate of pay prevailing at the
termination date.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2016
Cost
Cost 1 January 2016
Additions

Land and
buildings
R

Cost 31 December 2016

Computer
equipment
R

Motor
Vehicles
R

14 420 794 2 410 756 050

1 854 643 070

24 490 270

345 111 290

172 090 626

115 810 457

-

10 914 250

21 964 018

TOTAL
R

560 979

149 249 704

-

-

(744 755)

(3 289 213)

-

(4 033 968)

(60 094)

60 094

-

-

-

-

1 970 393 433

24 550 364

355 280 785

190 765 431

224 599 439

12 439 425

201 477 337

128 054 295

9 670 720

576 241 216

11 054 397

1 284 833

27 936 188

19 107 265

1 166 087

60 548 770

Disposals/ Scrapping
Reclassification

Leasehold
Furniture and
improvements equipment
R
R

14 981 773 2 555 971 786

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance 1 January 2016
Depreciation charge

-

-

(605 487)

(3 156 243)

-

(3 761 730)

235 653 836

13 724 258

228 808 038

144 005 317

10 836 807

633 028 256

1 734 739 597

10 826 106

126 472 747

46 760 114

4 144 966 1 922 943 530

Computer
equipment
R

Motor
Vehicles
R

13 334 131 2 169 557 376

Disposals/ Scrapping
Balance 31 December 2016
Carrying value 31 December 2016

2015
Cost
Cost 1 January 2015
Additions
Disposals/ Scrapping
Reclassification
Cost 31 December 2015

Land and
buildings
R

Leasehold
Furniture and
improvements equipment
R
R

1 668 143 929

TOTAL
R

25 128 560

306 965 778

155 984 978

185 860 851

-

39 051 662

21 355 352

1 086 663

247 354 528

-

-

(906 150)

(5 249 704)

-

(6 155 854)

638 290

(638 290)

-

-

-

-

1 854 643 070

24 490 270

345 111 290

172 090 626

199 174 675

12 145 455

178 307 887

115 875 853

8 331 796

513 835 666

25 424 764

293 970

23 699 042

15 860 350

1 338 924

66 617 050

-

-

(529 592)

(3 681 908)

-

4 211 500)

224 599 439

12 439 425

201 477 337

128 054 295

9 670 720

576 241 216

1 630 043 631

12 050 845

143 633 953

44 036 331

14 420 794 2 410 756 050

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance 1 January 2015
Depreciation charge
Disposals/ Scrapping
Balance 31 December 2015
Carrying value 31 December 2015
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A register of land and buildings is available for
inspection at the business address. The University
is not permitted to dispose of, or otherwise
alienate, its land and buildings without the preapproval of the Minister of Education.
The balance for land and buildings includes
R184 177 578 (2015: R54 773 032) in respect
of land. There were no additions to the land
balances in the current year.				
		
The University purchased land on Caledon Street
for R30 893 152 in November 2009 and entered
into a lease agreeement with developers to build
a residence on this land and once completed the
University would commence lease payments over
a 15 year period after which ownership of the
buildings will revert to the University.
The building was completed in February 2011 and
monthly lease payments commenced on
1 March 2011. The monthly lease payments
escalate at 8% per annum over the life of the
lease. From an accounting perspective the lease
is treated as a finance lease and the buildings are
valued based on the present value of future lease
payments. The future lease payments have been
discounted using an interest rate of 9.5%. As a
result the University has raised an asset of
R148 132 748 and a matching lease liability was
raised at the commencement of the lease (refer
Note 8).
3

CPUT in terms of its approval process obtained
approval from both its Council as well as the
Minister of Higher Education and Training to
purchase the property referred to as the Welgelegen
Sectional Title Scheme for a total purchase price of
R143,5 million(100% ownership). In February 2014,
CPUT entered into an agreement to purchase all the
sectional title units at Cape Suites and on 12 June
2014, the University purchased all the sectional title
units (bar three) for an amount of R140 407 267.
Other land and buildings additions relate to
the HDI Electrical Engineering, Sandenburgh
Residence Extension, Health and Wellness, and
Applied Sciences building projects.
The Cape Peninsula University of Technology’s
accumulated leasehold improvements with a carrying
value of R9 956 620(2015: R10 895 499) consist
of improvements to the buildings and residences
at the Mowbray and Wellington campuses
which are currently owned by the Western Cape
Education Department and are in the process of
being transferred into Cape Peninsula University of
Technology ownership.
Accumulated leasehold improvements with a
carrying value of R869 486 (2015: R1 155 346)
consist of improvements to the Thomas Patullo
building as well as buildings and residences leased
from Tygerberg Hospital and the Western Cape
College of Nursing in Athlone.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
2016
R

2015
R

Opening balance
Additions
Disposals
Realised gains on sale of investments
Impairment of investments
Fair value movement in investments

1 464 927 721
140 881 885
(224 415 076)
(101 499 901)
(4 993 727)
6 616 274

1 582 595 934
165 365 160
(297 229 149)
(31 176 539)
(35 041 167)
80 413 482

Closing balance

1 281 517 176

1 464 927 721

670 445 876
224 881 004
31 276 673
7 047 985
277 965 643
61 501 280
8 398 715

482 278 857
288 139 113
290 256 790
272 476 165
110 097 660
21 679 136

1 281 517 176

1 464 927 721

Investments comprise of the following:
Equities – local
Equities – foreign
Unit trusts – local
Interest bearing bonds – Foreign
Interest bearing bonds – local
Money market deposits – local
Money market deposits – foreign
Total available-for-sale investments
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All investments are classified as available-forsale investments.
Investments comprised investments in equities
and interest bearing bonds which are all
listed on recognised markets. In addition,
funds are held in a variety of money market
deposit accounts. Consequently, there are no
fixed maturity dates or significant terms and
conditions attached to the investments.
The University has pledged a maximum of
R100 000 000 of the investment portfolio
4

managed by Pan African Asset Management
as security against a loan facility of R150
000 000 with the Development Bank of
Southern Africa. As at 31 December 2016 the
outstanding balance of this loan facility was
R59 036 559 (2015: R75 904 148).
The market value of the pledged investment
Pan African Asset Management portfolio at
31 December 2016 is R241 620 513
(2015: R211 198 494).

INVENTORY
2016
R
Consumables
Jewellery
Food & beverage

5 906 027
990 046
133 750

5 728 362
1 136 289
123 657

Total

7 029 823

6 988 308

No inventory was written off during the year
(2015: Nil). Jewellery held as inventory is on
loan to the University and the amount of
5

2015
R

R467 721 (2015: R971 732) is included in
other payables (refer Note 11).

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAYMENTS
2016
R
Prepayments
Loans to employees – other
Loans to employees – computers
VAT receivable
National Student Financial Aid Scheme (NSFAS)
Other government receivables
Other receivables
Trade receivables
Less: Provision for doubtful debts – trade receivables

2015
R

10 790 086
2 999 298
41 349 144
199 000
13 561 636
39 664 341
(10 072 687)

3 680 793
6 909
10 443
4 217 254
4 232 532
20 847 029
7 446 264
34 648 600
(13 982 798)

98 490 818

61 107 026

Accounts receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 day terms with the exception of loans to
employees.
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Age analysis of accounts receivable
The age analysis below is based on the balances
per Note 5 on previous page, but excluding
prepayments and VAT receivable. The age analysis
is based on the date of invoice or the date the
receivable was raised in the accounts depending
Current
R

on the nature of the transaction, such as claims
from government. Any balances older than 30
days are considered past due but not impaired,
except for balances to the value of R10 072 687
(2015:R13 982 798) which had been provided for
at year-end.
30 Days
R

60 Days
R

90 Days +
R

Total
R

2016

1 800 152

28 150

83 208

82 789 924

84 701 434

2015

24 960 531

873 932

50 114

27 324 402

53 208 979

Movements in the provision for impairment of accounts receivable were as follows:

Collectively Impaired
R
At 31 December 2014
Charged
Utilised
At 31 December 2015
Released
Utilised

(11 983 471)
(2 002 081)
2 754
(13 982 798)
3 910 111
-

At 31 December 2016

(10 072 687)

Receivables consist mainly of claims from goverment. The University considers receivables which are neither past
due nor impaired to be fully recoverable as there is no indicators that the amount is not recoverable.

101

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2016 for the year ended 31 December 2016

6

STUDENT FEES RECEIVABLE
2016
R
Student debtors
Less: Provision for doubtful debts

Annual fees fall due and are payable in monthly
installments from February to November at a rate
of 10% of the fees. Semester fees fall due and
are payable in monthly installments at a rate of
20% of the fees from February to June for first
semester and from July to November for second
semester students respectively. Any amounts
outstanding in respect of annual and semester
fees after these dates are subject to interest at
prime plus 3% as and when a monthly instalment
is past due. No interest was charged during 2016
(2015: NIL).

Current year
R

2015
R

463 025 607
(316 181 845)

342 718 705
(179 447 461)

146 843 762

163 271 244

The debtors book of the University is subject
to collective impairment with the exception of
R146 843 762 (2015: R163 271 244) which is past
due by less than one year but not impaired. This
relates to student fees from currently registered
students which are considered fully receivable.
Age analysis of student fees receivable
The table below provides the age analysis of
student fees receivable (before provisions) as
at 31 December 2016. Due to the nature of its
operations, the University only tracks outstanding
fees on an academic year basis. All outstanding
balances are past due.

Prior year
R

Older years
R

Total
R

31 December 2016

235 664 789

67 713 832

159 646 986

463 025 607

31 December 2015

70 390 896

60 251 938

212 075 871

342 718 705

Movements in the provision for impairment of student fees receivable were as follows:
Collectively Impaired
R
At 31 December 2014
Provision write off
Charged
Utilised
At 31 December 2015
Provision write off
Charged
Utilised

226 249 270
(65 544 447)
47 189 292
(28 446 654)
179 447 461
(75 675 968)
212 087 116
323 236

At 31 December 2016

316 181 845
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the year-end cash and cash equivalents comprise of the
following:
2016
R
Cash at bank and on hand

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates
based on daily bank deposit rates, whilst shortterm deposits earn interest at a fixed rate.
The fair value of cash and cash equivalents is
R146 468 163 (2015:R89 728 248). The University
has a R40 million borrowing facility in respect of
8

2015
R

146 468 163

89 728 248

146 468 163

89 728 248

which all conditions precedent had been met at
year end. At 31 December 2016 the University had
not drawn on its borrowing facilities (2015: Nil).
The University held no funds on short term bank
deposits at year end (2015: Nil). The effective
interest rate of all short-term deposits held
throughout the period was 9.02% (2015: 5.49%).

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS
2016
R
Current
State loans
Finance leases
Financial institution loans
Non-current
State loans
Finance leases
Financial institution loans

State subsidised loans
These loans all have fixed interest rates ranging
from 9,50% to 13.22% and varying repayment
terms. They are unsecured and subsidised to
the extent of 85% for both interest and capital
repayments.
Finance leases
The University commenced a 15 year lease to
own arrangement in respect of the Caledon Street
residence in February 2011 (refer Note 2). The
lease is treated as a finance lease and the liability
is valued based on the present value of future
lease payments which have been discounted
using an interest rate of 9,5%. Contingent rental
to the value of R14 810 426 (2015: R13 715 468)
was expensed through surplus/(loss) in the year.
At the commencement of the lease, a liabilty of

2015
R

*

33 221 155
464 666
3 873 348
28 883 141

30 882 467
421 213
2 357 419
28 103 835

*

288 889 859
1 667 295
126 739 230
160 483 334

321 853 266
2 131 962
130 612 578
189 108 726

322 111 014

352 735 733

R128 912 748 was raised and for accounting
purposes interest will accrue on the balance at
9,5% over the life of the lease. As at 31 December
2016, the lease liability is R130 612 578
(2015: R132 969 997) and the interest charged
in respect of the liabilty in 2016 is R12 424 508
(2015: R12 557 204).
The leased premises shall be used as a student
residence, provided that such use does not
contravene any town planning conditions
applicable in respect of the property and for no
other purpose without the prior consent, which
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or
delayed.
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INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (continued)
Financial institutions loans
Development Bank of Southern Africa
A loan facility of R150 000 000 was agreed with
the Development Bank of Southern Africa during
2009 and as at 31 December 2016 the balance
outstanding on the facility was R59 036 559 (2015:
R75 905 148). The loan bears interest at a variable
rate based on the 6 month ZAR-JIBARSAFEX
rate plus 2,75%. The loan is for a 10 year period
and payments are made twice a year at the end
of March and September. The first two payments
in 2010 were in respect of interest and thereafter
there will be 18 equal payments including interest
and capital. The University has pledged certain
investments as security against this loan facility refer
to Note 3. 						

First National Bank
A commercial property finance loan of R150 000
000 in respect of Cape Suites was registered at the
Deeds Office on 28 October 2014. The mortgage
bond is for a 10 year period and semi-annual
payments of R11 332 608 (2015: R10 721 974) is
due on 1 May and 1 November each year. The bond
bears interest at prime rate less 1,9% compounded
monthly. The Cape Suites residence is pledged as
security against this mortgage bond.
* Market data was not available for the
determination of the credit rating for these loans.
Flexing of the credit spread was performed to
determine whether a change in interest rate would
have a material effect on the financial statements.
It was determined that a decrease of 100 basis
points would result in the fair value being lower
than the carrying value by R9 496 667
(2015:R9 581 616).

Finance lease liabilities - minimum lease payments :
2016
R
Not later than 1 Year
Later than 1 Year and not later than 5 years
After 5 years

15 992 980
77 806 752
110 800 554
204 600 286

14 810 426
72 051 730
132 548 556
219 410 712

Future finance charges on finance leases

(73 987 708)

(86 440 715)

Present value of finance lease liabilities

130 612 578

132 969 997

3 873 348
35 724 681
91 014 549

2 357 419
26 988 017
103 624 561

130 612 578

132 969 997

The present value of finance lease liabilities may be analysed as follows:
Not later than 1 Year
Later than 1 Year and not later than 5 years
After 5 years

9

2015
R

FINANCE COSTS
2016
R
Finance costs
- state loans
- finance leases
- financial institution loans
- bank borrowings and other
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2015
R

255 777
12 424 508
18 700 473
2 625

295 114
12 557 204
19 128 468
4 221

31 383 383

31 985 007
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10

OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

10.1 Employee leave liability
2016
R

2015
R

Leave provision – balance at the beginning of the year
Additional provisions
Amounts utilised

81 306 954
11 462 928
( 253 389)

71 200 770
10 965 264
(859 080)

Leave provision – balance at the end of the year

92 516 493

81 306 954

A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual accumulative leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the reporting date. As the University does not have the unconditional right
to defer settlement of this liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date, the liability is classified
as being current.

10.2 Post-retirement medical aid obligation
The University operates defined benefit medical
aid schemes for the benefit of permanent
employees. Prior to the formation of the
merged institution both former Technikons had
separate contractual obligations to provide
post retirement medical benefits to qualifying
employees. The obligation in respect of the
former Peninsula Technikon is funded by a
plan asset whereas the obligation in respect
of the former Cape Technikon is unfunded.
Both obligations are actuarially valued and
accounted for separately as the University
does not have the legal right to offset the
plan assets in respect of the former Peninsula
Technikon scheme against the liabilities that
arise on the former Cape Technikon scheme.
			

Discount rate
Return on plan assets
Medical inflation
Retirement age
% married on retirement
Mortality – active (rated down 3 years for females)
Mortality – pension (rated down 2 years)

An explanation of each individual scheme and a
reconciliation of the movement in the obligation
in the scheme is set out separately below.
Former Peninsula Technikon Scheme
In terms of employment contracts, postretirement medical benefits are provided to
certain employees who commenced employment
at the former Peninsula Technikon prior to 1
January 1999 by subsidising the medical aid
contributions of retired employees.
The University’s future obligation in respect of
this post-retirement medical aid contributions
is actuarially valued annually by independent,
professional qualified actuaries using the
projected unit credit method. The last valuation
was performed as at 31 December 2016 and
the principal actuarial assumptions used in the
valuation were as follows:
2016

2015

9.23%
9.23%
7.68%
63
90%
SA 85-90
PA(90-2)

10.32%
10.32%
9.01%
63
90%
SA 85-90
PA(90)
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10.2

Post-retirement medical aid obligation (continued)

Former Peninsula Technikon Scheme
With effect 1 May 2003, a group annuity policy was created, which meets the definition of a plan asset in terms of
IAS19. The fair value of the plan asset at 31 December 2016 of R74 985 531(2015: R63 794 797) has therefore
been set off against the funding obligation.
Movement in net Post-Retirement Medical Obligation
Post-retirement medical
obligation
R
R
2016
2015
Balance at 1 January
Included in profit and loss

126 382 448

Fair value of plan assets
R
2016

Net Post-retirement
medical obligation
R
R
2016
2015

R
2015

114 119 276 (63 794 797)

(74 354 997)

62 587 651

39 764 279

974 658

1 201 534

-

-

974 658

1 201 534

12 015 299

9 057 720

(6 312 022)

(5 840 236)

5 703 277

3 217 484

12 989 957

10 259 254

(6 312 022)

(5 840 236)

6 677 935

4 419 018

(2 719 262)

(5 502 345)

-

-

(2 719 262)

(5 502 345)

4 583 316

761 812

-

-

4 583 316

761 812

356 034

11 184 007

-

-

356 034

11 184 007

• Change in prior year actuarial gain

(7 317 131)

-

-

-

(7 317 131)

-

- Actuarial (gain)/loss on plan assets
excluding interest income

-

- (10 260 664)

11 960 880 (10 260 664)

11 960 880

(5 097 043)

6 443 474 (10 260 664)

11 960 880 (15 357 707)

18 404 354

Current service costs
Interest expense/(income)

Included in Other comprehensive income(OCI)
Remeasurements loss/(gain):
- Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from:
• Basis changes: (increase)decrease in
net discount rate
• Medical inflation higher than
assumed
• Changes to membership profile
different from assumed

Other
Benefits paid

Balance at 31 December

(5 381 952)

(4 439 556)

5 381 952

4 439 556

-

-

(5 381 952)

(4 439 556)

5 381 952

4 439 556

-

-

126 382 448 (74 985 531)

(63 794 797)

53 907 879

62 587 651

53 907 879

62 587 651

128 893 410

Represented by: Net Post retirement-medical obligation: Former Peninsula Technikon
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10.2 Post-retirement medical aid obligation (continued)
Plan Assets
Assets are invested with AIG which has been set aside to fund the University’s post-employment health care liability.
This plan asset consists of cash and equity investments held in the following proportions at the valuation date:
2016
R
Equities
- Argon
Cash
- AIG
Total assets

2015
R

23 972 875

20 398 317

51 012 656

43 396 480

74 985 531

63 794 797

Sensitivity Analysis
Reasonably possible changes at reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other
assumptions constant, would have affected the obligation by the amounts shown below.
2016

1% increase and decrease in the assumed rate of health care cost inflation on the
liability
1% increase and decrease in the discount rate
1% increase and decrease in the assumed rate of health care cost inflation on
Employer’s service and interest cost
One year age reduction in the assumed rates of post-retirement mortality
One year decrease in the assumed average retirement age
An absolute reduction of 10% in the continuation rates at retirement
2015
1% increase and decrease in the assumed rate of health care cost inflation on the
liability
1% increase and decrease in the discount rate
1% increase and decrease in the assumed rate of health care cost inflation on
Employer’s service and interest cost
One year age reduction in the assumed rates of post-retirement mortality
One year decrease in the assumed average retirement age
An absolute reduction of 10% in the continuation rates at retirement

1%
increase
R

Valuation
basis
R

1%
decrease
R

143 563 000

128 893 410

116 382 000

116 117 000
14 658 000

128 893 410
12 989 957

144 147 000
11 584 700

133 771 000
130 445 000
124 032 000

128 893 410
128 893 410
128 893 410

-

141 705 000

126 382 448

113 403 000

113 135 000
11 699 800

126 382 448
10 259 254

142 310 000
9 060 200

131 139 000
128 227 000
120 488 000

126 382 448
126 382 448
126 382 448

-

Therefore, a 1% increase in the health care cost inflation assumption would result in a 11.4% (2015:12.1%) increase in the accrued
liability.
Similarly, a 1% decrease in the health care cost inflation assumption would result in a 9.0% (2015:10.3%) decrease in the accrued
liability.
Contributions to the plan for 2017 are expected to amount to R6 566 028 (2015: R5 381 952).
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10.2 Post-retirement medical aid obligation (continued)
actuarially valued annually by independent,
professional qualified actuaries using the
projected unit credit method. The last valuation
was performed as at 31 December 2016 and the
principal actuarial assumptions used in the
valuations were as follows:

Former Cape Technickon Scheme
The former Cape Technikon operated a postretirement medical benefit scheme for retired and
certain employees who joined the institution prior to
1 January 2003.
The University’s future obligation in respect of
this post-retirement medical aid contributions is

Discount rate
Medical inflation
Retirement age
% married on retirement
Mortality – active (rated down 3 years for females)
Mortality – pension (rated down 2 years)

2016

2015

9.36%
7.82%
64
90%
SA 85-90
PA(90-2)

10.27%
8.91%
64
90%
SA 85-90
PA(90)

Movement in net Post-Retirement Medical Obligation
Post-retirement medical
obligation
R
R
2016
2015
Balance at 1 January
Included in profit and loss
Current service costs
Interest expense

Balance at 31 December

R
2016

R
2015

359 784 102

-

-

384 771 059

359 784 102

7 553 780
39 472 391

7 672 297
29 119 598

-

-

7 553 780
39 472 391

7 672 297
29 119 598

47 026 171

36 791 895

-

-

47 026 171

36 791 895

(22 351 316)

-

-

(8 844 988)

(22 351 316)

7 548 579

-

-

10 427 782

7 548 579

13 757 983

-

-

(9 715 689)

13 757 983

-

-

-

5 920 523

-

(2 212 372)

(1 044 754)

-

-

(2 212 372)

(1 044 754)

(13 271 280)

(10 760 184)

-

- (13 271 280)

(10 760 184)

(13 271 280)

(10 760 184)

-

- (13 271 280)

(10 760 184)

416 313 578

384 771 059

-

-

416 313 578

384 771 059

416 313 578

384 771 059

Represented by: Net Post-retirement medical obligation: Former Cape Technikon
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Net Post-retirement
medical obligation
R
R
2016
2015

384 771 059

Included in Other comprehensive income(OCI)
Remeasurements loss/(gain):
- Actuarial loss/(gain) arising
from:
• Basis changes: (increase)
(8 844 988)
decrease in net
discount
rate
• Medical inflation higher than
10 427 782
assumed
• Changes to membership
(9 715 689)
profile different from assumed
• Change in prior year actuarial
5 920 523
loss

Other
Benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets
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10.2 Post-retirement medical aid obligation (continued)
Sensitivity Analysis
Reasonably possible changes at reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other
assumptions constant, would have affected the obligation by the amounts shown below.
1%
increase
R

2016

1% increase and decrease in the assumed rate of health care cost inflation on the
liability
1% increase and decrease in the discount rate
1% increase and decrease in the assumed rate of health care cost inflation on
Employer’s service and interest cost
One year age reduction in the assumed rates of post-retirement mortality
One year decrease in the assumed average retirement age
An absolute reduction of 10% in the continuation rates at retirement
2015
1% increase and decrease in the assumed rate of health care cost inflation on the
liability
1% increase and decrease in the discount rate
1% increase and decrease in the assumed rate of health care cost inflation on
Employer’s service and interest cost
One year age reduction in the assumed rates of post-retirement mortality
One year decrease in the assumed average retirement age
An absolute reduction of 10% in the continuation rates at retirement

Valuation
basis
R

1%
decrease
R

477 757 000

416 313 578

365 602 000

364 993 000
54 906 000

416 313 578
47 026 171

479 627 000
40 629 000

435 969 000
422 149 000
397 609 000

416 313 578
416 313 578
416 313 578

-

443 126 000

384 771 059

338 757 000

336 149 000
43 459 000

384 771 059
36 791 895

444 955 000
31 430 000

403 092 000
390 557 000
366 434 000

384 771 059
384 771 059
384 771 059

-

Therefore, a 1% increase in the health care cost inflation assumption would result in a 13.2% (2015:15.2%) increase in the accrued
liability.
Similarly, a 1% decrease in the health care cost inflation assumption would result in a 9.8% (2015:12%) decrease in the accrued
liability.
Contributions to the plan for 2017 are expected to amount to R15 109 476 (2015: R13 317 972).
10.3 Pension fund
10.3.1

Pension fund - defined contribution
Staff of the former Peninsula Technikon
belong to the National Tertiary Retirement
Fund (NTRF). This is a defined contribution
scheme, with certain conditional benefits (see
10.3.2).
Staff of the former Cape Technikon belong
to the Cape Peninsula University of
Technology Retirement Fund (previously
known as the Cape Technikon Retirement
Fund). This is a defined contribution
scheme.
The employer contributed an amount of
R112 835 570 in the current year (2015:
R102 561 122) in respect of both schemes.

10.3.2

Pension fund obligation
The NTRF is essentially a defined contribution
fund with conditional benefits to employees
transferred from the AIPF (State Pension
Fund) and who has not since surrendered
this benefit through an official buy out. At
retirement age, sixty or older, the employee
has a choice to retire with the fund balance
or the actuarial value of the fund according
to AIPF formula. During 2003 Peninsula
Technikon agreed with employees to fund
any shortfall on the benefit on a pay-as-yougo basis.
The actuarially calculated shortfall at 31
December 2016 amounted to R9 798 000
(2015: R7 866 000).
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10.3 Pension fund (continued)
Actuarial assumptions
The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date:

Discount rate per annum
Salary increase per annum
Actual rate of return on assets
Pensions increase per annum
Mortality tables – active staff (rated down 1 year males – 4 years females)
Mortality tables – pensioners (rated down 2 years)

2016

2015

8.90%
7.20%
8.90%
3.41%
SA56-62
PA90

9.80%
8.40%
9.80%
4.07%
SA56-62
PA90

Movement in Net Pension Fund Conditional Liability
Pension Fund Conditional
obligation
R
R
2016
2015
Balance at 1 January
Included in profit and loss
Current service costs
Interest expense/(income)

Balance at 31 December

R
2015

17 143 605

(3 124 000)

(3 578 243)

7 866 000

13 565 362

265 000
1 080 000

382 000
1 241 000

(283 000)

(273 000)

265 000
797 000

382 000
968 000

1 345 000

1 623 000

(283 000)

(273 000)

1 062 000

1 350 000

1 398 000

-

-

1 141 000

1 398 000

(3 187 000)

-

-

(675 000)

(3 187 000)

(2 458 000)

-

-

2 338 000

(2 458 000)

(1 980 605)
1 028 000
-

1 177 000

727 243

(1 000)
(1 142 000)
(17 000)
(1 568 000)
(383 000)
1 177 000

(1 980 605)
1 028 000
727 243

(307 000)

(5 199 605)

1 177 000

727 243

870 000

(4 472 362)

-

(2 577 000)

-

-

-

(2 577 000)

(479 000)

-

479 000

-

-

-

(479 000)

(2 577 000)

479 000

-

-

(2 577 000)

11 549 000

10 990 000

(1 751 000)

(3 124 000)

9 789 000

7 866 000

9 798 000

7 866 000

Represented by: Net Pension Fund Conditional Liability
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R
2016

Net Pension Fund
Conditional obligation
R
R
2016
2015

10 990 000

Included in Other comprehensive income(OCI)
Remeasurements loss/(gain):
- Actuarial loss/(gain) arising
from:
• Change in economic
1 141 000
assumptions
• Change in demographic
(675 000)
assumptions
• Investment returns on member
2 338 000
shares
(1 000)
• Other miscellaneous items
(1 142 000)
• Salary increases
(17 000)
• Operating costs
(1 568 000)
• Model Upgrade
(383 000)
• Benefits due
- Actuarial loss on plan assets
excluding interest income

Other
Contributions paid by the
employer
Benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2016

10.3 Pension fund (continued)
Sensitivity Analysis
Reasonably possible changes at reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions
constant, would have affected the obligation by the amounts shown below.
2016

11

1% increase
R

Valuation basis
R

1% decrease
R

1% increase and decrease in the discount rate
1% increase and decrease in the inflation rate
Pension increase policy (70% CPI)
Expected retirement age (NRA 65)

4 080 000
19 766 000
19 766 000
7 673 000

11 549 000
11 549 000
11 549 000
11 549 000

24 729 000
5 571 000
5 571 000
-

2015
1% increase and decrease in the discount rate
1% increase and decrease in the inflation rate
Pension increase policy (70% CPI)
Expected retirement age (NRA 65)

4 354 000
19 406 000
18 812 000
6 982 000

10 990 000
10 990 000
10 990 000
10 990 000

23 815 000
5 896 000
5 871 000
-

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Trade payables and accrued expenses
Student creditors and deposits
Other payables
Operating lease accrual – residences

2016
R

2015
R

115 480 324
63 366 280
4 015 873
-

91 386 568
59 944 697
4 133 761
-

182 862 477

155 465 026

Trade and other payables and accrued expenses are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-day terms.

12

STATE APPROPRIATIONS - SUBSIDIES AND GRANTS
2016
R
Subsidy for general purpose
DHET infrastructure grant recognised
DHET capital grant recognised
Multi campus grant
Foundation programme grant
Clinical training programme grants
Teaching development and collaborative grants
Research development grant
Subsidy for interest and redemption on state guaranteed loans
Other
Total

2015
R

977 144 833
5 316 737
180 000
15 125 000
4 660 926
19 684 918
4 194 242
575 442
4 925 916

893 177 000
10 194 250
180 000
5 184 000
33 915 000
6 162 417
22 730 881
10 487 908
575 442
5 201 012

1 031 808 014

987 807 910
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STATE APPROPRIATIONS - SUBSIDIES AND GRANTS (Continued)
Government grants relating to revenue
State subsidy and grants for general purposes
are recognised in surplus or loss as revenue in the
financial year in which they become receivable.
Subsidies and grants for specific research
purposes are recognised in surplus or loss as
revenue in the financial period in which they
become receivable to the University in accordance
with the relevant conditions of such grants and
agreements. Such subsidies and grants are
presented separately as revenue in surplus or loss.
Subsidies and grants relating to specific expenses
incurred by the University are not offset from the
related expenses, but are presented separately as
revenue in surplus or loss.

13

Government grants relating to assets		
When a grant relates to an asset, the fair value
is credited to a deferred income account and is
released to income over the expected useful life
of the relevant asset on a systematic basis.
Refer to Note 16 for a reconcilation of payments
received from the Department of Higher
Education and Training (DHET) in respect of
capital, infrastructure, teaching and development
as well as clinical training grants.

INTEREST INCOME AND DIVIDENDS
2016
R

14

2015
R

Bank interest
Interest income on loans other
Interest income on student receivables
Income from available-for-sale investments
- Dividends
- Interest

19 479 671
(5 350)
(18 899)

10 069 923
360
-

18 020 520
36 574 293

23 143 548
43 175 542

Total

74 050 235

76 389 373

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
2016
R

2015
R

Total other operating expenses

947 349 040

848 206 804

The following items are included in other operating expenses:
Repairs and maintenance – land and buildings
Repairs and maintenance – moveable assets
Software licenses and consumables
General services outsourced
Catering services outsourced
Fixed property rentals
Equipment rentals
Bad debts
Bursaries

24 808 117
11 520 144
9 431 010
154 622 648
145 528
79 602 998
8 072 706
213 010 725
106 193 754

36 945 878
15 445 914
13 531 427
123 574 841
81 523
61 816 588
7 103 556
95 208 869
135 986 863

Auditors’ remuneration
Statutory audit of Financial Statements
- Current year

4 529 541
2 783 504
2 783 504

4 696 035
2 687 550
2 687 550

Other audit services
- Current year

1 746 037
1 746 037

2 008 485
2 008 485
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PERSONNEL COSTS
Academic
Professional
R

Other
Personnel
R

Wages and salaries
Movement in pension fund obligation
Movement in leave pay provision
Retirement fund – defined contribution
Movement in post-retirement medical aid obligation

590 700 464
509 760
7 680 162
60 931 208
25 777 971

511 679 264
552 240
3 782 766
51 904 362
27 926 135

1 102 379 728
1 062 000
11 462 927
112 835 570
53 704 106

Total Personnel costs

685 599 564

595 844 767

1 281 444 331

Year ending - 31 December 2015

Academic
Professional
R

Other
Personnel
R

Wages and salaries
Movement in pension fund obligation
Movement in leave pay provision
Retirement fund – defined contribution
Movement in post-retirement medical aid obligation

504 077 892
648 000
7 346 727
55 383 006
19 781 238

516 990 955
702 000
3 618 537
47 178 116
21 429 675

1 021 068 847
1 350 000
10 965 264
102 561 122
41 210 913

Total Personnel costs

587 236 863

589 919 283

1 177 156 146

2016

2015

2 605
4 157

1 986
4 483

6 762

6 469

Year ending – 31 December 2016

Average number of persons employed during the year
Full time
Part-time
Total
16

DEFERRED INCOME			
Infrastructure and Merger income
The deferred income balance is comprised
of R15 660 000 (2015: R16 020 000) which
relates to funding received from the Department
of Higher Education and Training (DHET) in
respect of Merger cost claims for the period
2004-2007.
The DHET’s Infrastructure programme
is comprised of Phase 1: R114 550 000
(2015:R121 200 000); Phase 2: R150 754 000
(2015: R159 294 000) and Phase 3: R238 847
000 (2015: R238 847 000 )
The DHET approved a capital infrastructure
grant of R153million for CPUT in Phase 1 of
its capital infrastructure programme. The first
tranche of R30 million was received in March

Total
R

Total
R

2007, whilst the second and third tranches of
R48 and R75 million respectively were received
in March and November 2008.
In addition, the DHET has approved a further
R175,9 million for CPUT in Phase 2 of the
infrastructure programme. The first tranche of
R32,7 million was received in December 2010,
whilst the second and third tranches of R34,4
and R20,0 million respectively were received in
January and February 2011 and the balance of
R88,8 million in January 2012.			
In December 2012, DHET approved a
further R388,8 million for Phase 3 of CPUT’s
infrastructure programme of which R150
million of the funding must be provided by
CPUT. The first tranche of R79,616 million was
received in January 2013, whilst the second
and third tranches of R79,615 and R79,616
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DEFERRED INCOME (continued)			

million respectively were received in March and
September 2014.
An additional grant of R85 100 000 for
infrastructure repairs and maintenance was
received in April 2016.
Teaching Development and Collaborative
Programme grants
The deferred income balance comprises of R6
107 929 (2015: R4 664 832) which relates to
funding from DHET. The aim of these funds
is to provide financial support to improve the
graduation rate and therefore increase the
annual student success rate. The allocation for
2016 for this grant was R19 702 000 (2015:
R19 335 000) and the collaborative grant R Nil
(2015: R1 924 442).
				
Clinical Training grant
		
The deferred income balance comprises of R4
382 209 (2015: R6 616 335) which relates to
funding from DHET. The aim of these funds is to
provide clinical training to health professionals.
The allocation of R7 005 800, allocations of R3

470 000 and R3 678 000 respectively were
received in June 2011 and January 2012 and
the amounts of R4 260 000 and R1 114 000 in
March and April of 2015 and the amount of
R2 426 800 in July 2016.
			
NGAP grant
			
The deferred income balance comprises of R18
578 538 (2015:R12 654 393) which relates to
funding received from DHET. The aim of these
funds is in support of the new nGAP appointees
over the 6 years of the nGAP. The allocation for
2015 in support of this initiative was
R13 049 274 with an additional allocation of
R9 330 968 for 2016.				
Research and Development Grant
The deferred income balance comprises of
R24 060 725 (2015: R5 914 092) which relates to
funding received from DHET. The allocated funds
represent significantgovernment investments in
research development and should also ensure that
the transformation requirements of the country are
addressed in theuse of these funds.

16.1 Government grants released to income
2016
R
Income recognised – capital items (linked to depreciation charge)

5 496 737
5 496 737

2015
R
10 374 250
10 374 250

16.2 Government Grants - Infrastructure and merger cost claims:
2016
R

2015
R

Opening balance – deferred income
Amount raised – infrastructure grant received
Released to income

535 361 000
85 100 000
(5 496 737)

543 261 000
2 474 250
(10 374 250)

Closing balance – Infrastructure and Merger cost claims

614 964 263

535 361 000
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DEFERRED INCOME (continued)			

16.3 Government Grants - Teaching development and Collaborative programme grants:
2016
R
Opening balance
Amount raised – grant received
Released to income
Closing balance – Teaching development grant

2015
R

4 664 832
21 128 015
(19 684 918)

11 987 037
15 013 795
(22 336 000)

6 107 929

4 664 832

16.4 Government Grants - Clinical training grant:
2016
R
Opening balance
Amount raised – grant received
Released to income
Closing balance – Clinical training grant

2015
R

6 616 335
2 426 800
(4 660 926)

7 404 752
5 374 000
(6 162 417)

4 382 209

6 616 335

16.5 Government Grants - NGAP grant:
2016
R

2015
R

Opening balance
Amount raised – grant received
Released to income

12 654 393
9 330 968
(3 406 823)

13 049 274
(394 881)

Closing balance – NGAP grant

18 578 538

12 654 393

16.6 Government Grants - Research and Development grant:		
2016
R

2015
R

Opening balance
Amount raised – grant received
Released to income

5 914 092
22 340 875
(4 194 242)

16 402 000
(10 487 908)

Closing balance – NGAP grant

24 060 725

5 914 092

9 292 300
658 801 364
668 093 664

8 710 000
556 500 652
565 210 652

Current balance
Non-current balance
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES			
					
The University’s principal financial instruments
comprise investments, accounts receivable,
student fees receivable, staff loans, cash and
short-term deposits, interest bearing borrowings,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities.
The University manages a substantial portfolio of
investments with a long term view to growing the
portfolio in order to provide financial stability and
support for new initiatives of the University.
The main purpose of the interest bearing
loans and borrowings is to raise finance for
the University’s capital building projects. The
University has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as accounts and student fees
receivable and accounts payable, which arise
directly from its operations.
The main risks arising from the University’s
financial instruments are market risk, credit risk
and liquidity risk. Council, through its Finance
Committee reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.
Market Risk
			
The risk that the fair value or future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises
three types of risk: price, currency and interest
rate risks. The University’s exposure to market
risk relates primarily to its investments and loans.

The University’s investments are managed
by selected portfolio managers who operate
under defined mandates, which are designed
to limit the exposure of the University. The
investment decisions made and performances
of these managers are closely monitored by the
Finance Committee. This Committee comprises
members of the University’s Council and
executive management members with specific
expertise relating to investments.
Interest rate risk
The risk that the fair value or future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The University’s
interest-bearing borrowings are a combination of
fixed and floating rates of interest. The University
has a number of receivables (ie student fees and
loans to employees) where interest rates charged
are linked to the prime rate.
Per note 6 the University did not charge any
interest on student fees receivable for the current
year due to a change in the University’s
policy.
The total fixed rate financial instruments amount to
R2 131 961 (2015: R2 553 175) and the variable rate
financial assets amounts to R1 574 829 101 (2015:
R1 717 927 213) and variable financial liabilities
R319 979 053 (2015: R378 780 970)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity
of the University’s financial assets and liabilities
that are subject to interest rate risk to a
reasonable change in market values, with all
other variables constant. The effect of these are
considered on a net basis.

Impact of interest rate changes on Net surplus and Accumulated funds
Interest rate change (BP)
At 31 December 2016

+200 BP
R

+100 BP
R

Net financial assets

(3 302 243)

(1 651 122)

1 651 122

3 302 243

At 31 December 2015
Net financial assets

(4 775 365)

(2 387 683)

2 387 683

4 775 365
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
The risk that the fair value or future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices (other than those arising
from interest rate and currency risks). The University

is exposed to price risk in respect of its investment
portfolio. The University manages this risk through
investing in a wide variety of assets.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of
the University’s financial assets that are subject to
price risk to a reasonable change
in market values, with all other variables constant.

Impact of interest rate changes on Net surplus and Accumulated funds
Market variance
At 31 December 2016

+10%
R

+5%
R

-5%
R

-10%
R

Equities – local
Equities – foreign
Unit trusts – local
Interest bearing bonds – local

67 044 588
22 488 100
3 127 667
27 796 564

33 522 294
11 244 050
1 563 834
13 898 282

(33 522 294)
(11 244 050)
(1 563 834)
(13 898 282)

(67 044 588)
(22 488 100)
(3 127 667)
(27 796 564)

At 31 December 2015
Equities – local
Equities – foreign
Unit trusts – local
Interest bearing bonds – local

48 227 886
28 813 911
29 025 679
27 247 617

24 113 943
14 406 056
14 512 840
13 623 808

(24 113 943)
(14 406 956)
(14 512 840)
(13 623 808)

(48 227 886)
(28 813 911)
(29 025 679)
(27 247 617)

Foreign currency risk			
The University is exposed to foreign currency
risk to the extent that it has accounts receivable
and payable balances denominated in foreign
currencies. The amount of such balances is
negligible at year-end.
Credit risk
The risk that one party to a financial instrument
will cause a financial loss for the other party by
failing to discharge an obligation.
The University trades only with recognised,
credit worthy third parties. In addition, receivable

Range of Balance
Up to R10 000
R10 001 to R30 000
R30 001 to R50 000
>R50 000

Number of
students

balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis with the result that the University’s
exposure to bad debts, with the exception of
student fee receivables is not significant, and
there is no significant concentration of credit
risk at year end. The maximum exposure is the
carrying amount reflected in Notes 5,
6 and 7.
All credit risks associated with student receivables
is adequately provided for. The outstanding fees
balance at year end is as follows
amongst the student body:
		
2016
R
Outstanding
balance as at
31 December

Number of
students

2015
R
Outstanding
balance as at
31 December

56 604
16 216
3 831
1 058

55 804 550
247 163 304
133 392 347
26 665 406

60 585
12 443
2 372
558

78 298 802
168 403 892
70 690 381
25 325 630

77 709

463 025 607

75 958

342 718 705
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
With respect to credit risk arising from the other
financial assets of the University, which comprise
cash and cash equivalents, available for-sale
financial assets, the University’s exposure to
credit risk arises from default of the counterparty,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amount of these instruments. The University

Financial assets
Available-for-sale investments
Accounts receivable (excluding
prepayments,
Vat receivable)
Student fees receivable
Cash and cash equivalents
Financial liabilities
Interest bearing borrowings:
- Fixed rate borrowings
- Floating rate borrowings
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities
(excluding operating lease accrual)

Fair values
Set out below is a comparison by category of
carrying amounts and fair values of all of the
University’s financial instruments.

Carrying Value
amounts
2016
R

Fair Value
amounts
2016
R

Carrying
Value amounts
2015
R

Fair Value
amounts
2015
R

1 281 517 176
84 701 435

1 281 517 176
84 701 435

1 464 927 721
53 208 979

1 464 927 721
53 208 979

146 843 762
146 468 163

146 843 762
146 468 163

163 271 244
89 728 248

163 271 244
89 728 248

322 111 014
2 131 961
319 979 053
182 862 477

322 801 046
2 821 994
319 979 053
182 862 477

352 735 733
2 553 175
350 182 558
155 465 026

353 482 298
3 299 740
350 182 558
155 465 026

The fair value of interest bearing borrowings
has been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows at prevailing market
interest rates. It should be noted that the fair
value of fixed rate borrowings is impacted by
the fact that these loans are subsidised by the
State (refer note 8).
The fair value of short-term financial assets
and liabilities approximates their carrying
values.

118

only places cash and cash deposits with major
financial institutions with good credit ratings.
The University considers financial assets which
are neither past due nor impaired to be fully
recoverable.

The fair value of investments is based on
quoted bid-market prices at the statement of
financial position date.
The following table below reflects the fair
values of financial instruments, including
their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does
not include fair value information for financial
instruments not measured at fair value if the
carrying amount is a reasonable approximation
of the fair value.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

As at 31 December 2016
Financial assets
Available-for-sale investments

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

R

R

R

R

1 281 517 176

-

-

1 281 517 176

-

-

2 821 994

2 821 994

Total

1 281 517 176

-

2 821 994

1 284 339 170

As at 31 December 2015
Financial assets
Available-for-sale investments

1 464 927 721

-

-

1 464 927 721

-

-

3 299 740

3 299 740

1 464 927 721

-

3 299 740

1 468 227 461

Reconciliation of Level 3 Fair value instruments
Opening balance
Plus interest accrued
Less payments made
Plus fair value adjustments

2016
3 299 740
255 778
( 676 991)
( 56 533)

2015
3 747 345
295 114
( 676 991)
( 65 728)

Closing balance

2 821 994

3 299 740

Financial liabilities
Interest bearing borrowings

Financial liabilities
Interest bearing borrowings
Total

The University uses the following hierarchy for
determining and disclosing the fair value of financial
instruments by valuation technique:
Level 1: Quoted prices(unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets and liabilities.
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included
Type
Long-term borrowings:
fixed interest rate

within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).
Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

Valuation Technique
Discounted cash flows:
The valuation model considers the present
value of expected payments, discounted
using a risk adjusted discount rate.
The expected payment is determined by
considering the possible scenarios of
forecast (prime rate), the amount to be paid
under each scenario and the probability of
each scenario.
The discounting rate used is prime less
2.5%

Significant unobservable inputs
The interest rates used to calculate cash flows
ranges from 9.5% to 13.22%. The discount
rate prime less 2.5% was used to calculate
the present value for the remaining repayment
periods.
Significant increases (decreases) in any of those
inputs in isolation would result in a significantly
lower (higher) fair value measurement.
There are no interrelationships between
unobservable inputs, as only one unobservable
input was used in the valuation.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Specifically restricted funds are managed
within the rules as agreed with the relevant
funders. Management monitors the return on
accumulated funds. There are no externally
imposed requirements for the management of the
accumulated funds.

Liquidity risk
The risk that an entity will encounter difficulty
in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities. The timing and nature of the
University’s cash inflows and outflows are such
that liquidity problems are unlikely to arise. The
cashflow position is monitored by management
daily and the University has access to funds
through either its holding of short-term bank
deposits or the investments portfolio in the
event that any unforeseen events occur.

The institution monitors accumulated
funds using a ratio of adjusted net debt to
accumulated funds. For this purpose net debt
is defined as total liabilities, comprising interestbearing loans, borrowings and obligations under
finance leases less cash and cash equivalents.
The institution’s objective is to keep the ratio
below 2.00. The institution’s adjusted net debt
to accumulated funds ratio at 31 December was
as follows:

Capital Management
The institution’s policy is to sustain a healthy
accumulated fund balance in order to maintain
donor, creditor and public confidence as well as
sustain future development of the institution.

2016
R

2015
R

Total liabilities
Less: Cash and cash equivalents
Net debt

1 745 603 105
(146 468 163)
1 559 134 942

1 609 943 075
(89 728 248)
1 520 214 826

Accumulated Funds

1 857 690 167

2 010 594 306

0.86

0.76

Net debt to accumulated funds ratio

The following table sets out the maturity profile of the University’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments.
Year ended 31 December 2016
Financial liabilities

R

R

On demand

R

R

R

1-5
years

R

Less than
3 months

3 - 12
months

More than
5 years

TOTAL

-

15 280 153

45 892 074

171 024 074

220 094 955

452 291 256

Interest-bearing borrowings
Trade payables and accrued
expenses
Other payables and accrued
liabilities

-

115 480 324

-

-

-

115 480 324

63 366 280

4 015 873

-

-

-

67 382 154

Total

63 366 280

134 776 350

45 892 074

171 024 074

220 094 955

635 153 734

Year ended 31 December 2015
Financial liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings
Trade payables and accrued
expenses
Other payables and accrued
liabilities
Total

120

R

R

On demand

R

R

R

1-5
years

R

Less than
3 months

3 - 12
months

More than
5 years

TOTAL

-

15 377 350

45 282 394

187 783 083

265 385 837

513 828 664

-

91 386 568

-

-

-

91 386 568

59 944 697

4 133 761

-

-

-

64 078 458

59 944 697

110 897 679

45 282 394

187 783 083

265 385 837

669 293 690
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
The following table sets out the maturity profile of the University’s financial instruments which are exposed to
interest rate risk with the following categories:
Year ended 31 December 2016
Financial instruments

On demand

R

R

R

Less than
3 months

3 – 12
months

1–5
years

R
More than
5 years

R
TOTAL

Cash, cash equivalents
and interest bearing bonds

155 223 208

32 075 353

33 374 740

44 880 135

216 832 027

482 385 463

Total

155 223 208

32 075 353

33 374 740

44 880 135

216 832 027

482 385 463

R

R

R

Year ended 31 December 2015
Financial instruments

18

R

R
On demand

Less than
3 months

3 – 12
months

1–5
years

R
More than
5 years

R
TOTAL

Cash, cash equivalents
and interest bearing bonds

233 634 444

(5 245 693)

24 554 686

72 063 740

129 211 028

454 218 205

Total

233 634 444

(5 245 693)

24 554 686

72 063 740

129 211 028

454 218 205

CONTINGENT ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND
FINANCIAL GUARANTEES			
Claim for payment of outstanding private
rental
The Plaintiff is claiming from CPUT an amount
of R758 300 plus interest and legal costs for
accommodation provided to students in their
personal capacity. The mattter is instituted in
the High Court and litigation is pending as an
outcome of an appeal lodged by the Plaintiff in
the Supreme Court of Appeal is awaited.
Claim by certain employees of CPUT
The Plaintiffs instituted a claim against CPUT
for the payment of an amount of R5 273 027
plus interest and costs, which comprises the
total sum of their individual claims. These claims
are premised on an alleged breach of the terms
and conditions of employment. The matter is
proceeding in the High Court.

Claim for damages based on alleged contract
breach
The Plaintiff instituted a claim against CPUT
for payment of an amount of R1 570 207 plus
interest and legal costs for alleged breach of
contract. The matter is proceeding in the High
Court and is at trial stage.
Claim for damages relating to security system
agreement
CPUT instituted a claim for damages in the
High Court in the amount of R12 374 672 plus
interest and legal costs with futher claims in the
alternative. The claim results from electronic
security services not fully installed, or not installed
to the required standard; fully maintained ; or not
maintained to the required standard. The matter is
proceeding in the High Court.
Claim for payment relating to sub-lease
agreement for student accommodation
Plaintiff instituted a claim against CPUT for the
recovery of rental and damages allegedly due in
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CONTINGENT ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND FINANCIAL GUARANTEES (continued)
Financial guarantees
The University provides guarantees in respect of housing loans for University staff. These amounts are set
out in the table below.
2016
R
Housing loan guarantees: University Staff

700 892
700 892

2015
R
761 750
761 750

terms a sublease agreement concluded in 2013 for student accommodation, in the amount of R1 093 302. The matter is
proceeding in the High Court.
19

COMMITMENTS

19.1 Capital commitments
2016
R
Amounts allocated for capital expenditure at reporting date, but not contracted
Expenditure contracted for at year end, but not yet incurrred

2015
R

86 469 070
58 289 336

123 635 721
134 581 769

144 758 406

258 217 490

Capital commitments as listed below relates to amounts formally designated for the acquisition, construction and
improvement of buiding projects.
It is intended that the University will fund these commitments from internal resources, investments and loans.
19.2 Operating lease commitments
The total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Equipment
Within 1 year
2 to 5 years
after 5 years

Property
Within 1 year
2 to 5 years
after 5 years
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2016
R

2015
R

7 592 230
2 184 797
-

7 735 767
1 580 816
-

9 777 027

9 316 583

70 416 663
65 383 387
-

66 590 901
135 800 050
-

135 800 050

202 390 951

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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COMMITMENTS (continued)
Operating lease commitments relate to rental
of buildings, photocopy and PABX equipment.
The amounts disclosed above are the minimum
lease payments. Escalation clauses are either
based on CPIX or are between 6% and 8%.
Whilst options to renew exist on some leases, no

decision has been taken at balance sheet date in
this regard.
The expenses reflected in the surplus or loss in
respect of operating leases are as follows:

2016
R
Equipment
Property

2015
R

8 072 706
79 602 998

7 103 556
61 816 588

87 675 704

68 920 144
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REMUNERATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT
Remuneration is based on cost of employment
to the University. Compensation paid for other
services performed within the University is
reflected separately.

The following disclosure, as required by the
Minister of Higher Education and Training,
relates to compensation paid to members of the
University’s executive management team.

Name

Office Held

Basic
Leave
cost of
employment Encashment
1
R

Nevhutalu AP
(Note 1)

Vice-Chancellor

Volmink J
(Note 2)

Acting Vice-Chancellor

Staak AP

R

Post
Retirement
medical
fund
2
R

Total
Primary
Services
R

Total
Remuneration

Other

2016
R

R

2 710 047

-

-

2 710 047

-

2 710 047

361 373

-

-

361 373

-

361 373

Deputy Vice-Chancellor:
Academic

2 148 517

-

32 280

2 180 797

-

2 180 797

Nhlapo NS

DVC:
Research,Technology
Innovation and
Partnerships

2 146 944

-

-

2 146 944

-

2 146 944

Fourie LCH

DVC: Knowledge,
Information and
Technology

2 047 648

-

-

2 047 648

-

2 047 648

Sibanda S

Executive Director:
Infrastructure and
Facilities Managment

1 595 755

-

-

1 595 755

-

1 595 755

Mabuza MN
(Note 3)

Executive Director:
Human Resources

734 793

-

-

734 793

(34 947)

699 846

Mkhabela OK
(Note 4)

Executive Director: ViceChancellor’s Office

1 374 211

-

-

1 374 211

-

1 374 211

Du Plessis PC
(Note 5)

Executive Director:
Finance

546 911

-

-

546 911

-

546 911

Geduld-Jefta ME
(Note 6)

Acting Executive
Director: Finance

1 391 417

-

-

1 391 417

-

1 391 417

Ntsababa NN

Registrar

1 756 846

-

-

1 756 846

-

1 756 846

Motale MC
(Note 7)

Dean of Students

1 779 472

-

-

1 779 472

-

1 779 472

Fatoki OS

Dean: Applied Sciences

1 476 498

-

-

1 476 498

-

1 476 498

Gihwala D

Dean: Health and
Wellness Sciences

2 115 312

-

-

2 115 312

-

2 115 312

Cronje J

Dean: Informatics and
Design

1 619 242

-

-

1 619 242

-

1 619 242

Mda TV

Dean: Education and
Social Sciences

1 431 345

-

-

1 431 345

-

1 431 345

Sheldon MS

Acting Dean: Engineering

1 220 280

-

-

1 220 280

-

1 220 280

Binza MS
(Note 8)

Dean: Business

354 260

-

-

354 260

-

354 260

Lotter WA
(Note 9)

Acting Dean: Business

1 103 785

-

-

1 103 785

-

1 103 785

27 914 656

-

32 280

27 946 939

(34 947)

27 911 989

Total 2016
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REMUNERATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Name

Office Held

Post
Retirement
medical
fund
2
R
-

Basic
Leave
cost of
Encashment
employment
1
R
2 574 892

R

Total
Primary
Services
R
2 574 892

Other

Total
Remuneration

R
-

2015
R
2 574 892

Nevhutalu AP

Vice-Chancellor

Staak AP

Deputy Vice-Chancellor:
Academic

2 042 354

-

32 280

2 074 634

-

2 074 634

Mkhabela OK

Executive Director: ViceChalcellor’s Office

536 580

-

-

536 580

79 900

616 480

Nhlapo NS

DVC: Research,Technology
Innovation and
Partnerships

2 036 675

-

-

2 036 675

-

2 036 675

Fourie LCH

DVC: Knowledge,
Information and
Technology

1 941 622

-

-

1 941 622

-

1 941 622

Motale MC

Dean of Students

370 964

-

-

370 964

-

370 964

Harper LS

Acting Dean of Students

1 323 189

-

-

1 323 189

-

1 323 189

Van der Linde
VW

Executive Director: Finance

1 092 993

605 690

14 536

1 713 219 3 900 345

5 613 564

Tromp D

Acting Executive Director:
Finance

463 678

-

-

463 678

-

463 678

Geduld-Jeftha
ME

Acting Executive Director:
Finance

1 146 764

-

-

1 146 764

-

1 146 764

Fatoki OS

Dean: Applied Sciences

1 399 024

-

-

1 399 024

-

1 399 024

Gihwala D

Dean: Health and Wellness
Sciences

1 385 132

-

-

1 385 132

-

1 385 132

Cronje J

Dean: Informatics and
Design

1 403 626

-

-

1 403 626

-

1 403 626

Mda TV

Dean: Education and
Social Sciences

1 358 177

-

-

1 358 177

-

1 358 177

Mahomed N

Dean: Engineering

760 132

-

-

760 132

-

760 132

Sheldon MS

Acting Dean: Engineering

607 941

-

-

607 941

-

607 941

Binza MS

Dean: Business

1 394 811

-

-

1 394 811

-

1 394 811

Ntsababa NN

Registrar

1 665 117

-

-

1 665 117

-

1 665 117

Sibanda S

Executive Director:
Infrastructure and
Facilities Management

664 786

-

-

664 786

-

664 786

Mpambane S

Chief Director:
Infrastructure and
Facilities Management

-

-

-

-

-

-

Critien JWR

Acting Chief Director:
Infrastructure and
Facilities Management

877 205

-

-

877 205

-

877 205

Fish J

Acting Chief Director:
Human Resources

-

-

-

-

-

-

Mabuza MN

Executive Director: Human
Resources

1 651 834

-

-

1 651 834

-

1 651 834

26 697 496

605 690

46 816

27 350 002 3 980 245

31 330 247

Total 2015
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REMUNERATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT (Continued)
All of the above remuneration amounts are in respect of short-term employee benefits in terms of IAS 24 except
for:			
1. Included in Basic Cost of Employment is an amount of R3 101 746 (2015: R3 439 662) in respect of the
Employer’s Contribution to Retirement Funds and Group Life Schemes.
2. These amounts are in respect of post retirement medical aid. Some members receive an allowance in
respect of Post Retirement Medical Aid Contributions, whilst for others the Institution provides for the liability
and the contributions are paid over on retirement to the Medical Aid Schemes.

Note 1: The Vice-Chancellor, Dr AP
Nevhutalu has been put on special
leave as of 31 October 2016.
Note 2: The Acting Vice-Chancellor, Dr J
Volmink assumed his duties from
31 October 2016.

Note 6: Acting Executive Director: Finance,
Ms ME Geduld-Jeftha returned to
her Director: Financial Operations on
31 August 2016.
Note 7: Dean of Studnets, Mrs C Motale
returned from unpaid leave 16
January 2016.

Note 3: Executive Director Human Capital
resigned 17 June 2016.
Note 4: Executive Director to the ViceChancellor’s office, Dr OK Mkhabela
was acting as Executive Director:
Human Capital in place of Mr MN
Mabuza from 01 July 2016.
Note 5: Executive Director: Finance, Mr PC
Du Plessis assumed his duties on
01 September 2016.

Note 8: Dean of Business faculty, APRF MS
Binza resigned on 31 March 2016.
Note 9: Acting Dean of Business Faculty, Mr
WA Lotter assumed his duties on 01
April 2016.
* Balances per the table are the remuneration
received during the period as indicated.

Disclosure is made of the following lump sum payments in excess of R249 999 as required by the Minister:
Year
2016
2015

Name
VW Van der Linde

Office Held

Reason

Executive Director: Finance

Early retirement package

Remuneration of Council Members
Payments for attendance at meetings of the Council and its Sub-Committees

Committee
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Number of members

Chair of Council

1

Chairs of Committees

8

Members of Council

25

Amount
R
4 506 035
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REMUNERATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Reimbursement for travelling expenses and
stipends of R588 000 (2015: R454 845) were
paid to external members of Council for
attendance at meetings of Council and its
Sub-Committees. External Council members
receive a stipend of R1 500, Chairpersons of

21

subcommittes R1 750, and the Chairperson of
Council R2 000 per meeting.
The following table represents the disclosure
required in terms of IAS 24 in respect of
compensation of key management.
2016
R

2015
R

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employee pension and medical benefits

24 810 243
3 101 746

24 086 263
3 343 693

Termination benefits

27 911 989
-

27 429 902
3 900 345

Total compensation paid to key management personnel

27 911 989

31 330 247

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 		
The related party relationships of the Cape
Peninsula University of Technology in terms of
IAS 24 are as follows:				
		
- Key management personnel, which comprises
members of both Council and the University
executive management team (refer note 20).

Due to the nature of the University’s operations
and the composition of its Council (being drawn
from public and private sector organisations)
it is likely that transactions will take place with
organisations in which a member of Council may
have an interest, these are conducted at arms
length, and in accordance with the University’s
procurement procedures.

-

The Department of Higher Education and
Training (DHET) (refer notes 12 and 16).

During the current year the University did
not purchase any goods and services from
companies in which a Council member or senior
management has a major interest.

-

UAV - SysCo (Pty)Ltd (100% held subsidiary of
CPUT)

The following are significant related party
balances and transactions as listed below:

1. UAV – SysCo(Pty) Ltd
• loan owing from
2. DHET
• loans owing (to)
• various subsidies and grants received

2016
R

2015
R

118 000

118 000

(2 131 961)
1 026 882 098

(2 553 175)
982 606 898
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
As at reporting date Council is not aware of any events which had a significant impact on the statement of
financial position at year end which require an adjustment or disclosure in these financial statements.

23

GOING CONCERN
The Council believes that the University has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for the
foreseeable futue and accordingly the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and
settlement of liabilities, contingent obligation and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

24

COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Comparative figures has been restated in the notes to the financial statements relating to the number of
the average part-time and full time staff members employed during the financial year. Where appropriate,
comparative figures are restated with full disclosure of the respective changes.
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